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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Shang Properties, Inc.

Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall
EDSA comner Shaw Boulevard,
Mandaluyong Cily

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Shang Properties, Inc. and
Subsidiaries, which comprise the conselidated staterients of financial position as at December 31, 2015
and 2014, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity
and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is respensible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstaternent, whether due (o fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit (o obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. EERE L A ey
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{SHANG

FROPFERTIES®

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 04, 2016

SGV

' Building a better
working world

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated linancial stalements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries as at Decemnber 31, 2015 and 2014, and their financial
performance and their cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended December 31, 2015 in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Qwv%cz%”

Arnel F, De Tesus
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 43283
SEC Accreditation No. 0075-AR-3 (Group A),
February 14, 2013, valid until April 30, 2016
Tax Identification No. 152-884-385
BIR Acgereditation No, 08-001998-15-20135,
June 26, 2015, valid until June 25, 2018
PTE Mo, 5321627, January 4, 2016, Makati City

March 4, 2016
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SSHANG

FREROPERTIES®

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 04, 2016

Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills
City of Mandaluvong, Metra Manila

The management of Shang Properties, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014, in accordance with the prescribed (inancial reporting framework indicated therein, This
responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant 1o the preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances,

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits
the same 10 the stockholders,

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders have
examined the consolidated financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, have expressed their opinion on the
fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

Signed under oath of by the following:

Ly

Edward Kuok Khoon Loong
Chairman of the Board

YL

QUG

Level B, Shangri-La Plaza Mall, EDSA Tomner Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City, Metro Manila, Philippines 1550
T {B32) 370-2700 F: (B32) 370-2777 www.shangproperties.com



SHANG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

et '

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL P

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)

Finanecial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 6)
Feceivables (Notes 7 and 31)

Froperties held for sale (Mote §)

Input tax and other current assets (MNate 93

P4,041,169,742
34,882,100
2,172,434,657
7,160,774,272
1,765,695,509

B2.911,004,820
33,012,524
4,162,249 384
5,773,117,694
1,805,192,006

Total Current Assets

15,174,956,280

14,684 576,428

MNoncurrent Assets

Installment contract receivable - nel of current portion (Note 7) 660,986,703 -
Investments in associates and joint venture (Note 10) 491,948,350 410,790,229
Investment properties (Mote 13} 28,178.567.875 27,110,367 488
Real estate development projects (Mote 14) 13,576,917,290 11,211,283,922
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 135) 504,872,842 S02.822 842
Froperty and equipment {MNote 14) 135,297,925 67,009,417
Goodwill (Note 12) 269,870,864 269,870,564
Deferred income tax assets - net (Note 299 235,800,271 356,407,946
Other noncurrent assets (Mote 17} 63,411,421 68,493, 754

Total Noncurrent Assets

44,117,733,541

39,597 540, 462

TOTAL ASSETS

B59,292,689,821

P#34,682,122,890

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (MNotes 18 and 31)
Current portion of:

P5,557,385,891

P4,883.213,157

Installment payable (Note 8) 153,152,398 =
Bank loans (Note 197 867,751,562 583,333,333
Deposits from tenants (Note 20) 477,494,580 484,423 000
Deferred lease income (MNote 20} 6,520,818 18,163,625
Income tax payable 183,238,555 127,582,324
Dividends payable (Notes 11 and 22) - 148,464,960 104,254 980
Total Current Liabilities 7.594, 008,764 8,201,010,419

Moncurrent Liabilities
Installment payable - net of current portion (Mote &)

709,915,105

68,502,035

Accrued employee henefits (Note 27) 49,815,160

Bank loans - net of current portion (Note 19) 11,596,577,925 11,565,335,572

Deferred income tax labilities - net (Note 25) 6,088,462,938 6.589.901,691

Deposits from tenants - net of current portion MNote 207 538,150,247 454,021,217

Deferred lease income - net of current portion (MNote 20) 14,176,917 20,018,732

Deposit for future stock subscription (Note 11) R 1,959, 000,000
Total Noncurrent Liabilities prase ___1_9,_597,{}98._.29__2 o 20,696,779,247
Total Liabilities B L 26,991 07,056 26,397,7 39;6665
— = e
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December 31
2015 2014

EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company:

Capital stock (Wote 217} P4.764,058,982  B4,764 058,982

Additional paid-in capital 834,439,607 £34,439,607
Treasury shares (MNote 21} {6,850,064) (6,850,064
(7,126,043) (8,046,511)

Other components of equity (Notes 15 and 27)

Fetained earnings (Notes 21 and 22) 20.346,650,494 18,234,935 332

25.931,172.976 23,818,537 340
6,370,409,78% 3.965,795,5878
32,301,582,765 7.784,333,224

Equity attributable to non-controiling interests (Mote 11)
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P50,292,689,821  B34,682,122,890

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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SHANG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2015 2014 2013
REVENUES
Condeminium sales #4,654,102,798 83 764 277 893 B3,935,170,304
Rental 2,676,323,065 2,624,893 640 2.338,990,151
Cinema 60,651,786 0,367,560 56,448,800
7.391,107.649 6.449,539,099 6,330,609,264

COST AND EXFENSES

Cost of condorminium sales (Note 24) 2,374,666,153

2,442,444,122

2,991,014,104

Staff costs (Note 26) 459,471,807 295,539,144 241,336,108
Taxes and licenses (MNote 23) 219,809,224 205,446,842 145,063,414
(ieneral and administrative (Note 25) 221,094,023 193 324 687 156,933 328
Unreimbursed share in common expenses [Mofe 23) 68,241,053 85943421 S96,092 8a0
Depreciation and amortization (MNote 16) 22,513,967 20,414,157 18,177,994
Inswrance 19,827,030 17,620,267 15,681,448
3,385,623,257 3,260,732,640 3,664,299 158
OTHER INCOME
Interest (Mote 23) 236,873,016 2693a61,029 279 436,867
Giains on:
Fair value adjustment of investment _
properties (Note 13) 549,224,660 = =
Remeasurement arising from business
combinations (Note 12) 824,431,141 =x
Reversal of impairment loss on real estate
development project (MNote 14) - - 181,954,697
Foreign exchange gains - net 0,248,738 880,730 4,081,797
Other income - net (Note 23) 100,235,005 67,975,685 112,392,231
592,531,419 1,162,648,585 377,855,392
SHARE IN NET INCOME (LOSSES) OF
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE
(Note 10) 70,658,121 (9,692,903) (4,674,079)
INTEREST EXPENSE AND BANK CHARGES
(Mote 23) 201,558,575 337,066,344 184,961,863
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 4,767,105.357 4.114,693.797 3,054,329.636
FPROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 29) 1,189.138.629 995,301,739 751,429,724

NET INCOME 3,578,020,728

3,114,194,058

2,303,099,932

OTHER COMFREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Ttems that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale

financial assetls, net of tax effect (MNote 135) 1,435,000 350,000 210,000
Translation adjustments 405,500 17,554 556,340
Iemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined
henefit liability, net of tax effect (Note 27) (B2:032) (8,756,829 . .. 23,248,589
o 020468 . - (8,389.275)" 24,015,129

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Forward)

P3,578/947106 <5 -

BO110804,783 °, P2327,115,061

APR 13 2p16
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Equity Holders of the Paresl Company

Oither Compenents of Equity
Ttem that will
Mot be
[tems that may be Feclassified 1o

Feeclassified to Profit or Loss Prafit or Loss

Cumulative
Changes in Rereasosement
Fair Value of Gaing (Losses) Retained
Treasury Available-for-Sale Cumulative on Drefined Eamings ron-controlling
Capital Stock Additigmal Shares  Financial Asscis Translatzon  Benefit Liability {Tiotes 21 and - [nterests (MO
Mo 211 Paid-in Capital [Mote 213 {Mote 13) Adjustments Mete 27) Subteal 22) [eatal (Mote 11) Tortal

BALANCES AT . i 4 :

DECEMEER 31, 2013 Fd, 704,058,582 PEI4,439.607 (&6,850,064) £3,062,500 (PAE,723) (B2309,013) PB342,764 PI16,1424184632 P21,734,409.921  B3056.381448 F14,790,791,369

; AR - _ “

Taﬁ;ﬁ Eﬁﬁz ;:::mc{ 055 ) ) B _ 350,000 17,554 (£,756,82%) (B3R02TSY 2.TISITS MG 2,736,986,671 FR3ELEI02 3,110,804 782
SiﬂF?:Lgﬂl;;ﬂ'}ﬂ REREE - - - =~ - o - = i W2 306518 Q02 590,318
(*__ag: dividends (Notes 11 and 22) - - - ~ (642,899.246)  (642.839.346) (376,800,000 (1,019,659.246)
BALANCES AT o ; o 7

DECEMEER 31, 2014 4,764, 058,982 £534,439,607 (P, 850,064) P3.412500 {P.}Erﬂ-.lﬁ'f‘} {#11,065842) (F8,046,511) P18,234,935332 P23 818537346  PIM657I5878 P2 ~-'541§33=224
BALANCES AT = - 2929.404,157 $13,152,337.545

DECEMBER 31, 2012 P4, 764,058,942 £534,439007 (i K50, M4 P2AS2500 (B967.203) (¥25,5357,602) B23.672,365) PI4,654.957,228 FI!],ZZZ,QSS,ESS B2,929.404,15 s 3..’33 A
Tetal comprehensive incoome - - - 210,000 356,540 3,243,589 24015130 2011272641 2035287770 291827291 2,327,1 15,0061
Cash dividends (Motes 11 and 22) s ” - - 5 (5238112371 (S238101.237)  (164.850000)  (688,661,237)

ANCES AT =
BE%ECI?\'IEPR 31,2013 £4,704 058,552 P834.439,607 (B6,850,064) P3,062.500 B410,723) (#2,300,013) P342,764 P16,142418637 P211,734,409,521 P3056,381,448 P14, 790,791 362
Al 2 3 1 5

Sae gocampeanying Notes to Cansoliddiied Financial Statements.
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SHANG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2015 2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income belore income tax £4,767,165,357 B4 114,695,797 P3,054,529,656
Adjustments for:
Gain on:

Fair value adjustrnent of investment
properties (Mote 13)
Remeasurement arising from business
combinations (Mote 12)
Reversal of impairment loss on real estate
development project (Mote 14)
Disposal of investment in associate
(Note 23)
Sale of property and equipment (MNate 23)
Interest income (Note 23)
[nterest expense (Note 23)
Share in net losses (income) of associates
and joint venture (Mote 10)
Dhvidend income (MNote 23)
Amortization of discount of deferred leaze
ncome (MNote 200
Depreciation and amortization (Note 16}
Unrealized foreign exchange losses - net
Fair value adjustment of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (Mote 23)
Provision for bad debts (Mote 25)

(549,224,660)

(724,804)
(236,573,016)
193,952,914

(70,658,121)
(40,033,691)

(25,370,048)
22,513,967
(6,248,738)

{1,369,576)

(524,431,141)

(269,361,02%)
225,860,264

9,692,903
(15,234,198)

(92,079,585)
20,414,137
(880,730)

(2,663,820)
Q52,363

(181,954,697

(17438767

(216,983)
(279.426,867)
134,288,227

4,674,079
{18,825 456)

7,184,470
18,177,996
(3,525,257)

1,926,992

Operating income before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables

Properties held for sale

4,052,625.4%

1,512,381,838
(522,784,687)

3,166,094 981

(390,351,260}
(2,844,722 312)

2,769,495 493

{1,949,033,659)
906,915,626

[nput tax and other current assets 39,496,497 {469,044 442 (40,082,817

Real estate development project - - (21,890,467
Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 709,998,749 1,803,634,063 898,743,103

Deferred lease incoms 7885424 36,941,551 0.314,747

Acerued &mE_l?yee benefits {20,001,206) 15,762,280 (230,786)
Cash generated from operations 5,779,606,113 1,318,314,861 2373231240
Income taxes paid (940,563,195 {745,899 225) (607,138,048
[nterest received 53319202 32,141,486 51,389,706
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,892.362,120 604,557,122 2.017,481,998

{Forward)

- APR 13 20%
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Years Ended December 31

015 2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Additions to:
Investments in associates and joint
venture (Note 10) (P10,500,000) (B15,000,000) (26, 100,000)
Investment properties (Note 13) (518,475,727 (367,641,538) (1,589.435,591)

Real estate development projects
(Motes 12 and 14)

Property and equipment (Note 163

Other nencurrent assets (MNote 17)
Dhvidends received (MNote 23)
Proceeds from sale of!

Property and equipment {Mote 23}

Investment in associate (MNote 10
Acquisition of a subsidiary,

net of cash acquired {(Note 12)

(2,365,633,368)

(92,606,864)
5,082,333
40,033,691

724,894

284,877,078

(17,541,185)

(15,931,785)
15,234,198

(1,465,048,492)

(14,766,250}
5,669,530
18,823,456

567,171
52,000,000

Met cash nsed in investing activities

(2,941,375,041)

{1,581.051,724)

(1,493.241,675)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from loan availment,
net of debt issue costs {Note 19)
Payments of!
Loan principal (MNote 19}
Interest (Note 19)
Cash dividends paid to:

2,211,493,915

(1,895,833,333)
(177,216,122)

3,754,336,434

(647,619,048)
(168,584,440)

1, 400,000,000

(952,080,952)
(182,181,047

Stockholders (750,447,675) (559 408,273) (520922 3249)
Mon-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
{MNote 117 (226,080,000 (376,800,000) {164,850,000)

Increase (decrease) in deposits [rom tenants 11,012,320 (6,593,557 183,105,842
Met cash provided by (used in) financing activities {827,070,805) 1,995,331,1146 [237,828.486)
NET EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE

CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (Note 5) 6,248,738 721,363 4,081,797
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 1,130,164,922 1,019,557 877 290,493 634

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

2,911,004,820

1,891 446,943

1,600,%53,309

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

P4,041,169,742

£2,911,004,820

P1,891,446,943

See cocompanyving Notes to Conselidated Financial Slatements.
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SHANG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013

Fguity Holders of the Parent Company

Other Components of Equity

Item that watl

Mot be
Items that may be Reclassified o
Reclassified to Profit or Loss Profit or Loss
Cumulative
Changes in Eemeasurement
Fair Value of Gams {Losses) Fetained
Treasory Available-for-3ale Cumulative o Defined Ezmings Mon-controlling
Capital Stock Additional Sharcs  Financial Assets Teanslation Penefit Liability (Motez 21 and Intecrests (MNCT)
(Mote 21} Paid-in Capatal bt 21} {Mote 15} Adjusiments Mote 27) Suhtotal ) Total Mote 1) Total
BALANCES AT
DECEMBER 31, 2014 £4.764,058,982  PE3 439,607 (B0 850,064) B3.412,500 (P393,169)  (B11,065842) (B8,046,511) P18.234935332 P2IBI8,537346 BIS65TI5878 PI7,784,333.224
Tatal comprehensive income (loss)
regognived for e vear - - - 1,433,000 405,500 (920,032} F2HLALE 2.84%.512,5817 2.850,733,285 728213911 3575247, 1%0
Conversion of depozit for fumre
stack subscriplion o prefemed
shares (Mote 113 i = s - - = . — - 1,955 00,0040 1,954,004, (00
Cashy dividends (Metes 11 and 22) = = = - . - — (73897.655)  (T38,097.655)  (282.600.000) (1,020.697,655)
BALANCES AT
DECEMBER 31, 2015 B4T6A058982  BE34.439,607 (i, 550 0064) P4,847,500 12,331 {P11,955874) (B7,126,043) P20.346,650,494 B25931.172.976 P6.3T0409,789 #3735 01,582,765

See accompunying Motes fo Consolidated Financiod Statemants,
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Years Ended December 31

2015 2014 2013
MNet income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company P2 549 812 817 B2.7335,375,946 P2.0011,272.641
Mon-controlling interests 728,213,911 I83 815,112 291,827.201
£3,578,026,728 B1,119,194 058 P_l‘.__‘iﬂE,DEJEJ,E’BE
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company £21,850,733,285 B2.726,980,671 P2.035287,770
MNon-controlling interests 728,213,911 183,818,112 __291,§27.29]
P3,578,947,196  P3,110,804,783  P2,327,115,061
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS '
PER SHARE (Nate 30)
Based on net income B0.598 20,574 B 422
Gased on total comprehensive income B399 B(.573 BOA427

See aecompanying Notes to Convolidated Financial Stalements,
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SHANG PROFPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR

Corporate Information and Authorization for Issue of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Shang Properties, Ine. (the Parent Company), a corporation duly organized and existing in the
Philippines, was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on October 21, 1987 to acquire, own, develop, subdivide, sell. mortgage,
exchange, lease or hold for investment, real estate of all kinds.

The Parent Company’s registered office address, which is also its principal place of business, is
Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall. EDSA cormner Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City.

The Parent Company’s and Subsidiaries’ (collectively referred to as the Group) businesses include
property investment and development, real estate management, Jeasing, mall and carpark cperations.

Shang Properties Realty Corporation (SPRC, a wholly owned subsidiary) is the developer of The
Shang Grand Tower Project (TSGT), located in Makati City, The St. Francis Shangri-La Place
Project (TSFSP) and the One Shangri-La Place Project (OSP), both located in Mandaluyong City.

Shang Property Developers, Inc. (SPDL a wholly owned subsidiary) is the developer of Shang
Salcedo Place Project (55F), located in Makat City.

Aequisition of 20% Equity Interest in Shang Global City Properties, Inc. (SGUPI) and Fort
Bonifacio Shangri-ia Hotel, e, (FESHI) from a Third Party

On April 30, 2014, the Parent Company. through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Shang Global City
Holdings, Inc. (SGCHI) and Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, Inc. (SFBHI), acquired additional 209
interest in SGCPI and FBSHI, respectively, which were owned by a third party for a purchase price
of B1,700,000,000. Prior to the acquisition, the Group owned 40% equity interest in SGCPT and
FBSHI. On December 17, 2014, the SEC approved the merger of SGCPI and FBSHI, with SGCPI
as the surviving entity (sce Note 12,

Incorporation of The Rise Development Company, Inc. (TRDCI)

In 2013, the Board of KRC (KPPl Realty Corporation) approved the redevelopment of its real estate
project (sec Note 14). As such, on April 22, 2014, TRDCI was incorporated and registered with the
SEC. On the same date, KRC transferred its contractual obligations in The Rise Project located in
Makati City to TRDCL As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the percentage of completion of the
project is 10.00% and 1.88%, respectively.

Authorization for Issue of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the Board of Directors (the Board) on March 4, 2016.

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The conselidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
investment properties, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and available-for-
sale (AFS) financial assets that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group are presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), which is the Parent Company’s
functional and presentation currency, with amounts rounded to the nearest Peso,
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Statement of Compliance
The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS) as issued by the Finaneial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC),

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Ninancial statements of the Parent Company and
all of its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2015,

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has contrel. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the subsidiary. Specifically, the Group controls the
subsidiary if and only if the Group has;

»  Power over the subsidiary (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability 1o direct the relevant
activities of the subsidiary),

»  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary, and

= The ability to use its power over the subsidiary to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether il has power over an investee,
including:

*  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee,
* Rights arising from other contractual arrangements, and
*  The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the vear are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date
the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

= Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary.

*  Derecognizes the carrying amount of any NCI (non-controlling interest).

= Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity.

»  Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received.

= Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained.

*  Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss.

» Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI (other
comprehensive income) to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders
of the Parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the NCI having
a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to align their accounting policies with the Group’s accounting policies.  All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
(Giroup are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company, using consistent accounting policies,

The following are the subsidiaries for which the Parent Company acts as the principal decision
maker:

Effective Percentages of Ownership

2015 2014
Property Development:
SPRC 100.00% 100.00%
5P 100.00% 100.00%
TRDCI (Note 14) 100.00% 100.00%
SGCPI (Note 12) 60.00% 60,00%
Leasing:
SPSI(SPI Parking Services, Inc) 100.00% 100.00%,
SLPC (Shangri-La Plaza Corporation) 100.00% 100.00%,
KS5A (KSA Realty Corporation) 52.90% 52.90%
Real Estate:
TPPT (Tvory Post Properties, Inc) 100.00%: 100,00%%
KRC 100.00% 100.00%
MBPI (Martin B. Properties, Inc.) 100.00% 100.00%
NCRI (New Contour Realty, Inc.) 100.00% 100.00%
PSI (Perfect Sites, Inc.) 100.00% 100.00%
SFBHI (Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, Inc.) 100.00% 100.00%
SGCHIL (Shang Global City Holdings, Inc.) 100.00%: 100.00%
Property Management:
KMSC (KPPl Management Services Corporation) 100.00% 100.00%
SPMSI (Shang Property Management Services,
Inc.) 100.00% 100.00%
(Others:
Gipsey (BVI Company) 100.00% 100.00%
SHIL (Silver Hero Investment Limited BV
Company) 100,004 100.00%
ELHI (EPHI Logistics Holdings, Inc.) 60.00% 60.00%

Except for Gipsey and SHIL, which were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and uses Hong
Kong dollars (HKD) as its functional currency, all the other subsidiaries were incorporated in the
Philippines which uses Peso as their functional currency.
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New and Amended Standards and Interpretations
The Group applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for
annual periods begimning on or after January 1, 2015,

The nature and the impact of each new standard and amendment are described below:

*  Amendments to PAS 19, Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

PAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they should
be attributed to periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify that, if the
amount of the contributions is independent of the number of vears of service, an entity is
permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period in
which the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service.
This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, This
amendment is not relevant to the Group, since none of the entities within the Group has defined
benefit plans with contributions from employees or third parties.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cyele)

These improvements are effective from July 1, 2014 and the Group has applied these amendments
for the first time in these consolidated financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these
amendments have no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements,

»  PFRS 2, Share-based Payment — Definition of Vesting Condition

This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the definitions

of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

= A performance condition must contain a service condition

= A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service

» A performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of
another entity in the same group

» A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition

» I the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the vesting
period, the service condition is not satisfied.

= PFRS 3, Business Combinations — Accownting for Comtingent Consideration in o Business
Combination
The amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after July |, 2014. It elarifies that a contingent consideration that is not classified as
equity is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not it talls within
the scope of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (or PFRS 9,
Financial Instruments, if carly adopted).

» PFRS 8, Operating Segments — Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the

Total of the Reportable Segmenis ' Assets to the Entity's Assets

The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that.

»  An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in the standard, including a brief description of operating segments that have been
aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and gross margins) used to assess
whether the segments are ‘similar’,

»  The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar o the required
disclosure for segment liahilities.
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»  PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets — Revaluation Method —
Propovtionate Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the asset may
be revalued by reference to the observable data on either the gross or the net carrying amount. In
addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the difference between the gross and
carrying amounts of the asset. The adoption of this amendment did not have any impact in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets are not carried at revalued amounts,

»  PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures — Key Management Personnel
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is an
entity that provides key management personnel services, is a related party subject to the related
parly disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose the
expenses incurred for management services,

Annual Improvements to PERSs (201 1-2013 cyvele)

These improvements are effective from July 1, 2014 and the Group has applied these amendments
for the first time m these consolidated fmancial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these
amendments have no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. They include:

= PFRS 3, Business Combinations — Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope
exceptions within PFRS 3;
= Joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 3.
»  This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the [inancial statements of the joint
arrangement itself,

= PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement — Portfolio Exception
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13
can be applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts
within the scope of PAS 39 for PFRS 9, if early adopted).

*  PAS 40, Tnvestment Property
The description of angillary services in PAS 40 differentiates between the investment property
and owner-occupied property (i.e., property, plant and equipment). The amendment is applied
prospectively and clarifies that PFRS 3, and not the description of ancillary services in PAS 40,
is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset or business combination. The
description of ancillary services in PAS 40 only differentiates between investment property and
owner-occupied property (i.e., property, plant and equipment}.

Future Changes in Accounting Policies

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of
the Group's consolidated financial statements are disclosed below, The Group intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Deferved

=  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities thar
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion, except
when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11 or
involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized based on stage of
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completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction materials and where
the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buver on a continuous basis will also be
accounted for based on stage of completion. The SEC and the FRSC have deferred the
effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the International
Accounting  Standards Board ([ASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of
the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is
completed. The Group is currently assessing the impact and plans to adopt this interpretation on
the required effective date once adopted locally.

Effective January 1, 2016

»  PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associales and Joint
Ventures - Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments)
These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting consolidated financial
statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity that measures all
of its subsidiaries at fair value and that only a subsidiary of an investment entity that is not an
investment entity itself and that provides support services to the investment entily parent is
consolidated, The amendments also allow an investor (that is not an investment entity and has an
investment entity associate or joint venture), when applying the equity method, to retain the fair
value measurement applied by the investment entity associate or joinl venture to its interests in
subsidiaries. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2016. These amendments are not applicable to the Group since the Group does not have
investment entity associates or joint venture.

»  PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements — Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
{Amendments)
The amendments will allow entitics to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements, Entities already
applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial statements
will have to apply that change retrospectively. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments will
not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

»  PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements — Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests (Amendments)

The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is retained.
In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not
apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common
control of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group.
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PAS 1, Presemtation of Financial Starements - Disclosure Initiative {Amendments)

The amendments are intended to assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the

presentation and disclosure requirements in PFRS. They clarify the following:

*  That entities shall not reduce the understandability of their financial statements by either
obscuring material information with immaterial information; or aggregating material items
that have different nature or functions

* That specific line items in the statement of income and OCT and the statement of financial
position may be disaggregated

* That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial
statements

*  That the share of OCI of associated and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Early application is permitted and entities do not need to disclose that fact as the amendments
are considered to be clarifications that do not affect an entity’s accounting policies or accounting
estimates. The Group is currently assessing the impact of these amendments on its consolidated
financial staterments,

PERS 14, Reguiatory Deferral Accounis

PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting pelicies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFES 14 must present
the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the statement of financial position and
present movements in these account balances as separate line items in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosures on the nature of, and
risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its
financial statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2016. Since the Group is an existing PFRS preparer, this standard will not apply.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture — Bearer Plants
[ Amendments)

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants, Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of
bearcr plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After
initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before
maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer plants,
PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Gavernment Assistance, will
apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any
impact to the Group as the Group does not have any bearer plants.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets — Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather
than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
based method cannot be used 1o depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used
in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are retrospectively
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption
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permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group as the Group
has not used a revenue-based method 1o depreciate its non-current assets,

Annuval Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cvele)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) which are effective on or after
January 1, 2016 are expected to have no impact to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. These mclude;

» PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations — Changes in Methods
af Disposal
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through sale
to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be a new
plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan, There is, therefore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies that
changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification.

»  PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Servicing Contracts

PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing invelvement in a transferred
asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that
includes a fee can constitute continuing invelvement in a financial asset. An entity must assess
the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing involvement in
PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required, The amendment is to be applied
such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement will
need to be done retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are not required to be
provided for any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the
amendments,

= PFRS 7 - Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements
This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial report
unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the most recent annual
report,

v PAS 19, Employee Benefits — regional market issue regarding discount rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather
than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality
corporate bonds in that currency, government hond rates must be used.

= PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting — disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim
financial report’
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures must
cither be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the
interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim financial
report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).

Effective Jomeary 1, 2018

»  PFRS 9. Financial Instruments
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of PFRS 9, Financial Instrumenis. The new
standard (renamed as PFRS 9) reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and
replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous
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versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1. 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective
application is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of
previous versions of PFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013) is permitted if the date of initial application
is before February 1, 2015. The Group did not early adopt PFRS 9.

The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no
impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities.

IFRS 15, Reverue from Contracis with Customers

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a
new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services (o a customer. The
principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognizing
revenile.

The new revenue standard is applicable 1o all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on
the required effective date once adopted locally.

IFRES 16, Leases
On January 13, 2016, the JASB issued its new standard, IFRS 16, Leases, which replaces
International Accounting Standards (LAS) 17, the current leases standard, and the related
Interpretations.

Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating or finance
leases in accordance with TAS 17. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model. Under this
model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most leases on their balance
sheets, and subseguently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize interest on the lease
liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or less or for which the
underlying asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements.

The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under TAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose
more information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual
value.

The new standard is effective for anmual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, Entities
may early adopt IFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. When adopting IFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective
or a modified retrospective approach, with options to use certain transition reliefs. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
effective date once adopted locally.
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Business Combinations and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value
and the amount of any NCI in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the NCI in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in
administralive expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and perlinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

When such an acquisition is not judged to be an acquisition of a business, it 15 nol treated as a
business combination. Rather, the ¢ost to acquire the corporate entity is allocated between the
identifiable assets and liabilitics of the entity based on their relative fair values at the acquisition
date. Accordingly, no goodwill or additional deferred tax arises.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of PAS 39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized either in profit or loss or as a change to OCL If the contingent consideration is not within
the scope of PAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate PFRS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for NCI, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred. the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used
to measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date, If the re-assessment still results in
an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then
the gain is recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units (CGU) that are expected to
benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are
assigned 1o those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the CGU
retained.
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Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
current or noncurent classification.

An asset 1s current when it is:

= expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

= held primarily for the purpose of trading,

= expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent,
A liahility is current when;

» it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

» it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

» it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
afler the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as financial assets at FVPL and AFS financial
assets and non-financial assets such as investment properties, at fair value at each reporting date.
Additional fair value related disclosures including fair values of financial instruments measured at
amortized cost are disclosed in Note 34.

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

= in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
» in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming thal market participants act in their

gconomic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate ecconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs

and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

*  Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

=  Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

»  Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks that eamn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value,

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial instruments are recognized itially at fair value, adjusted for directly attributable
transaction costs in the case of financial instruments not at FVPL. The Group recognizes a financial
instrument in the consolidated statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, which is the
date that the Group commits 1o purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Classification

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVFL, loans and receivables, held 1o maturity
(HTM) financial assets, and AFS financial asscts as appropriate. Financial liabilities are classified as
financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilitics, The Group determines the classification
of its financial instruments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates the
designation at each reporting date. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the group has no HTM
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL.

Financial Assets or Liabilities af FFVPL

Financial instruments at FVPL include financial assets or liabilities held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition as financial assets or liabilities at FVPL.
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Financial assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts. Dividends, interests and gains or losses on held for trading financial instruments are
recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial instruments may be designated at initial recognition as financial assets or liabilities at
FVPL when any of the following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities
or recognizing the gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the assets or liabilities are part of
a group of financial instruments which are managed and their performances are evaluated on fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
instrument containg an embedded derivative that would need to be separately recorded.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group has investments in shares of stock of various publicly
listed companies which are designated as financial assets at FVPL.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Afler initial measurement, loans and receivables are
subscquently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition, and includes fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in interest income in the profit or loss, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the loans and receivables are derecognized, impaired or amortized.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group’s loans and receivables consist of cash in banks, cash
equivalents, cash in escrow, receivables (except for advances 1o contractors and suppliers) and
refundable deposits.

AFS Financial Assets

AFS financial assets include equity investments. Equity investments classified as AFS are those that
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at FVPL. Financial assets may be
designated at initial recognition as AFS financial assets if they are purchased and held indefinitely,
and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.

AFS financial assets are carried at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Changes in fair value of such assets are accounted for in OCI in the cumulative changes in fair value
of AFS financial assets until the financial assets are derecognized or until they are determined to be
impaired. When an AFS financial asset is derecognized or determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recorded in OCI are recognized in profit or loss.

Investments in equity investments that do notl have quoted market prices in an active market and
whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are carried at their cost, less any impairment in value.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group’s investment in proprietary ¢lub shares and listed and
unlisted shares of stock are classified as ATS financial assets,

(Mher Financial Liabilities

This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading nor designated as financial
liabilities at FYPL upon inception of the lability.
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Other financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value, less directly attributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or
premium on seftlement, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized or amortized.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group’s other {inancial liabilities include accounts payable
and other current liabilities (except for advanced rentals, customers® deposits, reservation payables,
output value added tax (VAT), deferred output VAT and withholding taxes), bank loans. deposits
from tenants and accrued employee benefits (excluding defined benefit liability).

Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the reporting date.
For investments and all other financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is
determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using arm’s-length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another mstrument, which is substantially the
same; and discounted cash flow (DCF) analvsis and other valuation models. If the fair value cannot
be measured reliably, the financial instruments are measured at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration paid, in case of an asset, and received, in case of a liability. All transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of investment.

Day I Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a Day 1 difference) in the profit or loss unless it
qualifies for recognition as some other type of assel. In cases where the data used are not
observable, the difference between the transaction price and medel value is only recognized in the
profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1 difference.

(fsetting

A financial asset and a financial lability are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the
recognized amounts, and there is an intention to setile on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreement, and the
related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of Financial Assels

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has
oceurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

a. Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
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assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss
is recognized in the profit or loss. Interest income (recorded as finance income in the profit or
loss) continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group. If, in
a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the profit or loss.

AFS Financial Assets
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. “Significant’
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or loss, is
removed from OCI and recognized in the profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
investments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognized in OCL

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or 'prolong’ requires judgment. In making this
judgment, the group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or event to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial Assets Carried af Cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment Joss has been incurred on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or
on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the cuirent market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
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Derecognition

a.  Financial Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
finangial assets) is primarily derecognized (ie. removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

»  The rights to reccive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

» The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement: and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

b, Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of an original liability
and a recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the profit or loss.

Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale are properties being constructed or acquired for sale in the ordinary course of
business, rather than for rental or capital appreciation, and are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value (NRV), IRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business,
based on market prices at the reporting date, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
to sell.

Condominium Units Held for Sale

Cost of condominium units held for sale represent accumulated costs of the unsold units of the
completed Projects. Cost includes those directly atiributable to the construction of the Projects such
as cost of Jand, direct materials, borrowing costs, professional and consultancy fees, and project
management costs, which are allocated to the unsold units.

Construction in Progress

Cost of construction in progress represents the accumulated costs for the construction and
development of the ongoing Projects. It includes those that are directly atiributable to the
construction of the Projects such as cost of land, direct materials, borrowing costs, professional and
consultancy fees, and project management costs,
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Oither Current Assels

Prepaid Commission and Expenses

Prepaid commission and expenses include expenditures already paid but not vet incurred and from
which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the Group within the normal operating eycle.
These are measured at cost less allowance for impairment losses, if any.

Creditable Withholding Tax (CWT)
CWT represents taxes withheld for goods and services provided. CWTs can be claimed as credit
against income tax due.

Investments in Associates and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries,

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity
method.

On acquisition of the investment, any difference between the cost of the investment and the
mvestor's share in the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets, hiabilities and contingent
liabilities is accounted for as follows:

a. Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment.
However, amortization of that goodwill is not permitted and is therefore not included in the
determination of the Group’s share in the associate’s profits or losses.

b. Any excess of the Group’s share in the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilitics over the cost of the investment is excluded from the carrying
amount of the investment and is instead included as income in the determination of the Group’s
share in the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized at
cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group’s share
of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the
associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not individually
tested for impairment.

The profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or a joint
venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCL In addition,
when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate or a joint venture, the
Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or a joint

I AT



- 18-

The aggregate of the Group’s share in net profit or loss of an associate or a joint venture is reported
on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income outside operating profit and
represents profit or loss after tax and NCI in the subsidiaries of the associate or a joint venture. If the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or a joint
venture, the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.

The financial statements of the associate or a joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Group, When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with
those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary (o recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or a joint venture. At cach reporting date, the
Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or a joint
venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrving value, and then
recognizes the loss as ‘Share in net profit (loss) of an associate and a joint venture’ in the profit or
loss,

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or a joint venture upon loss of significant influence and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in the profit or loss.

Investment Properties
[nvestment properties consist of land and buildings that are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not owner-occupied by the companies in the Group.

Investment properties are measured initially at their costs, including related transaction costs. The
cost of a purchased investment property comprises of its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes, professional fees and other costs necessary to bring
the investment properties to the condition necessary for them to be capable of being used.

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value which reflects market
conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recorded in
profit or loss in the year in which they arise including the corresponding tax effect.  Fair value is
based in an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer, applying a
valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Comimittee.

An investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as investment property, or for
which the market has become less active, continues 1o be measured at fair value.

A subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be reliably measured. Repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Investment properties are derecognized when they are disposed of or permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. Any gain or loss on the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognized in the profit or loss. Gain or loss on
disposal of investment properly is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset at the date of disposal.
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Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another
party. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a
view to sell.

When the Group completes the construction or development of a self-constructed investment
property that will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount shall be recognized in profit or loss. If a land or building and
building improvement classified as “Property and equipment” becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment
up to the date of change in use. For transfer from investment property carried at fair value to
property and equipment or construction in progress, the investment property’s deemed cost shall be
its fair value at the date of change in use.

Real Estate Development Projects

The real estate development projects are undertaken by the subsidiaries and are carried at cost less
any impaimment in value, Cost primarily consists of acquisition cost of the property being
constructed, air rights, expenditures for the development and construction of the real estate project
and borrowing costs incurred, if any, in the acquisition of qualifying assets during the
construction period and up to the date of completion of construction.

Upon completion of the properties, certain portion of the real estate are accounted for as investment
properties if the planned purpose of these properties meet the definition of investment properties.

Upon completion of the properties which are pre-determined for self-use purpose, the properties are
classified as *Property and equipment’.

Upon the completion of the properties which are pre-determined for sale purpose, the properties are
classified as ‘Properties held for sale” in current assets.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The initial costs of property and eguipment consist of their purchase prices and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition and location for their intended use.
Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repair
and maintenance costs, are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which the costs are incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional
costs of property and equipment.
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Depreciation and amortization commence once the assets are available for use and are provided on
all property and equipment at rates calculated to write off the costs, less estimated residual values
based on prices prevailing at the reporting date, of each asset evenly over its expected useful life as
follows:

Category Useful Lives In Years
Building improvements 25
Transportation equipment 2t05
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 2to4

Depreciation or amortization ceases at the earlier of the date when the asset is classified as either
investment property or property held for sale and the date the asset is derecognized. The Group uses
straight-line method as the basis of depreciation to systematically allocate the cost of the assets over
the following estimated useful lives.

The assets’ estimated useful lives (EUL), and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from
the items of property and equipment, The assets’ estimated residual values are reviewed periodically
and adjusted if appropriate.

Fully depreciated and amortized property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are
no longer in use, and no further depreciation and amortization are charged to profit or loss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the nonfinancial assets
consisting of investments in associates and joint venture, real estate development projects, property
and equipment and goodwill may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU's fair value less cost o
sell and its value in usc and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and iz
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset, Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in profit or
loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired assets.
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The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years, For longer periods, a long-
term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows afler the fifth vear,

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of income in expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for properties previously
revalued with the revaluation taken to OCL For such properties, the impairment is recognized in OCI
up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at cach reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that the previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. [f such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the
case, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognized in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the depreciation or amortization charge is adjusted
in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

The following eriteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets:

Trvestments in Associates and Joint Venture

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize
impairment loss on the Group’s investments in associates and joint venture. The Group determines
at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment is impaired. If that is
the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the fair value of
the investee company and the carrying value of the investment. The difference is recognized in
profit or loss.

Goodwill

Impairment lesting for goodwill is performed annually and when circumstances indicate that its
carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
CGU or group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated is less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be
reversed in future periods.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an gntity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dieposits from Tenants
Deposits from tenants are carried at the present value of future cash flows using appropriate discount

rates. The difference between the present value and the actual deposit received is treated as
additional rental incentive which is recorded under “Deferred lease income™ in the statement of
financial position and are recognized as rental income using the straight-line method over the term of
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Eefundable Deposits
Refundable deposits represent cash received from customers for rent and utilities which are expected
to be returned after a specified period of time, or when certain conditions are satisfied.

Provisions
Pravisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to setile the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. When the
Group expects a provision or loss to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain and its amount is estimable. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss, net of any reimbursement.

Equity

Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital (APIC)

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. When the shares are sold at a
premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to the “APIC™ account,
When shares are issued for a consideration other than cash, the proceeds are measured at the fair
value of consideration received. In case the shares are issued to extinguish or settle a liability of
ihe Parent Company, the shares are measured either at the fair value of the shares issued or fair
value of the liability settled, whichever is more reliably determinable.

Treasury Shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (freasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted
from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments, Any difference between the carrying amount
and the consideration, if reissued, is also recognized in the APIC. When the shares are retired, the
capital stock account is reduced by its par value and the excess of cost over par value, upon
retirement, is charged to APIC when the shares are issued.

Other Components of Equity

These are recorded for items that are directly recognized in equity, which include cumulative
changes in fair value of AFS financial assets, cumulative translation adjustments and remeasurement
gains (losses) on defined benefit liability. They are measured either at gross amount or net of tax
effect depending on the tax laws and regulations that apply.

Other components of equity are derecognized when the related asset or liability where they arise are
derecognized.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings include cumulative profits attributable to the Parent Company’s stockholders, and
reduced by dividends. Retained earnings also include effect of changes in accounting policies as
may be required by the standards” transitional provisions.
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Dividend Distribution

The Group recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Parent Company
when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group.
As per the corporate laws in the Philippines, a distribution is authorized when it is declared by the
Board. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

Eevenue and Cost/Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue and expense can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
collection or payment is made, Revenue is measured al the fair value of consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and
duties.

The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determime if it is
acting as a principal or as an agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as the principal in all
of its major revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has
pricing latitude and is also exposed to properties held for sale and credit risks.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue and expenses are
recognized:

Condominium Sales

The Group assesses whether it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group when
the contract price is collectible. Collectability of the contract price is demonstrated by the buyer’s
commitment to pay, which is supported by the buyer’s initial and continuous investments that
motivates the buyer to honor its obligation. Collectability is also assessed by considering factors
such as collections and credit standing of the buyer.

Revenue from condominium sales is accounted for using the full acerual method. In accordance
with Philippine Interpretations Committee Q&A No. 2006-01, the percentage of completion (POC)
method is used to recognize income from condominium sales where the Group has material
obligations under the sales contract 1o complete the real estate project after the unit is sold, the
equitable interest has been transferred to the buyer, construction is beyond preliminary stage (ie.,
engineering, design work, construction contracts execution, site clearance and preparation,
excavation and the building foundation are finished), and the costs incurred or to be incurred can be
measured reliably. Under this method, revenue is recognized as the related obligations are fulfilled,
measured principally on the basis of the estimated completion of a physical proportion of the
contract work,

Any excess of collections over the recognized revenue are included i the “Customers’ deposits™
aceount in the consolidated statement of financial position. If the revenue recognition ¢riteria under
the full acerual or POC method are not met, the deposit method is applied until all the conditions for
recognizing sales are met, Until revenue from condominium sales is recognized, cash received from
customers are recognized also as part of “Customers’ deposits.”

(Cost of real estate sales is recognized consistent with the revenue recognition method applied. Cost
of condominium units sold before the completion of the development is determined on the basis of
the acquisition cost of the land plus its full development costs, which include estimated costs for
future development works.

The cost of condominium sales recognized in profit or loss on their disposal is determined with
reference to the specific cost incurred on the property, allocated to saleable arca based on relative
size and takes into account the POC used for revenue recognition purposes.
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Estimated loss on unsold units is recognized in profit or loss immediately when it is probable that
total project costs will exceed total contract revenue.

Rental

Rental revenues from the leasing of properties held under operating lease are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the periods of the respective leases or on a certain percentage of gross
revenue of the lessees, whichever is appropriate,

When the revenue recognition criteria are not met, cash received from lessees are recognized as
Advanced rental, until the conditions for recognizing rental income are met.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the asset.
Interest income from accretion of installment contracts receivable is recognized using the EIR
methad,

Dividend Income
Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when the Board of the investee company approved the dividend.

Other Service Income

Administration and management services, customer lounge fees, banner income, income from
cinema operations and other service income are recognized when the related services have been
rendered. Revenues from auxiliary services such as handling, sale of scrap materials, import break
bulk and brokerage are recognized when services are provided or when goods are delivered. Money
received or amounts billed in advance for rendering of services or delivery of goods are recorded as
unearned income until the earning process is complete.

Commission Expense

Commissions paid to sales and marketing agents on the sale of pre-completed units are deferred
when recoveries are reasonably expected and are charged to expense in the period in which the
related revenues are recognized as eamed.  Accordingly, when the POC method is used,
commissions are likewise charged to expense in the period the related revenues are recognized.

General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses are recognized as incurred.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, is a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset.

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. there iz a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. a renewal option is exercised or exlension is granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or
there is a substantial change to the asset.
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When a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances give rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (¢) or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Group as the Lessar

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the assets are classificd as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the rental rcceivables or customers’ deposits and
recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Emplovee Benefits

Retirement Bernefits

The net defined benefit lability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted
for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

= gervice cost,

* net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset, and
»  remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset.

Yervice costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routing settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailmeni occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

MNet interest on the net defined henefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies, Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to
the Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or
expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the
settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value of plan assets is higher than the present value
of defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
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The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditures required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement
is wirtually certain.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an
emplovee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s deeision to accept an offer of
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

A liability and an expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of the benefit and when the entity recognizes related restructuring
costs. Initial recognition and subsequent changes to termination benefit are measured in accordance
with the nature of the employee benefit, as cither post-employment benefit, short-term employee
benefit, or other long-term emplovee benefit. Benefits falling due more than twelve months from the
reporting date are discounted to their present values.

Employee Leave Entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are accrued to the
employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period is recognized for services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period, The liability for leave expected to be settled more than twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting period are discounted to its present value.

Foreign Currencies

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in Peso, which is also the Parent
Company’s functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines their functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and has elected to recycle the gains or losses that
arise from using this method.

Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entitics at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions, Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
{reated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.¢., translation
differences on itemns whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also
recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Crroup Companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of Gipsey and SHIL, foreign subsidiaries with functional
and presentation currency of Hong Kong Dollar (HK$), are translated into Peso al the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income statements are translated at exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for
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consolidation are recognized in OCL. On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the component of OCI
relating to that particular foreign subsidiary is recognized in profit or loss.

Income Tax

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authoritics. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

In the sale of condominium units resulting to recognition of installment contracts receivable, full
recognition for income tax purposes is applied when more than 25% of the selling price has been
collected in the year of sale. Otherwise, the installment method is applied.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

»  where the deferred tax lability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an assct or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss; and

= in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest in joint arrangements, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foresceable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of
excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and net
operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward benefits of
excess MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except:

= where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable profit or loss; and

= in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet dale and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Dieferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year

when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the consolidated statement of income is recognized
outside the consolidated statement of income. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same tax authority. Subsidiaries operating in the Philippines file income tax return on an
individual basis. Thus, the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arc offset on a per entity
basis.

VAT
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except:

» where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax
authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

» receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of
“Input tax and other current assets™ or “Accounts payable and other current liabilities™ accounts,
respectively, in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Earnings Per Share

Eamings per share is computed by dividing the total comprehensive income and net income
attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company for the year by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year adjusted to give retroactive effect to any stock dividends declared
during the year.

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the total comprehensive income and net income
atiributable to equity holders of the Parent Company for the year by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the adjusted total comprehensive income and net
income attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company for the year by the weighted average
number of shares taking into account the effects of all potential dilutive common shares.

Segment Reporting
For management purposes, the Group is organized and managed scparately according to the nature

of the business. These operating businesses are the basis upon which the Group reports its segment
information presented in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

An operating segment is a component of an entity:

a. that engages in business activities from which it may cam revenues and incur expenses
(including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same
entity);

b, with operating results regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources (o be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance; and

¢. for which discrete financial information is available.
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Contingent liabilities arc not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date

Any post year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s finaneial pesition
at the reporting date (adjusting event) is reflected in the consolidated financial statements, Post
vear-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material to the
consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements based on evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances at the
reporting date. Future events may occur which can cause the assumptions used in arriving at those
judgments and estimates to change. The effects of any changes will be reflected in the consolidated
financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Tudgmenls

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on
ameunts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Valuation of mvestment Properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. The Group’s financial controller and the managers of each property
determine the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of the investment properties.
External valuers are involved in the valuation of investment propertics as decided annually by the
Group. The selection criteria for the external valuers include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Group analyzes the movements in the values of investment properties
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Group verifies the major inputs by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Based on the analysis performed by management, the Group has concluded that the fair value
adjustment in 2014 and 2013 is insignificant. In 2015, the management determined the fair value
adjustment to be significant and reflect the current economic condition, The key assumptions used to
determine the fair value of the properties and sensitivity analyses are provided in Note 13.

Distinction between Properties Held For Sale, Investment Properties and Property and Equipment

The Group determines whether a property is to be classified as a property held for sale or an
investment property through the following:

I
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» Properties held for sale comprise propertics that are held for sale in the ordinary course of
business. These are condominium units that the Group developed or is developing and intends
1o sell.

* [nvestment properties comprise land and buildings, which are not occupied substantially for use
in the operations nor for sale in the ordinary course of business of the Group, but are held
primarily to earn rental income or capital appreciation.

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property or an item of property
and equipment. In making its judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by the Group. Property and equipment generate
cash flows that are attributable not only to them but also to the other assets used in the operations of
the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes. If these portions cannot
be sold separately at the reporting date, the property is accounted for as an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes. Judgment is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify
as an investment property. The Group considers each property separately in making its judgment.

The carrving values of properties held for sale, investment properties, and property and equipment as
of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are disclosed in Notes 8, 13 and 16, respectively.

Assessing Significant Influence over Associates

The Group determined that it exercises significant influence over all its associates by considering,
among others, its ownership interest (holding 20% or more than of the voting power in the investee),
representation on the board of directors and participation in policy-making processes of the
associates, and other contractual terms,

Classification of foint arrangements

The Group’s investment in joint venture is structured in separate incorporated entities. The joint
arrangement agreements require unanimous consent from all parties to the agreement for the relevant
activities identified. The Group and the parties to the agreement only have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture through the terms of the contractual arrangements.

Property Acquisition and Business Combination

The Group acquires real estate properties. At the time of acquisition, the Group considers whether
the acquisition represents an acquisition of a business or a group of assets and liabilities. The Group
accounts Tor an acquisition as a business combination if it acquires an integrated set of business
processes in addition to the real estate property. The consideration is made 1o the extent that the
significant business processes are acquired and the additional services to be provided by the
subsidiary.

When the acquisition of subsidiary does not constitute a business, it is accounted for as an
acquisition of a group of assets and liabilities. The purchase price of the acquisition is allocated to
the assets and liabilities acquired based upon their relative fair values at the date of acquisition, no
eoodwill or deferred tax is recognized.

In 2014, the Group accounted for the acquisition of the 20% equity interest of Alphaland

Development, Ine. (Alphaland) in SGCPI and FBSHI as a business combination achieved in stages
(see Note 12).
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Classification of Leases as Operating Lease

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The
Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and
the fair value of the asset, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

The carrying values of investment properties as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are disclosed in
Note 13.

Impairment of AFS Equity Financial Assels

The Group treats AFS equity financial assets as impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or whether other objective evidence of impairment
exists. The determination of what is “significant™ and “prolonged” requires judgment. The Group
generally treats a decline of 20% or more of the original cost as “significant” and a period greater
than six months as “prolonged™. In addition, the Group evaluates other factors including normal
volatility in share prices for quoted securities, future cash flows and discount factors for unquoted
securities.

The carrying values of AFS equity financial assets are disclosed in Note 15. Based on
management’s assessment, there has been no significant or prolonged decling in the fair value of
AFS equity financial assets, thus, no impairment loss was recognized in 2013, 2014 and 2013,

Determination of the Functional Currency

Based on the economie substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Parent Company,
management determined its functional currency to be the Peso. It is the currency that mainly
influences the revenues, and costs and expenses of the Group.

Classification of Financial Instruments

The Group classifies a financial instrument, or its component, on initial recognition as a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of financial asset, financial liability and cquity instrument. The
substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVPL, loans and receivables, HI'M and AFS
financial assets, Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are classified as financial liabilities at FVPL
and other financial liabilities, The Group determines the classification at initial recognition and re-
evaluates the classification at every reporting date.

Revenue Recognition

Selecting an appropriate revenue recognition method for a particular real estate sale transaction
requires certain judgments based on the buyer’s commitment on the sale which may be ascertained
through the significance of the buyer’s initial investment and completion of development. The
buyer’s commitment is evaluated based on collections, credit standing and location of the property.
Completion of development is determined based on engineer’s judgments and estimates on the
physical portion of contract work done and the completion of development beyond the preliminary
stage.

Caondominium sales recognized in 2015, 2014 and 2013 are reflected in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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Contingencies

The Group is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimates of the probable costs
for the resolution of these claims have been developed in consultation with the outside legal counsel
handling the defense in these matters and are based upon analyses of potential reports. Based on
management’s assessment, these proceedings will not have a material effect on the Group’s [inancial
position and performance (see Note 32).

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments 1o the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities are as follows:

Purchase Price Allocation in Business Combination,

The acquisition method requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments to allocate the
purchase price to the fair market values of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities at
acquisition date. It also requires the acquirer to recognize goodwill. On April 30, 2014, the Group
acquired the 20% equily interest of Alphaland in SGCPI and FBSHIL The Group recognized
goodwill from the business combination as disclosed in Notes 12.

Valuation of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments carried at fair values require the use of accounting estimates. While
significant components of fair value measurement are determined using verifiable objective
evidence, it would differ if the Group utilizes a different valuation methodology, Any changes in the
fair values of financial instruments will affect profit or loss and equity.

The fair values of financial instruments on initial recognition are normally the transaction prices.
These prices are indicative of actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis,

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL and AFS financial assets traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market prices used for
financial assets held for trading are the current bid prices. The Group’s installment contracts
receivable’s and deposits from tenants” fair values are based on the present values of estimated
future cash flows discounted using prevailing pre-tax discount rates at the reporting date. The fair
values of the other financial instruments are estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rates that are available to the Group at the reporting date for
similar financial instruments. The fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments is disclosed in Note 34,

Estimation of Allowance for Impaivment of Receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for impairment of receivables at a level considered adequate to
provide for potentially uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by
management on the basis of the factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors
include, but are not limited to. the length of the Group’s relationship with the customer, the
customer’s payment behavior and known market factors, The Group reviews the age and status of
receivables. and identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowance on a continuous basis.

Bad debts recognized in 2015, 2014 and 2013 are disclosed in Note 25. The cairying values of the
Group's receivables and allowance for impairment of receivable as of December 31, 2015 and 2014
are disclosed in Note 7.
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Estimation of POC of the Profects

The Group’s revenue and cost recognition policies require management to make use of estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenue and costs. The Group’s revenue from
condominium sales, recognized based on the POC. are measured principally on the basis of the
actual costs incurred to date over the total estimated project costs and by reference to the estimated
completion of a physical proportion of the contract work. The total project costs are estimated by
the Group’s technical staff and are independently reviewed by the Group’s third party consultants.
At each reporting date, these estimates are reviewed and revised to reflect the current conditions,
when necessary,

OSP is 99% and 88% complete as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. SSP is 53% and
28% complete as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Rise is 10% and 1.88%
complete as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Shangri-La at the Fort is 70% and
54.73% complete as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Estimation of NRV

Properties held for sale are carried at the lower of cost and NRV. NRV for completed condominium
units is the estimated selling price of condominium unit less estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. NRV in respect of condominium units under construction is the estimated selling price of a
condominium unit less estimated costs to complete the construction, less estimated time value of
money to the date of completion and less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, carrying values of the Group's properties held for sale are
disclosed in Note 8,

Determination of Fair Values of Investment Properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined by independent real estate valuation experts
using recognized valuation techniques. The fair value of the Group’s land is determined using the
market comparison method. Under the market comparison method {or market comparison
approach), a properly’s fair value is estimated based on comparable transactions. The market
comparison approach is based upon the principle of substitution under which a potential buyer will
not pay more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute property. In theory, the
best comparable sale would be an exact duplicate of the subject property and would indicate, by the
known selling price of the duplicate, the price for which the subject property could be sold. The unit
of comparison applied by the Group is the price per square meter {sqm). The market comparison
approach is often used in combination with either DCT or the income capitalization method as many
inputs to these methods are based on market comparison. Under the direct income capitalization
method, a property’s fair value is estimated based on stabilized net operating income divided by an
appropriate capitalization rate. In some cases, fair values are determined based on recent real estate
transactions with similar characteristics and in the location to those of the Group’s assets. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
value estimates. In making its judgment, the Group considers information from variety of sources
including:

a. current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location
(or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;

b, recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the transactions that oecurred at those prices; and

c. stabilized net operating income based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from
the terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (where possible) from external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same location and condition, and using
pre-tax discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amounts

ENNERAERO



<34

The significant methods and assumptions used by the valuers in estimating fair values of investment
properties are set out in Note 13. The fair values, which are also the carrying values of investment
properties as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are disclosed in Note 13,

EUL of Property and Equipment

The Group estimates the EUL of property and equipment based on the internal technical evaluation
and experience with similar assets, EUL of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and
updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical and
commercial obsolescence and other limits on the use of property and equipment. There were no
changes in EUL of the Group’s property and equipment. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
carrying values of property and equipment are disclosed in Note 16.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets, Including Goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all nonfinancial assets at
every reporting date. Nonfinancial assets with indefinite life such as goodwill are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when impairment indicators exist. Other nonfinancial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the camying amounts may not be
recoverable.

The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the

following:

»  significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;

»  significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

= significant negative industry or economic trends,

If any such indication exists or in case of nonfinancial assets with indefinite life, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognized. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a direct income
capitalization model, The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the direct income capitalization model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. Recoverable
amount is estimated for an individual asset or, if it is not possible, for the CGU to which the asset
belongs.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, based on management’s assessment, there are no indications of
impairment for the rest of the Group’s nonfinancial assets composed of properties held for sale, input
tax and other current assets, investment in associates, investment properties, real estate development
projects, property and equipment and goodwill.

The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the goodwill and project of KRC
are disclosed in Note 12,

Estimation of Retirement Benefit Costs

The cost of defined benefit plan as well as the present value of defined benefit obligation is
determined using actuarial valuations. Actuarial valuations involve making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and future retirement increases. Due to the complexity
of the valuations, the underlying assumptions and the long-term nature, defined benefit obligation is
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highly sensitive to changes in the assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
The net defined benefit liability as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are disclosed in Note 27.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with extrapolated
maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables and is modified accordingly with
estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases and retirement increases are based on
expected future inflation rates,

Further details about the assumptions used are provided in Note 27.

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews the carrving amounts of deferred tax assets (DTA) at each reporting date and
reduces them to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. The Group expects 1o generate
sufficient future taxable profits to allow its recognized deferred income tax assets to be utilized.
Deferred tax assets recognized and unrecognized as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are disclosed in
Note 29,

Segment Information

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed according to the nature of the products
and services marketed, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different
products and serves different markets. The Group has operations only in the Philippines. The Group
derives revenues from two main segments as follows:

FProperty Development
This business segment pertains to the sale of condominium units,

Leasing

This business segment pertains to the leasing operations of the Shangri-La Plaza Mall, The
Enterprise Center (TEC) and their related carpark operations. It also includes leasing of a portion of
the Parent Company’s land to EDSA Shangri-La Hotel and Resort, Inc., (ESHRI).

Other business segments pertain to property management services and the results of operations of
real estate entities and BV] companies.

Except for the rental revenue from ESHRI, revenues come from transactions with third parties.

There is no transaction with a single external customer that amounts to 10% or more of the Group®s
aggregate revenues.
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The segment assets, liabilities and results of operations of the reportable segments of the Group as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015 are as

follows:
Property
Development Leasing Others  Total Segments Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues:

Condominium sales P4,654,102,795 B P-  P4,654,102,798 B P4,654,102,793

Rental - 2,911,215,660 - 2,911,215,660 (234,892,595) 2,676,323,065

Cinema - 60,681,786 - 6,681,786 - 6L681.786
Cost of condominium sales (2.374,606,153) - - (2,374,666,153) — (2,374,666,153)
Gross profit 2.279,436,645 2,971,897 446 - 5.251,334,091 (234,892 595) 5,016,441,496
Crain on fair value adjustments of investment properties — 299,757.421 249,466,839 549,224,660 - 549,224,660
Cither income 69,526,198 26,810,620 59,444,643 155,781,461 (55,546,456) 100,235,005
Staff costs {285,092,535) {225,602.477) (11.816,126) (522,511,138} 63,039,331 (459471807
General and administrative expenses (127,598,294) (334,463,999 (2,257,434) (464,319,729) 243,225,706 (22L094,023)
Taxes and licenses (85,457,549 {133.361.518) (989.857) (219,809,224) - (219,809.224)
Unreimbursed share in Common expenses - {64,193,6506) - (64,193,650) (4,047,397) (68,241,053)
Depreciation and amortization {5,051,030) (17.311,634) (151.283) (22,513.967) — {22,513,967)
Insurance (348.295) {19,467 868) (10,867) (19827030} - (19,827,030)
Segment results 1,845,415,118 2.504,064,435 293,685,915 4,643,165,468 11,778,589 4,654.944,057
Interest income 210,470,968 26,010,082 391,966 236,873,016 - 236,873,016
Foreign exchange gains — net 5,431,079 TUR303 {109.86%9.320) (103,639,938) 109,888,676 6,248,738
Share in net income of asseciates and joint venture - - T0.658,121 70,658,121 - 70,658,121
Interest expense and bank charges (797,015) (200,757,934} (3,626) {201,558,575) - (201,558,575)
Provision for income tax (629,243,141) (481,766,268} (78,120,220  (1,18%,138.639) = (1,189.138.62%)
Net income for the year P1431,277,009  ¥#1,848,348,018 B176,733,836 B3.456.359,463 P121,667,265  P3.578,026,728
Segment assets P26.642.260,281 EB28,913,601,837 P4,924,138,923 B60.430,001,041 (P1,679.259,570) P58.800,741,471

Associate companies = 7.886,154,233 1,599,661.363 9.485,815,596  (8,993,867,246) 491,948,350
Total assets £26,642,260,281  B36,799,756,070  $6,523.800,286  B6Y,965.816,637 (B10,673,126,816) B59,292,689,821
Sepment liabilitics P17,519,174,720 B11.067.435.865 P5,174.985,209 P33,761,595,794 (B6,770,488,738) B26,991,107,056
Capital expenditures for the vear B81.491,637 B333,925.551 B113,933 P415,531,121 P195,551,464 B611,082,590
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The segment assets, liabilities and results of operations of the reportable segments of the Group as of and for the vear ended December 31,2014 are as
follows:

Property
Developiment Leasing Others  Total Segments Eliminaticns Consolidated
Revenues:
Condominivm sales B3 764,277,893 B P—  P3,764.277 893 P B3 764,277 803
Rental - 2,859,846,490 2,859, 846,490 (234,952 844 2,624 893 646
Clinema - 60,367 560 - (0,367,560 - 60,367 560
Cost of condominium sales (2,442.444,122) i - (2,442 444 123 - (2,442 444.122)
Gross profit [.321,833 771 2,920,214,050 - 4,242 047 821 {234,952 844) 4,007 094,977
Other income 34,802,220 22,905 278 B70.245 781 047,953,279 {55,546,454) RBU2,406,825
Staff costs (186,632 688) (208,960,295, 47,259 488 (348,335,495) 52,794,352 (295,539,143}
Gieneral and administrative expenses (75,981,444) (112,346, 74%) (4,081,0%4) (192,609, 285) (715,398) (193324 637)
Taxes and licenses (62360811 (153,852, 189) 10,766,158 (203,446,842} - (205,446, 842)
Unreimbursed share in common expenses s (32478 033) - {82,478,033) (3465 388 (85,943,421)
Depreciation and amortization (3,096,050 (17,149,771} {168.336) (20,414.157) - (20.414,157)
Insurance (245.975) (17.278,530} (95,762) (17,620.267) - {17,620,267)
Segrnent results 1,048,319,023 2.330,853,761 923,926,233 4323000017 (241,8385,732) 4.081,213,285
Interest income 248 006 607 20,273,985 180,437 269,361,029 - 269 361,029
Foreign exchange gains - net JR4.ET2 403,960 (24.449.955) (23.571,114) 24 451,844 250,730
Share in net losses of associates - - (9,692,903} (S.692,903) - (9,692,903}
[nterest expense and hank charges (1,077 448) (223,974.531) {14,363) {227,066,344) (227 N66,344)
Provision for income tax {425,532,864) (367,676,454) (202.292.421) (995.501,739) - (D93,501,739)
Metl income for the year BET] 000190 B 777 970,730 POR765T026  BIA36.627.946 (B217,433,888)  P3,119.194,058

Segrment assets BAZE21,E13,379 B23A02537.037  BO300625,1T1 Po3e00.076,187  (BO419.643 526} P34 271 332,661
AsS0CIale COTIpAnies — - 410,790,229 410,790,229 410,790,220
Total assets P33.821,813,379 P23.502537,637  P6,777415400 P64,101,766,416  (P9,419,643 526; P54 632,122 890

Seament labilities

P19.605,625,006

B12,198,862,918

£3,138,635,900

B36,042,123,914 (P10,045,334,248)

P26,897, 789,006

f— - —

Capital expenditures for the vear

P3 429,204

P183,315,521

P337.114

PI8T 081,839

($21,358,562)

P165.683,277
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The segment assets, liabilities and results of operations of the reportable segments of the Group as ol and for the year ended December 31, 2013 are as
follows:

Property
Development Leasing Onhers  Total Segments Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues:

Condominium sales B3.935,170,304 B P~ P3.935170,304 B— P3,935170,304

Rental - 2,545 947 448 - 2,345,947 448 (206,957,297) 2.338.990,151

Cinema = 36,448,809 = 56,448 800 - 56,448,509
Cost of condominium sales {2,591.014,104) — {2.991,014.104) —  (2,59]1,014,104)
Gross profit 944,156,200 2602396257 - 3,546,552.457 (206,957,297) 3,339,595,160
Loss on sale of investment property - (317,379,436) - (317,379.436) 317379430 —
Other income 17,182,931 660,350,121 226,158,282 903,591 334 (791,199,103} 112392.231
Staff costs (60,238,037 (175,664,382) (7,982,792} (243,885.211) 2,549,103 (241,330,108}
General and administrative expenses (46,703,319 (310,203, 499) (6,983,007} 363,890.625) 206,957,297 {156,933,328)
Taxes and licenses (17,850,490)  (126,481,041) (731,883} (145,063,414) - (145,063,414)
Unreimbursed share in comnon cxpenses - (96,092 860 - (96,092,860} - (6,002 Bal)
Depreciation and amortization (1,493, 164) {16,583 461) 0371 (18,177.996) (18,177,996)
Insurance (150,053) (15,514,061) (17,332) (15,681,448} 2 (15,681,448)
Segment results 534,803,860 2,204,827 .638 210,341,297 32495972 801 {471,270,504) 2.778.702,237
Interest income 244 513,058 34,661,209 252,600 279,426 867 - 270,426 867

i impai on real estate

Gamﬁ;;f:ﬁ:ii?;:jg:’émem s - - 181,954,657 18 1,954,6‘3? 181,954,697
Foreign exchange gains - net 2,418,763 1.650,275 (183,766,374 (179,697,336) 183,779,133 4,081,797
Share in net losses of associates - - (4,674,079 (4,6?-1,0??} - (4,674,079
Interest expense and bank charges (5339,675) [184,386,993) (35,193) (154,961 863) - (154,961,863)
Provision for income tax {448,239 506) (252,262 230) (50,927 958 (751,429.724) = (751,429,724)

Met income [or the vear

P632,936,506

F1.804,489,897

253, 144,960

B2,590,591 363

{P2E7491,431) BZ2.303,099.932

Segment assets BO 711,851,940 P27,514,160,619 PB4,099.459,524 P41,325472083 (P4.721,463,228) P36,604,008,855
Associate companics —  1,959387.171 481,923,118 2.441,310,289 - 2.441,310,289
Total assets FOTL1,851,940 B29.473.547.790 4.381,382.642  pg3 766,782,372 (B4,721,463,228) P39,045,319,144

Sepment liahilities

B85 496,411,518

RO [44.810.490

£3,334,768,995

P18,975,991,003

(B4,72]1,463,228) P14,254,527.775

Capital expenditures for the year

P253 223,655

B513,510,609

258,705

B766,993,029

B B760,9493,029
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5, Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2015 2014
Cash on hand and in banks $343,622,081 P404,681,437
Cash equivalents 3.697,547,661 2,506,323,383

£4.041,169,742  B2.911.004,820

Cash in banks cam interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Temperary investments are made for
three months or less depending on the immediate cash requirement of the Group and earn interest at
the respective temporary investment rates. Temporary investments, which have an average maturity
of 30 days, eam interest ranging from 1.25% to 2.13% in 2015, 1.75% to 2.00% i 2014, and 1.00%
to 1.88% in 2013,

Total interest income earned from cash in banks and cash equivalents amounted to 30,552,252,
B35 492 852 and 44,451,855 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 23).

As of December 31, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents include United States Dollar (US3) and
(HK$) deposits with local banks as follows:

US Dallar HEK Dollar
2015 2014 2015 2014
Foreign currency 53,374,993 51,488,019 $215,786 F218,002
Peso equivalent P159,164.689 206,544,230 ¥1,314,138 PFL2533.513
Closing exchange rate per dollar
as at December 31 #4716 P44.72 B6.09 B3T3

Net unrealized foreign exchange gains charged to profit or loss amounted to B6,248,738 in 2015,
P880,730 in 2014 and £3,525,257 in 2013.

6. Financial Assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL represemt shares of stock of various publicly listed companies as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014,

The movements in this account are as follows:

2015 2014
Beginning balance B33,012.524 B30,348,704
Fair value adjustment (Note 23) 1,869,576 2,663,820
Ending balance B34,582.100 B33.012,524

The Group recognized unrealized gains (losses) on fair value adjustments of the investments
amounting to B1,869,576 in 2013, 82,663,820 in 2014, and (R1,926,992) in 2013 (see Note 23).
There were no additions or disposals in 2015 and 2014,
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7. Receivables

This account consists of;

2015 2014
Trade;
Installment contracts receivable - net of
noncurrent portion of Be60,986,703
in 20135 and nil in 2014 $1,163,098,939 B2 8422286594
Rent (Mote 31) 194,320,946 201,286,080
Nontrade:
Advances to contractors and suppliers 688,909,442 1,031,179,038
Related parties (Note 31) 72,902,777 42 794,110
Advances to officers and employees 5,732,997 7,695014
Interest (Note 3) 4,396,733 1,697,524
Others 51,129,262 43,424 463
2.1580,491,096 4,170,305,823
Less allowance for impairment loss 8,056,439 8,056,439

24,162,249 384

£2,172,434,657

Installment contracts receivable represent noninterest-bearing receivables from sale of condominium
units with average term ranging from one to five years. These are carried at amortized cost and are
discounted using prevailing interest rates at the dates of transactions. Installment contracts
receivables are subject to either bank financing or in-house financing. The differences between the
present values and face values of the receivables are amortized using the EIR method over the term
of the respective contracts. Interest income from accretion of installment contracts receivable
amounted B180.854,605, B236,879.642 and B228,037,161 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see
Note 237,

Rental receivables are noninterest-bearing and pertain to rental fees charged to tenants and to the
Group’s affiliates for the office, commercial and carpark spaces. The normal credit terms range
from 30 to 60 days.

Advances to contractors and suppliers are noninterest-bearing downpayments and are capitalized to
projects cost in the consolidated financial position, upon actual receipt of services or supplies, which
is normally within 12 months or within the normal operating cycle.

The terms, balances and transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note 31.

Advances to officers and employees are normally settled within the next financial year.

Oither receivables are noninterest-bearing and consist of income from banner and non-tenant related
receivables.

The movements of the allowance for doubtful accounts in 2015 and 2014 that is individually
impaired as follows:

2015 2014
Beginning balance £8,056,439 B7,074,077
Bad debts o 93213 62
Ending balance 8,056,439 P8,056,439

T



-4] -

The following table shows the expected cash flows from installment contracts receivable as of
Decemnber 31:

2015 2014

Expected cash flows in:
2015 B—  B4TO5,800,178
2016 3,767.852.227 1,009,457 377
2017 1,079,666.775 570,046,949
2018 460,203,122 647,885,065
2019 1,344,248.1 87 -
6,631,970,311 7,113,189,569
Less unamortized discount and unearned income* 4,827,884,669 4,270.960.875

B1.824,085,642 P2 842228 694
Uinearned income i5 the portion of the total contracts price of sold units which remains to be
unearned as of the reporting period. The amount will be recognized as condominium sales as the
construction of the projects progress based on the percentage of completion of the profects.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, excess collections from condominium unit buyers over
recognized revenue based on the percentage of completion method were recorded as part of the
“Customers’ deposits” account amounting to £1,165,035,149 and B945,320,881, respectively

{see Note 18),

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, installment contracts receivables with a total nominal amount of
B[,839,103,127 and P2,872,095,478, respectively, were recorded at amortized cost amounting to
B1,824,085,642 and P2 842,228,694, respectively.

The movements in the unamortized discount and uneamed income on installment contracts
recelvable are as follows:

2015 2014
Beginning balance P4,270,960,875 B3,402,472,504
Additions 5,391,881.197 4,869,645,9006
Recognized as:
Condominium sales (4,654,102,798)  (3,764.277,893)
Interest income (Note 23) (180,854,605) (236,879.642)
Ending balance B4.827,884,669 B4.270,960.875
Properties Held for Sale
This account consists of
2015 2014
Condominium units held for sale 274,941,130 B103,768,502
Construction in progress 7.085,833,142 5,609,349,192

#7,160,774,272_ P5.773,117.694

Condominium units for sale pertain to the completed residential condominium projects of the Group.

Construction in progress pertains to the Group’s on-going residential and mixed-use condominium
projects.

LTI
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The movements in “Condominium units held for sale” account are as follows;

2015 2014
Beginning balance P103,768,502 P119,518,437
Recognized cost of condominium sales (Note 24) (28,827,372) {15,749.935)
Ending balance 274,941,130 P103,768,502
The movements in “Canstruction in progress” account are as follows:
2015 2014

Beginning balance

Construction or development costs incurred
(Motes 1 and 12):
Construction cost

P5669349,192 B2323,091 358

1,523,782,137 2,034,475,320

Land cost 1,028,067.503 497995120
Project management expenses 131,465,358 174,969,320
Taxes, permits and licenses 62,067,527 40,533,923
Professional and consultancy fees 61,316,890 149,262,935
Insurance and bonds 13,538,473 20,873,680
Others 53,327,389 28.986,047
Transfer from real estate development
projects (Note 14) 888,757,454 2,815,955,676
Recognized cost of condominium sales (Note 24) (2,345.838,781)  (2,426,694.187)
Ending balance P7,085,833,142 B5,609,345,192

COin November 2, 2015, TRDCI and Vivelya Development Company, In¢, (VDCI) have entered into
a contract to sell the land where TRDCI s project is currently being constructed. The consideration
for the land shall be for a minimum base price of P1.1 billion, exclusive of 12% VAT. Payment
term for the purchase price includes a down payment upon signing the contract of fifteen per cent
(15%) of base price amounting to P165.0 million, exclusive of 12% VAT. The remaining balance of
the purchase price shall be paid on a quarterly installment basis until full payment of the purchase
price. In 2015, interest cost related to the amortization of the installment payable was capitalized as
borrowing cost amounted to 4.8 million. The unamortized discount on installment payable as of
December 31, 2015 amounted to B71.9 million.

Condominium units held for sale and construction in progress are stated at cost as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, There were no allowances for inventory write-down as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014,

9. Input Tax and Other Current Assets

2015 2014

Input tax B1,207,968,471 BIL,039,008,790
CWT 206,539,147 222707813
Prepaid commission 205,256,575 159,004,639
Cash in escrow - 352,027 4809
Other prepaid expenses . 55,931,316 32,443,275
B1,765,695,509  P1,805,192,006
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Input tax represents VAT paid to suppliers that can be claimed as credit against the future output
VAT liabilities without preseription.

CWT is the tax withheld by the withholding agents from payments to the Group which can be
applied against the income tax payvable.

Prepaid commission pertains to the excess of the commission paid to property consultants and
brokers over the commission expense recognized for the year based on the percentage of completion.

Cash in escrow pertains to the cash deposited with a local bank in compliance with the escrow
agreement between TRDCI, a local bank and the Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board
(HLURB). The cash in escrow shall be released upon written notice of the HLURB to an escrow
agent upon submission by TRDCI of certain requirements, In 20135, TRIDCI has complied with the
requirements and received a license to sell from HLURB. The cash in escrow has also been released
to the TRDCI.

Other prepayments mainly consist of advance payments for insurance, real property taxes, rent, and
other expenses which are normally utilized within the next financial year.

10.

Investments in Associates and Joint Venture

This account consists of;

2015 2014
Acquisition costs:
Beginning balance P495810,625 B2 200388110
Additions to investment 10,500,000 13,000,000
Reclassification as a result of business
combination (Note 12) —  {1,809.577 485)
Ending balance 506,310,625 495,810,625
Accumulated share in net income (losses):
Beginning balance (83,020,396) 150,922,180
Share in net income (losses) of associates and a
joint venture 70,658,121 (9,692,903)
Reclassification as a result of business
combination (Note 12) — {226,249,673)
Ending balance (14,362,275) (85.020,396)

P491,948,350 410,790,229

On April 30, 2014, the Group obtained control over its associates, both SGCPIL and FESHI, through
step acquisition as discussed in Note 12.

Tn 2013, the Group sold 623.800 common shares representing 35% interest in Exchange Properties
Resources Corporation (EPRC) for a total consideration of 92,000,000, Gain on the disposal of
EPRC shares recognized in the profit or loss amounted to 17,438,767 (see Note 23).

The Group is restricted from declaring dividends out of the accumulated share in net profits until
these are declared by the associates.
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All of the Group’s associates and joint venture are considered to be immaterial individually. The
Group's associates and joint venture are as follows:

Percentages of Ownership

2015 2014
Sky Leisure Properties, Inc. (SLPI) S50.00% 50.00%
Ideal Sites and Properties, Inc. (I1SPI) 40.00% 40.00%
{Others various VATIOUS

The aggregate amount of the Group’s share in the net income (losses) after tax and total
comprehensive income (losses) of these associates are B70,658,121 in 2015, (P9,692,903) in 2014
and (B4,674,079) in 2013.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group has no share in any contingent liabilities or capital
commitments.

11.

Material Partly-Owned Subsidiaries

The proportion of equity interest held by the NCI of KSA and SGCPI, the Group’s subsidiaries with
NI that are deemed material, are as follows:

2015 2014
K5A 47.1% 47.1%
5GCPI 40.0% 40.0%

The summarized financial information of material subsidiaries are provided below. This information
is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations.

KSA Realty Corporation

. 2015 2014 2013
Summarized Statements of

Comprehensive Income
Rental revenue £992,119,396 £905,609,013 836,652,466
General and administrative

Expenses (63,034,780) {61,821,297) (64,206,912)
Finance income (cost) — net 2,036,023 {1,724,886) (5,906,763)
COhither income — net 747,660,456 7,567,826 3,796 880
Income before income tax 1,678,781,095 849 630 656 770,335,671
Provision for income tax (403,222,929) {159,322,635) {150,743,910)

Total comprehensive income P1,275,558,166 ,P 590,308,021 B619,591,761

Met income and total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent
Company £674,770,270 B365,172.943 B327.764,042
NCI 600,787,896 325,135,078 291,827,719
_ P1,275,558,166  P690,308,021 _ P619,591,761

Dividends declared to NCI £282,600,000 2376,800,000 164,850,000
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2015 2014
Summarized Statements of Financial Position
Current assets P655,921.294 B402,715,947
Noncurrent assets 8,913,278.871 8.105,438.224
Current liabilities (430,540,293) (396,686,088)
Noncurrent liabilities (2,084,651,853) (1,823,018,230)
Equity - P7,054,008,019 B6,378,449,853
Equity attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company B3, 731,570,243  B3,374,199,972
NCI 3,322.437.776 3.004.249 8R1
e £7,054,008,019 B6.378,449 853
2015 2014
Summarized Statements of Cash Flows
Operating activities 620,753,300 BT70,395,062
Investing activities (8.331,564) (3,757,036)
Financing activitics (468,395,407 (691,073,780)
Net effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents 34.931 2,823
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents P143,861,200 B75.567.069
Dividends paid to NCI amounted to B226,080,000 in 2015 and £376,800,000 in 20114,
Shang Global City Properties, Inc.
2015 2014

Summarized Statements of Comprehensive
Income
Sale of condominium units

£1,258,520,181

R425,762,627

Caost of sales of condominium units (582,981,253) (208,513,636)
General and administrative expenses (217,577,962) (16,697,532)
Oither income - net 1,109,845 4,464,422
Income before income tax 459,070,811 205,015,881
Provision for income tax {140,504,026) (58,303,4599)
Total c-::-mE_t':che nsive income P318,566,785 Bl146,712,382

Met income and total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company B191,140,071 BER,027.429
NCI 127,426,714 58,684,953
P3118.566,785 B146,712,382

Summarized Statements of Financial Position
Current assets £4.700,699,511 P4279,418,110
Noncurrent assets 10,734,362,780 8,200,510,828
Current liabilities (1,645,496,245) (5,393,047 264)
Noncurrent liabilities (8,229,977,222) (6,833,359,635)
Equity B35,559,5588.524 B343 522,039
Equity attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company B3,335,753,295 P206,113,223

MNCI 2,223 835529 137,408 816

P5,550,588 824

P343,522.,039
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As a result of the business combination in 2014, NCI was remeasured in the 2014 consolidated
statements of financial position resulting to additional balance amounting to P823,672481 (see
Mote 12).

On August 3, 2015, SGCPI has issued preference shares of stocks to its stockholders equivalent to
the amount of deposit for future stock subscription amounting to B4,887.499.000, of which
B1,959. 000,000 pertains to NCL

- 2015 2014
Summarized Statements of Cash Flows
Operating activities B741,340,014  (B2.949,489,701)
[nvesting activities (3,154,581,107) (182,322,639)
Financing activities 2,198.387.500 3,378,025,000
Met effect of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents 924,376 156,996
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents (B213,929,.217) 246,369,656

Mo dividends was declared and paid by SGCPILin 2015 and 2014.

The principal place of business of KSA is at Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall, Edsa
comer Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City while the principal place of business of SGCPI is at
Crescent Park West District, Fort Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City.

. Business Combination and Goodwill

Acauisition of additional 20% eguity interest in SGCPT and FESHI

On April 30, 2014, SGCHI and SFBHI, both wholly owned subsidiaries of the Parent Company,
each entered into an agreement and acquired the 20% equity interest of Alphaland Development, Inc.
(Alphaland) in SGCPI and FBSHI.

Prior to the acquisition, the Parent Company through SGCHI and SFBHI effectively owned 40%
equity interest in SGCPI and FBSHL SGCHI and SFBHI each acquired from Alphaland additional
20% interest in SGCPI and FBSHI, respectively, for a total cash consideration of
£1,700,000,000. As a result of the step acquisition, the Group obtained controlling interest in
SGCPI and FBSHI owning 60% cquity interest over cach of the acquired entities.

The following are the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of date
of acquisition:

SGCPI FBSHI TOTAL
Aszefs
Cash and cash equivalents P59 912 485 P175,039,023 P234,951,308
Receivables 26,961 1,342,762 1,369,723
Property under development 4,800,000,000 6,606, 161,000 11,496, 161,000
Prepayments and other current assets 271,722,029 566,766,301 B35 488330
Property and equipment - net - 2,786,769 2,786,769
Refundable deposit 15,275,800 15,273,800

5,131,661,475 7.437.371,6335 12,589,033,130
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SGCPI FBSHI TOTAL
Liakilitics
Trade and other payables P3.105,762 Bio0.617.815 B402 803,577
Income tax payable - 13,615 13,613
Long term bank loan - 4,098,499, 138 4,093,499 118
Dreposit for future stock subscription 1.976,487,102 1,541,512,808 3,918,000 000
Deferred tax liability 782412 892 154,658,230 937,071,122

2,762,065,756

$,594 321 606

9,356,387 452

Total identiflable net assets at fair

value 2,369,595.719 263,049,959 3,232,645,678
Goodwill 140,355,211 129,515,653 269,870,864
Acquisition cost £2,509,950,930 BOOZ 565,612 B1,502,516,542

As of acquisition date, the fair value of SGCPI’s and FBSHI's property under development
amounted to B4 800,000,000 and B6,696,161,000, respectively. Their carrying amounts in SGCPI's
and FBSHI's books amounted to £2,373,840.000 and B6,180,633,566, respectively.

The fair values of other assets and liabilities approximate their carrving amounts since these are
short-term in nature or with current market terms,

The cost of the acquisition is determined as follows:

SGCPI FBEHI Total

Cash paid ?1,009,571,776 PeY0, 428 224 £1,700,000,000

Non-controlling interest 730,189,577 151,068,694 901,258,271
Acquisition-date fair value of

previously held interest 750,189,577 131,068,694 a,258.271

P2,509,950,930 PO02 565,612 B3,302,516,542

Analysis of cash {low on acquisition is as follows:

{B1,700,000,000)
234,951,508
(B1.465,048,492)

Cash paid
MNet ¢ash acquired [rom subsidiaries
Net cash outflow on acquisition

Non-controlling interest and fair value of previously held interest have been measured at the
proportionate share of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at fair value.

Gain from remeasurement of the previously held interest to fair value amounting to #824,431,141 is
recognized in profit or loss in 2014,

Goodwill from the business combination amounted to B269,870,864.

From the date of acquisition (April 30, 2014) to December 31, 2014, SGCFI, the surviving entity in
the merger, contributed B425.762.627 of revenue and B207,.841.063 of income before tax to the
Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year. there would be no change in
the total revenue of the Group but income before tax of the Group would have been
B4.112,988,084.

Merger of SGCPI and FESHI
On May 5, 2014, the BOD and sharcholders of SGCPI and FBSHI approved a proposed merger
between SGCPT and FBSHI. On September 2, 2014, the article of merger was executed between
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SGCPI and FBSHI. The SEC approved the Companies’ application for merger on
December 17, 2014,

The merger is intended to accumulate the costs of construction in the surviving entity, allowing for
better tax management. The plan of merger states that FBSHI will transfer to SGCPI its business
properties, assets and liabilitics that are reflected in its April 30, 2014 audited financial statements.
Before and after the merger, both companies are effectively under the common control of Kerry
Group Limited (KGL). KGL is the indirect parent company and investor of the stockholders of
SGCPI and FBSHI. As a result, the merger was accounted for using the pooling of interests method.
The merger has no effect on the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities.

Goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to SGCPL the CGU, for
impairment testing,

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been based on value in use caleulation using cash flow
projections from financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. The pre-
tax discount rate applied to cash flow is 14.56%. Cash flows beyond the five-vear period are
extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%, which does not exceed the compound annual growth
rate for the real estate industry. As a result of the analysis, management did not identify impairment
for this CGU.

Key Asswmptions Used in Value in Use Calcwdations
The calculations of value in use for the CGU are most sensitive to the following assumptions:

s (ross Marging - Gross margins are based on average values achieved in one to five years
preceding the beginning of the budget period from other similar affiliated entities.

s Discount Rates - Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to
the CGU, taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the CGU that
have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate is derived from its
weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes into account both debt and equity.
The cost of equity is derived from the expected retun on investment. The rates used to discount
the future cash flows are based on risk —free interest rates in the relevant markets where the
CGU operates. The beta factors are based on publicly available market data. Adjustments to the
discount rate are made to factor in the specific amount and timing of the future tax flows in order
to reflect a pre-tax discount rate.

»  Growth Rate Estimates - Rates are based on published industry rescarch.

o Market Share Assumptions - When using industry data for growth rates (as noted above), these
assumptions are important because management assesses how the unit’s position, relative to its
competitors, might change over the forecast period. Management expects its share of the real
estate market to be stable over the forecast period.

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumplions

With regard to the assessment of value in use of the CGU, management believes that no reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the property
to exceed its recoverable amount.
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13. Investment Properties

2015
Land Buildings Total
Beginning balances P8, 802,540,220 P18,308,327.268 B27.110,867 488
Gain (loss) on fair value
adjustments 778,121,840 (228,897,180) 549,224 660
Additions through
subsequent expenditures - 518,475,727 518,475,727
Ending balances ) P9,580,662,060 P18,597,905,815 P28,178,567,875
2014
Land Buildings Total
Beginning balances RER0Z,340,220 PI7.940,685,730 B26,743,225,930
Additions through
subsequent expenditures - 367,641,538 367,641,538
Ending balances BH.802,540.220 P18,303,327.268 £27,110,867.488

The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial properties in Mandaluyong City and
Makati City under office, retail and land classes of asset, and other parcels of land held for capital
appreciation. These classes of assets are based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each

property.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the fair values of the properties are based on valuations
performed by Royal Asia Appraisal Corporation, an SEC accredited independent valuer. The
valuation models are in accordance with that recommended by the International Valuation Standards
Committee.

The Group has no restrictions on the realizability of its investment properties and no contractual
obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and
enhancements.

The fair value measurements for investment properties have been categorized as Level 2 for
parcels of land and Level 3 for office and retail properties. The current use of these properties is
their highest and best use.

The fair value of the Group’s land is determined using the market comparison method. Under the
market comparison method (or market comparison approach), a property’s fair value is estimated
based on comparable transactions. The market comparison approach is based upon the principle
of substitution under which a potential buyer will not pay more for the property than it will cost to
buy a comparable substitute property. In theory, the best comparable sale would be an exact
duplicate of the subject property and would indicate, by the known selling price of the duplicate,
the price for which the subject property could be sold. The unit of comparison applied by the
Group is the price per square meter (sqm). The market comparison approach is often used in
combination with either DCF or the income capitalization method as many inputs to these
methods are based on market comparison.

The following table presents the valuation techniques and unobservable key inputs used to value the
Group’s investment properties categorized as Level 3.
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Range of
Unaobservable
Inputs
Fair Value as of (probability - Relationship of
Class of December 31, Valuation  Unobservable weighted Unobservable Inputs
Property 23 Technique Inputs average) to Fair Value
TEC (Office)  P8,940.733,000 Direct mcome Rental value Bi55 1o The higher the rental
capitalization BL,260 per value, the higher the
square meter fair value
Average long- Q7% The higher the
term oooupancy rate, the
OCCUpancy higher the fair value
rate
Expense - 6.05% The higher the
revenue ratio CXPENSe — revenue
ratio, the lower the
fair value
Capitalization 9% The higher the
rate discount rate, the
lower the fair value
hlain Wing F9.095.900.000  Direct income Rental value 1,425 1o The higher the rental
and East capitalization B,300 per value, the higher the
Wing of square meter fair value
Shangri-La
(Eetail)
Average long- 97% The higher the
term ococupancy rate, the
DeCUpancy higher the fair value
rate
Expense - 21% The higher the
revenue ratio EXPENSE — reVEnUS
ratio, the lower the
fair value
Capitalization 9% The higher the
rate discount rate, the

lower the fair value

Fair values for investment properties are calculated using the direct income capitalization method,
which results in these measurements being classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. In
applying the direct income capitalization method, the stabilized net operating income (NOT) of each
property s divided by an appropriate capitalization rate. Capitalization rate is based on actual
location, size and quality of the property and taking into account any available market data at the
valuation date. Stabilized NOI is the revenues less property operating expenses adjusted for items
such as average lease up costs, long-term vacancy rales, non-recoverable capital expenditures,
management fees, straight-line rents and other non-recurring items.

Generally, an increase in stabilized NOT will result in an increase to the fair value of an investment
property. An increase in the capitalization rate will result in a decrease to the fair value of an
investment property. The capitalization rate magnifies the effeet of a change in stabilized NOI, with
a lower capitalization rate resulting in a greater impact of a change in stabilized NOI than a higher
capitalization rate.
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The following are the significant unobservable inputs:

v Rental Value
Average rental rate per square meter paid by tenants based on the asking price in the market,

v Discount Rates
Reflecting current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows;

v dverage long-term occupancy rate
Based on current and expected future market conditions after expiry of any current lease;

= [Expense — Revenue Ratio
Tatal direct operating expenses for the entire property based on budget.

Rental revenue recognized for investment properties and direct operating expenses incurred for the
leasing operations in 2015, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Eental revenue B2,676,323,.065  P2,624,893 046 BL.338,990,151
Direct operating expenses 404,498,691 440,430,051 419,425,983

Profit arising from investment
properties carried at fair value  P2,.271,824,374  P21,184,463.505 B1.919.564, 168

. Real Estate Development Projects

SGCPI
In 2014, the Group recognized the real estate development project of SGCPI in the consolidated
financial statements as a result of the business combination (see Note 12).

The real estate development project pertains to the construction cost of the hotel and residence
portion of SGCPI’s Shangri-la at the Fort project, while the construction cost of the project’s
condominium units are classified as Construction in Progress under Properties Held for Sale.

The “Real estate development projects” account consists of the following:

2015 2014
Structure and architectural works B3,257,705,655 B2,570,735,196
Building service 2,673,404,471 1,979,081,059
Cost of land 2.373.840,000 2,373,840,000
Interior fitting out works 2,233,152,588 1,058,993,369
Site formation and substructure 1.251,650,938 1,242,280 854
Finance cost (Note 19) 084,828,802 304,457,410
Professional consultancy fees 881,076,757 834,248 066
Project management expenscs 395,520,127 299,164,168
Project management and technical fee 87,544,616 69,529 419
Preliminaries and preparation works 53,171,570 41,215,442
Taxes, permits and licenses 51,917,971 38,547 836

{Forward}
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2015 2014
Artworks and display items £18§,538.192 B
Soft landscaping 12,177,293 -
Retention fee % 258248524
Others 65,414,006 15,210,221
Total construction and development
costs incurred 14,339.942,986 11.085,552.164
Construction and development costs transferred
to real estate held for sale (Note 8) (3,704,713,130) (2,815,955,676)
Fair value adjustments due to business
combination (Note 12) 2.941,687,434 2,941 687 434
P13,576,017,200 211211283922
KRC

As of December 31, 2013, the real estate development project pertains to the project of KRC that
had undergone initial development activities. Costs incurred for this project include initial
construction costs, architect and professional fees, project management costs and borrowing costs,

In 2013, the Board of KRC subsequently approved the redevelopment of this real estate project.
Thus, the Group reversed the accumulated impairment losses amounting to P181,954,697 which
resulted from the uncertainty on the planned development due to suspension of the project. The
recoverable amount of the real estate project is determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by management covering a four-year period.
The cash flows have been prepared to reflect the market selling price of a condominium unit per
square meter and the expected costs of its construction per square meter. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections 1s 21%.

In 2014, KRC acquired 100% ownership interest over TRDCL, an entity incorporated on April 22,
2014 and registered with the SEC. On the same date, KRC transferred to TRDCI its contractual
obligation to develop a high rise condominium building located in Makati City. Construction
activities for the project commenced in 2014, As a result. the entire carrving amount of real estate
development project amounting to P484,885,587 was reclassified to Construction in Progress in
2014 (see Note 8).

15. AFS Financial Assets

This account consists of)

2015 2014

At cost - unquoted P48%8,826,327 P4RR 826,327
At fair value — quoted

Acquisition cost 9,121,515 9.121,515

Cumulative changes in fair value 6,925,000 4 875,000

16,046,515 13,996,515

£504,872,842 B502,822 842

Unquoted equity securities include unlisted shares of stock which the Group will continue to carry as
part of its investment. The fair value of this investment cannot ke reliably determined, thus, it is
carried at cost less allowance for impairment, if any.
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The queted equity securitics consist of investment in various golf club shares and stocks. These are
carried at fair values with cumulative changes in fair values presented as part of “Other components
of equity.” The fair valucs of these shares are based on the quoted market prices as of the reporting

date.

Management intends to dispose the quoted and unquoted equity shares through sale, as the need
arises. The movement in the cumulative changes in fair value of AFS financial assets is as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Beginning balance P4,875,000 B4.375,000 B4.075.000
[nerease in fair value 2,050,000 500,000 300,000
Ending balance £6,925,000 B4 §75,000 B4,375,000
16. Property and Equipment
This account consists of:
2015
Furniturs,
Building and Fixmures and
Building Transportation Crther
Improvements Equipment Equipment Total
Cost
Beginning balances PR6.942 834 B35,015700 R100,921,742  P221,830.276
Additions 221,230 9,033,560 83,352,074 92,606,864
Disposals {587,473) (2,605,356) (4,780,653) (T.973.482)
Reclassification - (2.570,537) (2,487,588) (5.058,125)
Ending balances 86,576,501 38,873,367 177,005,575 302,455,533
Accumulated Depreciation and
Amaortization
Beginning balances 50,355,965 26,569,710 TR.645,184 155,870,859
Diepreciation and amorlization 5.591,588 5,550,553 12,876,214 24,318,355
Disposals {587,473 (2.605,356) (4,780,653} (7.973,482)
Reclassification - (2.570,536) (2,487,588) (5,058,124)
Ending balances 55,060,080 27,244,371 84,253,157 167,157,608
Net Book Values P30,916,511 211,628,906 BO2,752.418  B135207,025
2014
Furmniture,
Building and Fixtures and
Building Transportation Other
Improvements Equipment Equipment Total
Cost
Beginning balances B35,001,439 B32 812,778 PBGI39.676  B204,153,893
Additions 1,941,395 3,914,527 13,542,640 21,398,562
Reclassification - (1,711,605} {960,574) (2,672,179)
Ending balances 86,042 834 33,015,700 100,921,742 222 880,276
Accumulated Depreciation and
Amaortization
Begimning balances 46,863,089 22,671,262 67,523,922 137,058 273
Depreciation and amortization 1,492,876 5910053 12,081,819 21,484 748
Reclassification - (1,711,605} {960,557 (2.672,162)
Ending balances 50,355,965 26,869,710 78,645 184 155,870,850
Net Book Yalues P36,586,869 B8, 145990  P2I1276,558 BGT 000417

INRAAIE AN



Y

Total depreciation and amortization amounting to B1,804,388 in 2015 and £1,070,591 1n 2014 were

capitalized as part of construction in progress.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the gross carrving amount of fully depreciated property and
cquipment still in use amounted to B115.939,966 and £94,520,818, respectively.

There are no restrictions on the Group’s title on the property and equipment and there are no

property and equipment pledged as security for liabilities.

17. Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of

2015 2014

Refundable deposits P58,480,593 E68.414,004
Retirement assel (Note 27) 4,923,100 -
Others 7.428 79,690
63,411,421 B6E,493 754

Refundable deposits are cash paid by the Group for utilities and which are expected to be returned
after a specified period of time, or when certain conditions are satisfied.

18. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of*

2015 2014
Trade:

Accounts payable P503,878,353  £293,203 247
Advanced rental 258,751,652 244333 TRE

Accrued expenses:
Construction 655,073,513 025,208,088
Taxes 165,897,633 [ (8,920,388
Utilities 59,004,153 60,803,660
Titling cost 52,122,450 8,307.635
Performance bonus 48,528,538 58,579,449
Administrative 41,681,163 28707910
Interest 38,435,379 47,886,875
Owitside services 28,153,985 13,329 740
Commission 23,852,115 7,604,434
Fepairs and maintenance 15,733,544 22,591,641
Professional fees 6,520,746 7,930,546
Others 65,243,536 46,232,803
Customers’ deposits (Note 7) 1,255,778.764 592,139 826
Eetention payables 1,171,834.115 1,006,949,126
Reservation payables 408,504,556 367,124,866
Advances from condominium unit buyers 293,547,261 217,346,741

{(Forward}
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2015 2014

Construction bonds B54,657,359 B54,535,992
Payable to contractors and suppliers 44,097 825 44,097,825

MNontrade:

Deferred output VAT 139,736,544 107.826.686
Withholding taxes 53,117,569 50,767,384
Pavable to related parties (Note 31) 45,224,002 43,629 767
Cutput VAT 42,091,007 43,697,652
Other current liabilities 85,320,129 41,277,077
P5,557,385.891  P4.883,213,157

Accounts payable and accrued expenses are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled within 30
1o 60 days and within the next financial year, respectively.

Advanced rental pertains to the advance rental collected from tenants and are usually applied for the
subsequent months.

Other accrued expenses consist of accruals for advertising and promotions, insurance, other
employee related cost and other general and administrative expenses.

Retention payables represent the portion of contractor billings which will be paid upon satisfaction
by the contractors of the conditions specified in the contracts or until the defects have been
corrected.

Customers’ deposits mainly represent excess of collections from buyers over the related revenue
recognized based on the percentage of completion method.

Reservation payables pertain to cash paid by the buyers of condominium units for the reservation of
the units purchased, These shall be considered as part of the downpayment on the units purchased
upon execution of the contracts,

Advances from condominium unit buyers pertain to the amounts received in advance from the
condominium unit buyers of The St. Francis Shangri-La Place (TSFSP) and OSP for utilities,
maintenance, and repairs of common areas. These will be paid to The 5. Francis Shangri-La Place
Condominium Corporation (TSFSPCC) and One Shangri-La Place Condominium Corporation
(OSPCC) when demanded.

Construction bonds pertain to cash deposits posted by tenants as security for any expenses or
damages that may be incurred by SLPC in relation to construction activities conducted by the tenants
during the fit-out, as well as during renovation period of the lease. It is normally returned to the
tenants within six months after completion of their construction activities.

Payable to contractors and suppliers represents progress billings from various contractors for the
material and labor costs incurred to date with normal eredit terms of 30 to 60 days, but may go
beyond as agreed.

Deferred output VAT is the result of the difference in the application of installment method
between the accounting policy of the Company and the tax regulations. It will be reclassified to
output VAT payable when the collections from condominium unit buyers warrant recognition of
revenue.
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Withholding taxes payable are expected to be settled within the next financial year.

The terms, balances and the volume of related party transactions which were and were not
eliminated during consolidation are disclosed in Note 31.

Cutput VAT represents tax due and payable after deducting the corresponding imput VAT.

Other current liabilities pertain mainly to taxes, insurance, and various immaterial account balances.

19,

Bank Loans

This account consists of borrowings of the following entities:

2015 2014

SGCPI (Note 12) PR.964,329.487 £6,752,835,572
FParent Company 3,200,000,000 5,095,833.333
SLPC 300,000,000 300,000,000
12,464,320.487  12,148.668.905

Less current portion 867,751,562 583,333 333
Moncurrent portion P11,596,577,925 $11.565,335,572

SGCPT

On February 17, 2012, the Board of the Parent Company passed and approved a resolution wherein
it agreed to act as a surety to the loan of FBSHI, now SGCPIL. the surviving entity in a merger as
discussed in Note 12, On April 11, 2012, FBSHI secured a £10,000,000,000 long-term loan facility
with a local bank to finance the construction of a hotel, serviced apartment, and residential units in
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City in relation to the Shangri-La at the Fort Project. Under the continuing
suretyship agreement executed between the Parent Company and the local bank on May 23, 2012,
the Parent Company agreed to be solidarily liable to the extent of 50% of any and all amounts due
under the loan agreement between FBSHI and the local bank. The local bank is entitled under
current jurisprudence to demand directly from the Parent Company any and all amounts due.

Under the terms of the loan agreement, the principal amount of the loan shall be payable in 24 equal
quarterly consecutive installments commencing on the 17th quarter from the initial drawdown, with
the last installments in an amount sufficient to fully pay the loan. Interest shall be paid on each
interest payment date for the relevant interest period based on three-month treasury bill rate as
published in the Philippines Dealing System Treasury Reference Rates — 2 (PDST-R2).  Effective
October 20135, the interest shall be based on the higher between the PDST-R2 rate plus spread of
0.85% per annum and the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) overnight borrowing rate minus spread
of 0.95% per annum. SGCPI has the option to prepay and to fix the interest rate. Further, SGCFI is
required to maintain a 2.5:1 ratio of debt to tangible net worth, which was complied with by SGCPL

The loan is secured by an absolute and unconditional continuing suretyship of the sureties namely
Shangri-La Asia Limited and the Parent Company.

The loan is subject to a front-end fee of 25 basis points (0.25%) of the total principal amount. The

front-end fee is considered a transaction cost which is allocated based on each drawdown and
amortized using effective interest rate. Debt issue costs also include the documentary stamp tax paid
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by SGCPI for each drawdown. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, unamortized debt issue cost
amounted to B45670,513 and B42,164,428, respectively, Total interest expense. including
amortization of transactions costs, amounted to P680,371,392 and 304,457,410 in 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Capitalized interest in 2015 and 2014 amounted to the same amounts and is included as
part of “Construction in progress” and “Real estate development projects™.

Subject to the negative covenants of the loan, from and after signing the loan agreement and for as
long as the loan is outstanding, SGCPI, without the prior written consent of the bank, shall not
declare or pay dividends to its stockholders (other than dividends payable solely in shares of its
capital stock) if payment of any sum due to the bank is in arrears.

FParent Company

On February 12, 2008, the Parent Company obtained an unsecured ten-year term loan facility from a
Jocal bank amounting to B3,500,000,000 with interest based on the higher between the PDST-R2
rate plus (.75% per annum and the BSP overnight borrowing rate. The loan is payable in 24 equal
quarterly installments commencing on the 17th quarter from the initial borrowing date and is subject
to a debt-to-equity ratio of 3:1 which was complied with by the Parent Company. The Parent
Company has fully drawn the facility as of December 31, 2009. The loan has been repaid in full in
2015,

On July 30, 2012, the Parent Company obtained another ten-year loan facility from a local bank
amounting to £5,000,000,000 with interest based on the higher between the three-month Treasury
Bill rate as published in the PDST-R2 plus a spread of 0.75% per annum and the BSP overnight
borrowing rate. The Company has a one-time option to convert from a floating rate into a fixed rate.
The loan is payable in 24 equal quarterly installments, commencing on the 17th quarter from the
initial borrowing date. It is secured by a ‘negative pledge’ on all present and future assets of the
Parent Company and is subject to a debt service coverage ratio of 3:1 which was complied with by
the Parent Company. Total drawdown from the facility amounted to £3,200,000,000 as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014,

SLPC

On June 25, 2007, the Company obtained an unsecured seven-year term loan from a local bank
amounting to £900,000,000 for working capital and refinancing of the Company’s existing loan with
interest based on Philippines Interbank Reference Rate (PHIREF) rate plus 0.75% per annum. The
Company has fully settled the loan in 2014,

On November 5, 2012, SLPC obtained an unsecured ten-year term loan facility from a local bank
amounting to B1,400,000,000 to partially finance its mall redevelopment program with interest based
on the higher between the PDST-R2 rate plus 0.75% per annum and the BSP overnight borrowing
rate. The loan is payable in 24 equal quarterly installments commencing on the 17th quarter from
the initial borrowing date and is subject debt-to-equity ratio of 3:1 and debt coverage ratio of not
lower than 1.2 which was complied with by SLPC.
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The current and noncurrent portions of the bank loans as of December 31 and its movements during

the vear are as follows:

2015 2014

Beginning principal balance $12,148,668,905 B4.943 452 381
Proceeds from loan availment,

net of unamortized debt issue costs 2,211,493,915 3.754,336,434

Principal payments during the year

Loan acquired from SGCPI as a result of

the business combination

(1,895,833,333)  (647,619,048)

- 4,098,499 138

Ending principal balance 12,464,329,487  12,148,668,905
Less current portion 867,751,562 583,333,333
Mongurrent portion P11,596,577.925 P11,565335572

Interest expense arising from the above loans charged to profit or loss m 2015, 2014 and 2013
amounted to 167,764,626, 194,498,162 and P182,181,047, respectively (see Note 23).

Repavment Schedule

The repayments of long-term debt are scheduled as of December 31, 2015 15 as follows:

Y ear Amount
2016 B384,166,667
2017 2,072,500.000
2018 2,085,000,000
2019 2. 085,000,000
2020 2,0%5,000,000
2021 2,085,000,000
2022 1,200,833,333
2023 B 12,500,000
12,510,000,000
Unamortized debt issue cost (45,670,513}

P12.464,329,487

20.

Deposits from Tenants

This account represents noninterest-bearing rental deposits from tenants equivalent to six months’
rent which have been discounted using PDST - R2 rates and are carried at amortized cost. The
difference between the discounted and face values of the deposits was recognized as deferred lease
income. Deferred lease income is amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term and is
recognized in profit or loss as additional rent income. Interest is accreted on the deposits from
tenants using the EIR method and is recognized as additional interest expense in profit or loss.

The movements in the unamortized discount on deposits from tenants for the years ended

December 31 are as follows:

2015 2014
Beginning balance £39,985,135 B33,267.603
Additions 7585426 36,941 551
Amortization of discount (Note 23) (26,158,290) (30,224,024)
Ending balance $21,682,271 B30,085,135
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21. Equity

The details of the Parent Company’s capital stock as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Mo, of Shares Amount
Authorized - 21 par value 8,000,000,000  £8,000,000,000
Unsubseribed (3,235,941,018)  (3,235,941,018)
Subscribed, issued and Tully paid 4,764,058.952 4,764,058 982
Treasury shares (2,140,645) (2,140,645)
Issued and cutstanding 4,761,918,337 P4.761.918.337

The Parent Company is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange. It was registered on June 13, 1991
with total listed shares of 4,764,058,982 which was initially issued at 1,18 per share. As at
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company has 5,403, 5,457 and 5,553 stockholders,
respectively. The details of the Parent Company’s stockholders are disclosed in the annual report.

There are 2,140,645 shares that are in the ftreasury amounting to $6.850,064 as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014,

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, retained earmings of the Group include accumulated fair value
adjustments of investment properties not available for dividend declaration amounting to
R12.871,839,543 and B12,322.614,883, respectively, of which P4,103,242,307 and £5,130,258,834,
respectively, pertains to fair value adjustments of subsidiaries.

22, Dividends

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, unpaid dividends amounted to 2148.464,960 and P104,294 980,
respectively (see also Note 11).

The Parent Company’s Board approved the declaration of the following cash dividends for the years
ended December 31:

Date of Declaration Record Dale Total Per Share

2015
March 27 April 15 B404,763,059 20,085
August 18 September 3 333,334,506 0.070
P738,097,655 P0.155

2014
February 19 March 17 333,484,129 B0.OT0
August 14 August 29 309,375,117 (0.065
P642 850 246 20.135

2013
February 27 Iiarch 15 BI85,843,539 BO.OBO
August 14 August 30 237.967.698 0.030

B523,811,237 #0110
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Interest Income

23, Interest Income, Other Income, and Interest Expense and Bank Charges

2015 2014 2013
[nterest on:
Aceretion of installment
contracts receivable
(Note T} B180,854.605 B236, 879,642 P22R.037.161
(Cash in banks and
cash equivalents (Note 5) 50,552,252 25,492,852 44,451 855
Overdue accounts from
lenants 5,466,159 6,988,535 6,937,851
B236,873,016 P269,361,029 B279,426, 867
Orther Income {Charges)
2015 2014 2013
Dividend income 240,033,691 B15,234,198 B18,823,456
Administration and
management fee (Note 31) 14,086,986 12,806,351 11,642,137
Income from back-out buvers 9,216,137 2,600,798 3,181,975
Customer lounge fee 7,399,531 8,430,786 8,267,732
Banner income 4,443,506 2,141,016 2,675,584
Service revenue - net 2,754,798 485,749 1,257.919
Fair value adjustments of financial
assets at FVPL (Note 6] 1,869,576 2,663,820 (1,926,992)
Revenue from ancillary services 1,332,947 2,029,822 3,003,401
Forfeited security deposits 1,001,089 6,185,853 1.425,085
(Gain on:
Disposal of investment in
associate (Note 10) - - 17,438,767
Sale of property and
equipment 724,894 - 216,983
Others 17,371,850 15,379,290 46,326,184
P100,235,005 BA7 973,683 B112,392.23]
Interest Expense and Bank Charges
2015 2014 2013
Interest on bank loans and
bank charges B175,370,285 P196,842 320 P182,754,583
Accretion of deposits from tenants 26,188,290 30,224,024 2,207,280
B201,558.575 227,066,344 B184,961.863
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24, Cost of Condominium Sales

2015 2014 2013
SPRC B838,317,772  B1,953,269414  P2.903,561.689
SPDI 638,580,756 262,381,970 73.465,348
SGCPI 582,981,253 208,513,636 —
The Rise 286,414,000 - -
Parent Company 28,372,372 18,279,102 13,987,067

$2,374,666,153

£2,442,444,122

B2,951,014,104

Gieneral and Administrative Expenses

25. General and Administrative Expenses and Taxes and Licenses

2015 2014 2013

Professional fees and outside
SErvices P76,514,965 B36, 388 585 240,199,442

Janitorial, security and other
SErvices 30,675.444 36,805,266 29,982 184
Advertising and promotions 27,736,250 18,594,003 24,566,910
Utilities 23,430,827 16,127,671 13,923,603
Telephone and communication 9,199,991 0,737,498 53,724,174
Supplies 7,896,708 7,422,906 5,785,450
Transportation and travel 6,612,751 2.980.597 2,943,008
Condominium dues (Note 31) 6,416,787 5,212,612 4,452,176
Repairs and maintenance 5,186,045 8,908,204 4,037,200

Entertainment, amusement and
representation 3,507,886 1,938,106 1,617,455
Rent 3,343,413 2,738,809 2,198,100
Membership fees and dues 3,133,230 2,896,738 2,670,149
(Gas and oil 1,638,833 1,938,806 1,693 901
Systems license and maintenance 1,571,899 4,026,878 1,936,271
Reproduction charges 1,055,347 863,037 857,053
Commission 929,574 3,301,285 3,586,279
Bad debts (Note 7) - 82,363 -
Dionation - - 5,700,843
Others 6,244,073 15,460,423 4,966,930
P221,0094,023 P103 324,687 B156,933 328
Taxes and Licenses

2015 2014 2013
Real estate tax P97.829.014 BO4 774 820 P6B,300,448
Business taxes 96,380,691 79,285,330 64,326,136
Documentary stamp taxes 20,205,261 19,408,687 11,367,767
License and permit fees 2,778,208 339,630 631,744
Others 2,556,050 11,438,375 437319
B219.809,224 P205,446,842 £145,063,414
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26. Statf Costs

2015 2014 2013

Salaries and wages P347,548.415 P245,583,276 £192,447 590
Employee benefits 53,983,312 27.055,7T13 20,788,373
Retirement benefit costs (Note 27) 200,333,059 16,371,642 22,090,972
Others 7,607,021 5,528 513 6,008,973
B459,471,807 B295,539,144 B241,336,108

27. Accrued Employee Benefits

This account consists of!

2015 2014

Retirement benefits $£39.644,347 B35,626.328

Other employee benefits 10,170,813 12 875707
. £49,815,160 £68,502,035

Accrued employee benefits perlain to liability for retirement, leaves and other related benefits
expected to be settled more than twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period.

Retirement asset amounted to 84,923,100 and nil as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively,
are not offsel with the retirement liability as the retirement liabilities within the group shall be settled
om an per entity basis (see Note 17),

Retirement Benefits

The Group has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan, providing death, disability
and retirement benefits for all of its regular employees. Under the plan, the normal retirement age is
60 vears old and completion of at least five years of service. Normal retirement benefit consists of a
lump sum benefit equivalent to 100% of the employee’s {inal pay for every year of service.

The plan is administered by an independent trustee bank which is under the supervision of the
Group’s Treasury Department (Treasury). The Treasury is responsible for investment of the assets.
Tt defines the investment strategy as often as necessary, at least annually, espeeially in the case of
significant market developments or changes to the structure of the plan participants. When defining
the investment strategy, it takes into account the plans’ objectives, benefit obligations and risk
capacity. The investment strategy is defined in the form of a long-term target structure {investment
policy).
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Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act (RA) 7641 requires a provision for
retirement pay to gualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the
entity, provided, however, that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining
and other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require
minimum funding of the plan. The Group is compliant with this regulatory framework.

Retirement benefit costs recognized in the consolidated profit or loss as part of “Staff costs” consist
of the following:

2015 2014 2013
Current service cost P18.215,190 B135.492.700 Blo, 110,440
Met interest cost 2,117,869 578,942 5,980,532

£20,333,059 R16,371,642 B22,000,972

The components of remeasurements, before tax effect, in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Actuarial loss (gain) in defined
benefit obligation (P46,334) B11,336,915 (P29,107,153)
Remeasurement loss {gain)
in plan asset 1,300,665 4,190,942 (7,123,218)
Remeasurement loss (gain) on
changes in the effect of
asset celling — (3,018,101} 3018101
P1,314,331 B12.509,756 (B33,212,27(

The accrued retirement benefits and retirement assets recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position as part of “Accrued employee benefits” and “Other noncurrent assets”,
respectively, were determined as follows:

Presented as retirernent liability:

2015 2014

Present value of defined benefit obligations PR0,583,605 P157,435,294
Fair value of plan assets {40,939,318) {101,808,%66)
P30,644,347 B35,626,325

Presented as retirement asset;

2015 2014

Present value of defined benefit obligations B75,662,971 B
Fair valuc of plan assets {80,586.071) =

(14,923,100) B
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Shown below is the summary of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as of
December 31:

2015 2014
Present value of defined benefit obligations P156,246,636 R157 435,294
Fair value of plan assets (121.525,389) (101,808,966)

P34,721,247 55,626,328

The movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

2015 2014
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of year P157.435,294 B|27,893,495
Current service cost 18,215,190 15,4492 700
Net interest cost 6,507 457 5,263,469
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
Changes in financial assumptions 15,516,744 12,122 800
Experience adjustments (15,563,078) (783,883)
Benefits paid (25.864,971) (2,551,283)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of year B156,240,636 B157,435,294
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2015 2014
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of year £101.808,966 BI0I,308,605
Interest income 4,389,588 4,384,527
Remeasurement loss (1,360,665) (4,190.942)
Contributions 19,339,502 3ne,T16
Benefits paid (2,652,002) -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year P121,525,3589 E101,808.96

The fair value of the Group’s plan assets by each class as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

2015 2014

Investments in debt instruments:
Treasury notes and bonds 67,002,272 B56,182.010
Corporate notes and bonds 6,858,608 5,745,859
Cash in banks 47,604,509 39,881,097

£121,525.389 £101.808,966

Significant portion of the debt instruments held have quoted prices in an active market. The
remaining plan assets do not have quoted market prices in an active market. The plan assets are
highly concentrated in Treasury noles and bonds but have no credit risk since these are govemment
obligations.
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The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Future salary increase rate 4.00% 5.00% 4.00%
Discount rate 4.80% to 5.08% 4.44% to 4.75% 4.25% to 5.89%

Mortality rate is based on the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table for both 2015 and 2014,

The discount rates used are the single weighted average rate for each company based on bootstrapped
PDST-R2 at various tenors as of December 31. Rates for intermediate durations were interpolated.
The rates were then weighted by the expected benefit payments at those durations to arrive at the
single weighted average discount rate.

The turnover rate represents the proportion of current plan members who will resign from service
prior to their retirement date and hence be entitled 1o resignation benefits instead of retirement
benefits.

There were no changes from the previous period in the methods and assumptions used in preparing
sensitivity analysis.

The sensitivily analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting period,
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Increase (decrease) in
defined benefit obligation

Significant Assumptions 2015 2014
Discount rate
Increase of 1% (P11,429,998) (B12,655,707)
Decrease of 1% 13.270,756 13,025,893
Future salary increase rate
Increase of 1% 12,496,037 13,834,893)
Decrease of 1% (10,972,860} (12,073,207

The management performed an Asset-Liability Matching Study (ALM) annually.  The overall
investment policy and strategy of the Group’s defined benefit plans is guided by the objective of
achieving an investment return which, together with contributions, ensures that there will be sufficient
assets to pay retirement benefits as they fall due while also mitigating the various risk of the plans.
The Group’s current strategic investment strategy consists of 55% treasury investments, 6% corporate
investments and 39% cash.

The Group expects to contribute 231,046,320 to the defined benefit plan in 2016.

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 ranges
from years 20 to 44 years and 12 to 30 years, respectively.
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Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as of the reporting date:

Plan Year 2015 2014
Less than one year B40,044,010 B13,482,327
More than one year to five vears 29,233,098 58,022,748
More than five years to 10 years 107,601,440 81,208,246
More than 10 vears to 15 years 89,405,891 108,765,500
More than 15 years to 20 years 149,152,895 148.516,779
More than 20 years and above 281,586,500 332,786 244

28, Unreimbursed Share in Common Expenses

SLPC collects reimbursements from tenants, based on either a fixed amount or a percentage of sales,
for the tenants’ share in the costs of utilities, janitorial, security and other expenses on commaon areas
shared by SLPC and the tenants. SLPC also collects reimbursements from the tenants for the actual
costs of utilities, repairs and maintenance used by the tenants in their leased areas, All unreimbursed
expenses are borne by SLPC and accordingly reported as operating ¢osts.

The details of the account for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Light, power and water P314,602,6042 P377.273,041 B363,579,308
Janitarial, security and
other services 102,796,189 47,039,984 89.919.906
Fepairs and maintenance 58,426,440 57,352,106 47,428,098
Advertising and promotions 60,108,918 36,117,121 41,546,349
Tenants’ reimbursements (467.693,136) (501,838,833 1) (446,380,891}
iy P68,241.053 BES943 421 £06,092,860

29, Income Taxes

4. The details of provision for income taxes for the years ended Decemnber 31 follow:

2015 2014 2013
Current:

RCIT PY80.616,391 PE16,844302 PE0O4,552 204
Excess of MCIT over RCIT 10,901,859 4015210 3285026
Final tax on interest income 4,701,176 3.749.300 B 290371
006,219,426 824608812 816,727,691

Deferred 192,919,203 170,892 527 (65,297,967
£1,189,138,629 P995,501,739 B751,429.724
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b. The details of the recognized net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) at December 31 follow:

2015 2014

Difference in profit, installment method versus

POC method P286,518,396 P284,183.755
Advance rental 77,625,496 63,814,474
Accrued expenses 29,964,427 61,463,424
Accrued employee benefits 29,197,768 26,960,297
Accumulated impairment losses 14,932,510 14,932,510
Excess MCIT over RCIT 9,446,250 4,709,164
Deferred lease income 6,209.321 11,472,017
Unamortized funded past service cost 5,670,871 2,311,551
Others 1,098,056 443 279
Deferred tax assets 460,663,101 470,290,471
Unrealized increase in fair valuc of

investment property (6,903,109,611) (6,690,778,630)
Unamortized discount on depasits from tenants (8,018,720) (12,767,123}
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange (2,137.428) (238,463)
Deferred tax labilities {6,913,265,768) (6,703,784 216)

(R6,452,602,667) (86,233,493 745)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities balances presented in the statements of financial
position are netted on a per entity basis. The following are the details:

: 2015 2014
Deferred tax assets $235,800,271 B356,407,946
Deferred tax liabilities ] (6,688,462,938)  (6,589,901.691)

(6,452,602,667) (P6,233,493,745)

¢. The reconciliation of provision for income tax using the statutory income tax rate and the actual
provision for income tax for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Provision for income tax at the
statutory income tax rate P1,430,149,607  B1,234,408,738 B916,358,897
Tax effects of,
Difference between itemized
and optional standard
deductions (O5D) {160,800,943) (160,981,245) (148,121,393)
Share in losses (profits) of
assoclates (21,197,426) 2,870,807 1,402,224
Movements in unrecognized
deferred income tax assets 20,054,161 33,872,226 (48,713,148}
ividend income (12,010,107} (4,570,259) (5,647,037)
Interest income subjected to
final tax {5,261,556) {2,474,580) (4.445,186)

(Forward)
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2015 2014 2013

Remeasuretnent gain as a result
of business combination B B247,320,5342 B
Other non-taxable income,

net of non-deductible
EXpenses (61,795,097) (354,953,290) 40,595 367

Provision for income tax P1,189,138,629 P995,501,73 P751,429,724

The Parent and certain subsidiaries did not recognize the following temporary differences as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 since management believes that they may not have sufficient
future taxable profits available to allow all or part of them to be utilized in the future or prior to
expiration:

2015 2014
NOLCO P208,592,636  P136,100,712
Others 800,145 6,444,866

The Group’s NOLCO which is available for deduction against future taxable income are as
follows:

Year Available
[ncurred Beginning Incurred Expired Ending Until
2015 P B73,179,859 P~  R73,179.859 2018
2014 129,526,474 - - 129,526,474 2017
2013 5,886,303 = = 5,886,303 2016
2012 687,935 - 687935 = 2015

£136,100,712 £73,179,859 P687,935  P208,592.636

The Group’s MCIT which can be applied against future income tax due are as follows:

Year Available
Incurred Beginning Incurred Expired Ending Until
2015 B- P4,568,974 P P4,568.974 2018
2014 4,070,645 - = 4,070,649 2017
2013 806,631 - - 806,631 2016
2012 120,169 - 120,169 = 20135

P4,997,449 B4 568,974 P1240,169 BOD 446,254

The following are the provision for (benefit from) deferred income taxes directly recognized in
equity:

_ 2015 2014 2013
Change in fair value of AFS
financial assets B615,000 B150,000 BOO,000
Remeasurement gains (losses) on
defined benefit liability (394,299) (3,752,927} 0,963,681
£220,701 (B3,602.927) B10.053,68]

RA No. 9504, effective on July 7, 2008, allows availment of OSD. Corporations, except for
nonresident foreign corporations, may elect to claim OSD in an amount not exceeding 40% of
their gross income, In 2015 and 2014, KSA, SLPC and IPP] availed of the OSD for the

computation of their taxable income.
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30. Earnings Per Share

Rasic and diluted earnings per share are the same since there are no dilutive potential common
shares.

The computation of earnings per share for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Based on Net Income

2015 2014 2013

Net income attributable to equity

holders of the Parent Company 22,849.812.817 B2.735375.946  P2,011,272,641
Weighted average number

af outstanding shares (Wote 213 4,761,918,337 4,761,918 337 4,761,918,337
Earnings per share £0.598 B(.574 B0.422

Based on Total Comprehensive Income

2015 2014 2013

Total comprechensive income

attributable to equity holders

of the Parent Company P2,850,733,285 B2,726,986,671  B2,035287.770
Weighted average number

of outstanding shares (Note 21)  4,761,918,337  4,761.918.337 4,761,918 337
Earnings per share B0.599 B0.573 £0.427

There are no instruments that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future.

31. Related Party Transactions and Balances

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or
are controlled by or under common control with the Group, including holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, are related parties of the Group. Associates and individuals
owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them
significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers
of the Group and close members of the family of these individuals, and companies associated with
these individuals also constitute rclated parties. In considering each possible related party
relationship, attention is directed 1o the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

The following are the transactions with related parties:
Related Party Transactions and Balances which were Not Eliminated During Consolidation

The terms, conditions, balances and the volume of related party transactions which were nol
eliminated during consolidation are as follows:

AENVRMET
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» A portion of the Parent Company’s land is being leased by ESHRI, where the EDSA Shangri-La
Manila Hotel (the Hotel) is located. The lease is for a period of 25 years commencing on
August 28, 1992 and renewable for another 25 years at the option of ESHRI. Rental revenue is
based on a fixed percentage of the Hotel's room, food and beverage, dry goods and other service

revenue,

»  SPMSI provides management services to TECCC, TSFSPCC, and The Shang Grand Towers
Condominium Corporation (TSGTCC) for a minimum period of five years starting
January 7, 2009, April 1, 2010 and January 7, 2007, respectively. As consideration, SPMSI
shall receive from TSGTCC, TECCC and TSFSPCC monthly management fees of 400,000,
B2100,000 and B100,000, respectively, inclusive of VAT, with an escalation rate of 10% per
annum. The parties agree mutually on the renewal of the agreements.

= Reimbursement of expenses paid for by SLPC for ESHRIL

*  Condominium dues charged by TSFSPCC and TECCC.

»  Sharing of expenses with affiliates.

The following are the amounts or volume of transactions during the years ended and the outstanding
receivables and payables as of December 31:

Amount™clume Dutstanding Dalance
1% 2014 2013 Wis 2014 Terms Conditions
Rental
ai-day; Unsecured,
ESHEI PUSTI0,556  BOS434.733 BTRITLI0G  B2ATARS6L BISEID 506 noninterest-bearing no impainment
Management
Services
(e Mote 23]
A0-day, Unzeoured,
TECCC 8,225,105  BR393,545 P&, 7597607 PLS555T4 PLALT249 nonintercsi-beaning no impaiment
30-day, Unsecured,
TSFSMCC 3,365,179 2057 079 246 429 1,484,964 1,424 464 noninterest-beaning no impaiment
30=day; Lngecured,
TGO 2,256,702 1555127 1,898,101 2,926,619 1,650,773 noninterssl-bearing 1o impairment
PI14.086,5986  PI2806251 211642137  P5.I70.557 Py 492 486
Condominium
dues
(se Mote 25)
30-day; Unscourcd,
Parent Company BL549020 B2445042  PLAGTO67  BL,191L,588 $1,209 230 noninterest-bearing ne impaimment
30-day; Lingecured,
KSA 4,045,193 2,313,135 2,186,422 - noninterest-hearing no impairment
Jibecliy; Unsecured,
SPIT 454,433 4534 435 454,455 - — noninterest-bearing 0o impaicment
2eday; Unsecured,
SPRC 368,130 214,252 — — noninterest-bearing 0o impairment
POALE,TET  BIZIIALE 4452176 P2,191.588 B1,29% 250
Reimbursed
CXPENSES
3h-clay, Unzceured,
ESHR] PI0067,328  Ple376411  R12533,734  B23235%6  BIS10911 noninterest-bearing no impairment
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Amoeount'Valume Clutstanding Balanee
015 2014 2013 2015 2014 Tenms Conditions
Affiliates” share in
Group's
l:'!(pl':l'l.‘il:!i
I0-day; LInzccured,
TECCC P42 736,164 B3 GE5.A58  B419523583  PRILIT9.965 P2.5195966 noninteresi-beaning no impairment
30-day, Unsecured,
CISFCC 34573457 629 854 - 15,789,747 629 834  noninterest-beanng no impaiment
3-day; Unsequred,
TRFSPCC 412,203 7485435 £, 738,060 5,764,208 3 466,192 nonintcrest-beanng no impairment
30-day; Unsecured,
TRGTOC 3,776,331 0,167 258 5047 806 6,629,701 4,154,043 nomintersst-bearing no impaiement
hakati Shangr-La 3=day, Unsecured,
Huoel 816,727 10,583,255 T14.71% 9,723,776 Q060,616 nonintercai-heaning no impairment
I0-day; Lnsecured,
ESHEI B, 703 1,620,083 13,523,454 346,337 715,490 noninterest-bearing no impaimment
hactan Shangri-La 30-day; Unsecured,
Hotel 778,912 632,065 598,533 260,007 268,605 noninterest-bearing no impaiment
Clavall Propertics, 30-day; Unigecured,
Inc 383 917 4,555 12,332 12,332 noninterest-bearing no impairment
Mactan Beachlront 30-daw; Linsecured,
Respurces, Inc. 643 {6,525) 3.5927 7.5 (7459 noninterest-beasing 1o impairment
Shangri-La Fijisian Fayable on demand; Unsecored,
Resort - - - 26,952 (26,952 noninterest-bearing no impairment
I0-day; Unsecured,
(ihers 14,251,075 4. 724,217 11,541,095 7173422 5,042 584 nonintcrest-bearing no impaimment
2107.151,798  PE5 440417 PROA44.717  PA0S08.644  BE1390 163
Group’s share in
affiliates’
EXPENEES
(o0 Mote 18)
A0-day; Unsceured,
TECCC P~ #6034, 040 BEYS027 B B73. 142 nonintorest-beaning 0o impaimment
S0-day, Unsceured,
TSFSPCC 60096 214,679 - 120 noninterest-bearing no impaimment
Jh-day, Unzecwred,
Oithers 3,089,103 482,761 470,506 372,714 98,375 noninterest-hearing no impairment
P3,089,103 #1,677.797 Bl261612 B472,714 BI7] 837

Tromsactions with associates

=  On February 17, 2012, the Board of the Parent Company passed and approved a resolution
wherein it will act as a surety to the loan of FRSHI, now SGCPL, the surviving entity in a merger
as discussed in Notes 12 and 19,

»  Sharing of expenses with associates.

AmountVolume Outstanding Dalance
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 Terms Conditions
Associates' share
in Group’s
{'Iplﬁ‘.l‘l!itﬁ
30-day; Lnsecured,
[T B305,792 705,105 BA0E 456 PREIO0O0 P A00,548 noninteresl-bearingno impairmest
G-y, Unzcourcd,
FBSHL — 9493210 11230668 - — noninterest-hearingno impainment
BI0S,T92  BI0196315 P11 RE5134  B35%9.950 #3,600,5438
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Amount™olume Cuistanding Balance

s 04 2013 2015 2014 Terms Conditions
Group’s share in
an assnciate’s
eXpenzes
(ges Mote 18)
Payable on
demand, Linsecured,
SLPI - P Bo P42,158,700 P42, 158,700 noninterest-bearingno impairene

Outstanding balances from the above related party fransactions as at December 31 follow:

2015 2014
Receivables:
Affiliates:
Share in expenses 260,508,044 B31,390,165
Management services 5,970,557 4,492 456
Reimbursed expenses 2,523,586 3,310,911
Associates 3,899,990 3,600,548
P72,902,777 £42,794,110
Accounts payable and other current liabilities:
Associate B42,158,700 B42 158,700
Affiliates:
Condominium dues 2,192,588 1,289,230
Share in expenses 872,714 171,837
£45,224,002 P43,629,767
Compensation of key management personnel consist of the following:
2015 2014 2013
Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits £39,026,177 P37.603,264 P36,457.99]
Post-employment benefits 3,871,167 2,989,031 2,451,986
P42 897344 B40,592,295 P38 909,977

There are no stock option plans for officers and employees and no other long-term benefits aside

from retirement benefits,

Related Party Transactions and Balances Eliminated During Consolidation

The terms, conditions, balances and the volume of related party transactions which were eliminated

during consolidation are as follows:

a. Lease of Parent Company’s land and the East Wing of the Shangri-l.a Plaza Mall to SLPC

2015 2014 2013
Parent Company $#116,175,733 B116,469 410 B137.860,212
SLPC 54,909,852 85,209,600 78,171,706
SPS1 7.834,677 5,832,401 7.461.777
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A portion of the Parent Company’s land where the Shangri-La Plaza Mall is located is being
leased to SLPC. The lease is for a period of 25 years from January 6, 1993, Rental revenue is
based on a certain percentage of SLPC’s annual rental revenue from mall operations plus a
certain percentage of the carpark’s net income.

In 2013, the Parent Company also leased to SLPC, the East Wing of the Shangri-La, the mall
area of OSP, for a certain percentage of SLPC’s rental revenue from the mall from January 1,
2013 to September 30, 20013,

Usufruct agreement between the Parent Company, SLPC and SP5I

On January 16, 2002, the Parent Company entered into a usufruct agreement with SLPC and
SPSI. SPSI will be granted limited usufructuary rights over the Parent Company’s and SLPC's
parking spaces for a consideration equivalent to a certain percentage of SPSI's gross income less
direct and indirect expenses. The agreement is subject to renewal on a yearly basis, Rental
income of the Parent Company and SLPC, and rental expenses of SPSI are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
SLPC B9,333,842 P11.754,610 P10,043,538
Parent Company 7,834,678 5,811,469 1,461.777

P17,168,520 B17.566,079 P17.505.513

Leasc of Fast Wing of the Shangri-La Plaza Mall by SPRC to SLPC

2015 2014 2013
Rental income P50.843,417 P53, 894,923 P13.695,318

SPRC and SLPC entered into a memorandum of agreement whereby SLPC will operate the mall
establishment and constitute it as the East Wing of the Shangri-La. The lease is for a period of
five years from October 1, 2013 and renewable upon mutual agreement by the parties. Rental
revenue is based on a certain percentage of SLPC’s annual rental revenue from that mall.

SPSI has an agreement with KSA, whereby SPSI is to manage and operate the parking slots of
KSA, which commenced on January 1, 2009, The agreement is renewable upon mutual
agreement by the parties. In consideration of the agreement, the parties agreed on the following
revenue-sharing scheme: KSA shall receive the amount equivalent to 75% of the monthly gross
parking revenue, less applicable VAT, while SPSI shall receive the amount equivalent to 25% of
the monthly gross parking revenue, less applicable VAT. Income of KSA and expenses of SP3I,
which are equivalent to KSA's share are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Eental income and expense P29,549,203 B29.796,157 P26,512.768

The Parent Company leases its office space and SPRC leases a unit on Level 1 in Shangri-La
Plaza Mall from SLPC.

The Parent Company’s lease agreement is for a period of three years starting November 1, 2002.
By mutual agreement of the parties, the contract of lease was renewed on May 16, 2010 for
another three years which commenced on May 17, 2010 and ended on May 16, 2013. The
Parent Company’s rental expense is exclusive of VAT and subject to five percent escalation
every vear.

SRR
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In 2010, SPRC and SLPC entered into a lease agreement, whereby SPRC shall lease a unit on
Level 1 in Shangri-La for the higher oft (a) a minimum guarantee rent, or (b} a certain
percentage of gross sales, exclusive of VAT, The lease commenced on May 1, 2010 and ended
on April 30, 2014,

Rental expenses of the Parent Company and SPRC, and rental income of SLPC are as follows:

2015 2014 2013

SPRC B7,540,682 BT.319287 B7.316,402
Parent Company 4,047,397 3.502.034 4067 282
¥11,588.079 810,912,221 B11,383 684

The Parent Company’s and SPRC’s refundable deposits from these transactions amounted to
B425,424 as of December 31, 2015 and 201 4.

Management agreement between KSA and SPMSI:

2015 2014 2013
M anagement fee B3,084,414 B2 204,013 B2 540,103

KSA entered into a management agreement with SPMSI for a monthly fee of £150,000 with
10% annual escalation for a period of five years starting March 2008, The partics agree
mutually on the renewal of the agreement. SPMSI shall provide on-site property leasing
management including Head Office support services and periodic audit to ensure compliance
with international practices; perform staff recruitment, training and performance evaluation; and
perform financial management, including billing and collection and budget provisioning,

[n 2011, SPDI obtained an unsecured, noninterest-bearing, payable on or before December 31,
2012 loan from SHIL amounting to £2,317,500,000. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, this
loan has not been settled.

Parent Company’s dividend income from declarations of the following subsidiaries:

2015 2014 2013
SPRC $2,000,000,000 B P
SLPC 725,000,000 725,000,000 600,000,000
KSA 317,400,000 423,200,000 185,150,000
SPDI 95,000,000 75,000,000 o
SPSI 4,400,000 4,200,000 3,500,000
SPMSI 5,300,000 4,000,000

$£3,147,100,000  £1,231,400,000 R788.650,000

In 2013, the Parent Company and SPRC entered into a Deed of Absolute Sale for a parcel of
land owned by the Parent Company with total square meter area of 9.852 located at Internal
Road, Shangri-la Place, Mandaluyong City for a total consideration of P640.380,000. This
resulted to a loss on sale of the land amounting to £317,379,436 which was elimmated during
consolidation.

Reimbursement of expenses paid for by a related party on behalf of a related party and vice-
VErsa.

Unsecured, noninterest-bearing receivables and payables between related parties.

AT
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Outstanding balances from the above related party transactions at December 31 which were

gliminated during consolidation are as follows:

2015

2014

Receivables of the Parent Company from:

=SGCHI P1,010,072,503  £1,010,072,162
SPRC 707,416,648 853,625,220
SFBHI 690,928,983 690,928,665
SLPC 35,944,768 103,943,521
SPMST 30,249,929 22622222
SPSI 5,569,821 7.984.922
SPDI 1,672,843 5,215,561
KMSC 1,062,775 1,037,217
KS5A 254,158 426,229
) $2,483,172,428 B2695 855719

Payables of the Parent Company to:
SPIM B311,168.,985 B620,480,000
SLPC 3,266,635 1,169,881
SFRC 16,447,198 505,994
B330.882,818 Ba22,155.877

Receivables of:

SHIL from SPDI P2,317,500,000  B2,317,500,000
Others 2.680,401,325 2.549.461,2364
B4,997,901,325 B4.866,961.236

The receivables and payables between related parties, except for those arising from reimbursement
of expenses and those that are unsecured and noninterest-bearing which are payable on demand,

have normal credit terms of 30 to 90 days. but may go beyond as agreed.

47

Commitments and Contingencies

On July 14, 1993, a complaint was initially filed before the Regional Trial Court (RTC) - Pasig by
the principal contractor of the Shangri-La Plaza Mall against the Parent Company and the Board for
the recovery of the balance of alleged unpaid construction work, compensatory and moral damages,
legal fees and litigation costs totaling about $122,000,000, exclusive of interest. In the answer ex
abundante ad cautelam, as a counterclaim, the Parent Company is asking for approximately
£182,000,000 in overpayment plus B7,000,000 in damages and litigation costs. Due to technical
reasons, the principal contractor re-filed the case on or about June 23, 1998 with the Construction
Industry Arbitration Commission (CLAC).

On October 27, 1998, the RTC-Pasig issued an order directing the parties to arbitrate their dispute
under the Arbitration Law. A similar order was issued by the CIAC on February 3, 1999 dismissing
the proceedings instituted before it by the plaintiff. The plaintiff, accordingly, served a demand for
arbitration dated April 3, 1999 under the provisions of the Arbitration Law.
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The arbitration hearing, during which both the Parent Company and the principal contractor were
given the opportunity to present their witnesses, commenced in December 2006 and ended with the
decision of the Arbitral Tribunal promulgated on July 31, 2007. In its decision, the Arbitral Tribunal
awarded to the principal contractor the sum of 46,905,987, and to the Parent Company, the sum of
PR.387.484 (net award to the principal contractor was P38,518,503),

The principal contractor has appealed the Arbitral Tribunal’s decision to the Court of Appeals,
praving for the award of the full amount of its claim. The Parent Company has partially appealed the
said decision, praving for the reduction of the award to the plaintiff. The Court of Appeals, in its
decision dated August 12, 2008 and resolution dated April 16, 2009, awarded to the principal
contractor P24,497.556, unpaid progress billings based on the ariginal scope of work, and denied the
Parent Company of its motion for partial reconsideration.

On June 5. 2009, the Parent Company filed a Petition for Review on Certiorari to the Supreme Court
praving to issue an order or decision: (a) declaring the Parent Company as not liable to the principal
contractor for unpaid progress billings based on the original scope of work. (b) ordering the principal
contractor to pay the Parent Company £7.590,000 as liquidated damages, and (c) setting aside or
reversing the Court of Appeal’s decision and resolution insofar as they are adverse 1o the Parent
Company. On a Petition for Review on Certiorari dated June 11, 2009, the principal contractor
prayed to the Supreme Court to modify the decision and resolution of the Court of Appeals, to award
the principal contractor the full amount of its claim. Both petitions are pending resolution by the
Supreme Court as of March 4, 2016.

The Parent Company and SLPC have other pending legal cases which are being contested by the
Parent Company, SLPC and their legal counsels. Management and the legal counsels believe that
the final resolution of these cases will not have a material effect on the Group’s financial position
and results of operations,

3%

Lease Commitments

The Group entered into lease agreements with third parties covering the freehold buildings and their
improvemnents. These leases generally provide for either (a) fixed monthly rent, or (b) minimum rent
or a certain percentage of gross revenue, whichever is higher.

Rental income from percentage of gross revenue of lessee recognized in the profit or loss amounted
to B121,620,707, B121,382.947 and £124,074,911 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The minimum future rental collections under non-cancellable operating leases follow:

2015 2014 2013

Within one year F2.082,234,650 P2,823,156,660 P1.918,343,828
After one year but not more than

five years 2,126,994,971 4,642,450.449 1,475,431,761

More than five years 278,481,289 267,882,864 234,408,500

P4,487,710,910 P7,733 489973 P13 628,154,089
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34, Fair Value Measurement and Financial Instruments

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2015:

Fair ¥alue Measurement Using

Cuoted Prices in Significant Sigmficant
Active Marketz  Observable Inputs Unobservable
[Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3) Togal
Assets Measured at Fair Value
Financial assets at FVPL B34,882,100 B B B34 882,100
Investment properties:
Land - 15,700,020,110 - 15,701,020,110
Buildings - = 12,477 547,765 12,477,547,765
ATSE financial assets:
Unguoted = - 488,820,327 488,826,327
Cuoted 16,046,515 - o 16,046,515

Assets for which Fair Values are Disclosed
Loans and receivables

Reoervables® - 2,144.511,9218 - 1,144.511,918

Refundable deposits - S8,480,893 r 58,480,893
Liabilitics for which Fair Values are Disclosed
Accounts payable and other

current liabilities** - 3,398,805,799 - 3,398,805,799
Bank loans - 12,464,329, 487 - 12,464,329 457
Deposits from tenants - 995,952,193 - 095,952,193
Acerued employee benefits*** — 10,170,813 = 10,170,813

= Exchuding advances to confractors and suppliers of PES3, 909,842
* Eyrluding auvanced rental, customers’ deposits, reservatian payadle, ot VAT, deferved output VAT and withholding taxes.
se*Erofiding accrned retivement berafies of BI9.844.347.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2014

Fair ¥alue MMeasurement Lsing

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant
Active Markets  Observable Inputs Unobservable
{Level 1) (Level 23 Inputs (Level 3) Total

Assets Measured at Fair Value
Financial assets at FVFPL P33,012,524 B B PI3.012,524
Investment praperties:

Land - 13,428 400,270 - 13,428, 400,270

Buildings - — 13682467218 13,682.467,21%
AFE financial assets:

Unquoted - - 488,826,327 488,820,327

Ouoted 13,196,515 - - 13,196,513
Assets for which Fair Yalues are Disclosed
Loans and receivables

Receivables® - 3,131,070,344 - 3,131L,070,346

Refundable deposits - 08,414,064 - 68414064
Liabilities for which Fair Values are Disclosed
Accounts pavable and other

cuerent liabilities*® - 3,077,322,935 - 3.077,322,955
Bank loans - 12,148 668,905 - 12,148, 6068,905
Dieposits from Llenants - 977,395,224 - 77,595,226
Accrued employee benefits*** - 12,875,707 - 12,575 707

= Dxcluding advances lu contractors and suppliors of #4,031 179,038
=+ Ercluding advanced rental, customers” deposits, rerervation payable, output VAT, diferved output VAT and withholding taxes.
sebFenhuding accrued retivement bengfits of P53.624 328
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The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There have been no assets and liabilities transferred between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during
2015 and 2014,

The following methods and assumptions were used 1o estimate the fair value of cach class of
financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Financial Assets at FVPL
The fair value of financial assets at FVPL is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Accounts Payable and Other Curvent Liahilities, and
Dividends Payable

Due to the short-term nature of cash and cash equivalents, receivables other than installment
contracts receivable, accounts payable and other current liabilities, dividends payable and accrued
employee benefits, their carrying values were assessed to approximate their fair values.

Tnstaflment Contracts Recetvable
The fair value of installment contracts receivable are based on the discounted value of future cash
flows using applicable rates for similar instruments..

Refundable Deposits and Deposits from Tenanls

The fair values of deposits from tenants were based on the present value of estimated future cash
flows using PDST — R2 rates at the reporting date. Discount ranges from 1.48% to 3.98% and
1.01% to 3.55% as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

AFS Financial Assets
The fair value of quoted equity securities is based on quoted market prices as of the reporting date.
The fair value of unquoted equity securities is not reasonably determinable.

Bank Loans
The carrying value of the bank loans with variable interest rates approximates their fair value
because of recent and quarterly repricing based on market conditions.

o

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
at FVPL, loans and receivables, AFS financial assets and other financial liabilities. These are held
primarily to finance the Group’s operations, capital expenditures and to provide guarantees to
support its operations. The Group’s financial instruments, such as cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and trade payables, arise directly from the conduct of the Group’s operations.

The tmain risks arising from the use of the financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. Risk management is carried out by the Group’s management under policies approved
by the Board. The Group’s management identifies and cvaluates financial risks in close
cooperation with the Group’s operating units,

The main objective of the Group’s financial risk management is to minimize the potential adverse

effects of the unpredictability of financial markets on the Group’s financial performance. The Board
provides principles for overall risk management, as follows:

NIRRT
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows
or the fair values of financial instruments. The cash flows of the Group’s bank loans that are
exposed to interest rate risk as of December 31, 2015 are disclosed in Note 19.

Interest rates on all bank loans are based on the higher between the PDST-R2 rate and the BSP
overnight borrowing rate.

The Group’s interest rate risk management policy focuses on reducing the overall interest expense
and exposure 1o change in interest rates. Changes in market interest rates relate primarily to the
Group’s long term loans with floating interest rates as it ¢an cause a change in the amount of interest
payments.

Interest on financial instruments with floating rates is repriced at intervals of less than one year,
Interest on financial instruments with fixed rates is fixed until the maturity of the instrument. The
other financial instruments of the Group are noninterest-bearing and are therefore not subject to
interest rate risk. The Group invests excess funds in short-term placements in order to mitigate any
increase in interest rate on borrowings,

The following table represents the impact on the Group’s income before income tax brought about
by reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, as of
December 31 until its next financial reporting date:

Change in Interest Rate  Effect on Income before Income Tax

2015 Increase by 0.50% 02,321,647
Decrease by 0.50% (62,321.647)

2014 Increase by 0.93% 45,754,940
Decrease by 0.95% (45,754,940

There is no other effect on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting profit or loss.

Credir Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur financial losses because its counterparties failed to
discharge their contractual obligations. The Group is exposed to credit risk from ils operating
activitics (primarily trade receivables), including deposits with banks and other financial
instruments. The Group has no significant concentration on credit risk.

Trade Receivables

Sales of residential condominium units that are on installment basis are supported by post-dated
checks from the buyers. Titles to properties sold are not relcased unless full payment is received. In
the case of leasing operation, tenants are subjected to credit evaluation and are required to put up
security deposits and pay advance rentals, if necessary. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the expected cash flows from installment receivable and carrving value of rent
receivable as disclosed in Note 7.

VAT
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Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group’s treasury department in accordance
with the Group’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made enly with approved counterparties (o
mitigate financial loss through counterparly’s potential failure to make payments. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk for the component of the statement of financial position at
Diecember 31, 2015 and 2014 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in Notes 5, 6, 7, 9, and 17 except
for financial guarantees. The Group’s maximum exposure relating to financial guarantees is noted in
the liquidity table below.

The net maximum exposure to credit risk for cash in banks, after taking into account insurance on
bank deposits, amounted to 896,278,904 in 2015 and B116,234,079 in 2014,

The following tables provide the aging analysis of receivables that are past due but not impaired
under the Group’s receivables account as of December 31:

2015
More than
<30 Days  &0-90 Days 91 - 120 Days 121 - 150 Days 150 Diavs Total
Rant PO588081  P11859.834  PIS228.735 B3G11,922  B11.299.001 P64.587.573
Relaed parties - - - T 72,902,777 T2,902,777
2014
More than
<30Days  60-90Days  91-120Days 121 - 150 Days 150 Days Tatal

Rent 37,175,507 P§.7RE413 B5,107,592 PG 861,126 BITOI0NSE  $B74 942 600
Related partics - - - 42,794,110 42,794,110

Financial instruments classified under “neither past due nor impaired” include high grade credit
quality instruments because there were few or no history of default on the agreed terms of the
contract, “Past due and impaired” financial asset as disclosed in Note 7 pertains to those financial
instruments that are long outstanding and have been provided with allowance for impairment
losses.

The credit quality of the financial assets classified under neither past due not impaired was
determined as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at FVPL and AFS financial assets are based on the nature
of the counterparties and the Group’s internal rating system.

Receivables which are satisfactory pertains to receivables from existing and active tenants,
customers, related parties, counter parties, officers and employees; while unsatisfactory pertains to
receivables from tenants, customers, related parties and counter parties that have already ceased their
respective operations, and officers and employees that are no longer employed by the Group.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at
reasonable prices. The Group maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents in order 1o fund its
operations. The Group monitors its cash flows and carefully matches the cash receipts from its
condominium sales and leasing operations against cash requirements for its construction activities,
The Group utilizes its borrowing capacity, if necessary, to further bolster its cash reserves.
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The following tables summarize the maturity profile of financial assets compared with the
contractual undiscounted payments of financial liabilities in order to provide a complete view of the

Group’s liguidity as of December 31.

{35
Over 1to 3 Over Jto 5
Within 1 Year Years Years  Owver 5 Years Tutal
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FYEL B34.852.100 [ - B B34 882,100
Toans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents 4,041,169,742 - - = 4.041,165,742
Reeoivahles:
Installment conteacts receivable 3767852227 1,530,860,807  1,344.248,187 - 6.651,970,311
Rent 194,320,946 - - - 194,320,946
Felated parfies 72,902,777 - - - 72902777
Advanees o officers and employees 5,732,807 2 2 o 5,732,997
Interest 4,396,733 - - - 4,396,733
{(Mhers 31,129,262 - - - 51,129,162
AF5 financial assets 504,872,542 - - - 504,872,842
BEET7250.626  BIL539.560.8097 1344248187 B P11,561,377,710
(rther Financial Liahilities
Agcounts payable and other curment
liabilities ¥ B3 462 487081 ¥ P- P- PB3,4624587081
Installmant payment 1 448222,777  3.950,795,052 2909038392 - B308.659.221
Bank loans E84. 166,667  4,157,500,000  4,170,040,000 3295333333 1Z510.000,000
Dicposits from (enants ThA03,920 331,920,732 522,026,131 94,810,822 1,028,161,605
Accrued employes beneliig*** - - - 10,170,513 10,070,813
BE.ET4.280,445 E440.218.784 PTO00.4664,523  PI403314.908 15319478720

*Exnected cash flones from installment contraci recsivables as presenied in Note 7.

+ Dyeluding advanced rental, customers ' deposits, reservation payable, vwiput VAT, deferved ouiga

*=+Ercluding aoorped retivement bengfits of B39 644,347

VAT and withholding tixes.

2014
Cwer Lo 3 Crver 3o s
Within | Year ATy W Cars Chver 5 Fears Tatal
Financial Assets
Finuncial assets at FVPL PI3 012,524 Ee B P B33.012.524
Loans and receivahles:
Cash and cash equivalents 2.911,004,820 - - - 2911004820
Receivables:
Installment contracts reecivable 4,795,800,178  1,669,504,326 £47 B85 063 - 113,189 50%
Rent 1,246,080 - - = 201,285,080
Kelated partics 42,794,110 - - 42,794 110
Advances 1o officers and cmployees 7127724 - - = 7127724
Interest 1,687,524 - - - 1,697 324
Crthers 64,221,268 - - - 4,221,266
Cash in escaow™™ 352,027 48% - - 352,027,489
AFS financial assefs 502,822 842 - = 502,822,842

EE.911,794,557

Pl 669,504,326

P547 885,003

B OB11,229,183,948

Crther Financial Liabilities
Acoounts pevahle and ather current

labilities* $2,979,365 856 B B B B2,079,365,856
Bank loans S83.333333  1AT0833334 1,312,300,000  $.382,002238 12,148,668 905
Depnsite from tenants $4.247 874 408,284, 464 470,074,443 40,830,830 1,003,437 637
Agered emploves benefits=** - - - 12,875,707 12,875,707
B B3 516,047,065 P2279117,798 PI,782,574443 PBE 415708801 B16,144 348,103

= Excluding aavanced renial, customers’ deposits, reservation payable, outprl VAT, deferved ouiput VAT and withholding taves.

** Dinder frpet tox qnd ofher current asyels.

*#*Eriuding aecrued retivement bengfits of P35,626 328,

AURRAMEAAR Y
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36. Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating, comply with externally imposed capital requirements, and maintain healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and maximize stockholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to stockholders, return capital to stockholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes in 2015, 2014 and 2013,
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by capital. The Group
includes within net debt bank loans less cash and cash equivalents. Capital pertains to total equity
less NCI.
2015 2014
Net Debt
Pank loans P12,464,329,487 BI12,148,668,005
Less cash and cash equivalents 4,041,169,742 2,911,004,820
8,423,159,745 5,237,664,085
Capital
Total equity 32.301,582,765  27,784,333.224
Less NCI 6,370,409,78%  3.965,795,878
25,931,172,976  23,818,537.346
Gearing Ratio 32.48% 38.78%
The Group was able to meet ils capital management ohjectives,
37. Note to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

In 2014, the principal noncash transaction under investing activities pertains to the acquired total
assets amounting to P9,647,345,695 and total liabilities amounting to P9 453 381,223 as a result of

the business combination (see Note 12).

I AT
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38. Acronyms and Abbreviations

The following are the acronyms and abbreviations used in the consolidated financial statements with
the meanings as specified below:

Acronyms/

Abbreviations Meaning

AFS available-for-sale

ALM Asset-Liability Matching Study

AFIC additional paid-in capital

BOA Board of Accountancy

BSDC Brown Swallow Development Corporation
B5P Bangkeo Sentral ng Pilipinas

BVI British Virgin Islands

CcGuU cash generating unit

CIAC Construction Industry Arbitration Commission
CWT Creditable withholding tax

DFFS Dieposit for future stock subscription

EIR effective interest rate

ELHI EPHI Logistics Holdings, Inc.

EPRC Exchange Properties Resources Corporation
ESHRI EDSA Shangri-La Hotel and Resort, Inc.
EUL estimated useful lives

FBSHI Fort Bonifacio Shangri-la Hotel, Inc.
FRSC Financial Reporting Standards Council
FVO fair value option

FWVPL fair value through profit or loss

Gipsey Gispey Ltd.

GFA gross floor area

HEKSF Hong Kong Dollar

HLURB Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board
HTM held to maturity

[AS International Accounting Standard

IASE [nternational Accounting Standards Board
IFRIC International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standard
1PP1 Tvory Post Properties, Inc.

ISP1 Ideal Sites and Propertics, Inc.

KMSC KPPl Management Services Corporation
KRC KPPI Realty Corporation

ESA KSA Realty Corporation

MBFI Martin B. Properties, Inc.

MCIT minimum corporate income tax

MOA memorandum of agreement

NCI non-controlling interests

NCEI New Contour Realty, Inc,

NOI Met operating income

NOLCO net operating 1oss carryover

NRV net realizable value

OCI other comprehensive income

osh optional standard deduction

ARSI
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Acronyms/

Abbreviations Meaning

OSP One Shangri-La Place Project

OspPCC One Shangri-La Place Condominium Corporation
PAS Philippine Accounting Standard

PDST-R2 Philippine Dealing System Treasury Refercnce Rates
PFRS Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
PHIREF Philippine Interbank Reference Rate

POC percentage of completion

EFSE Philippine Stock Exchange

PSI Perfect Sites, Inc.

RA Republic Act

RCIT regular corporate income tax

RTC Regional Trial Court

SEC Securities and Exchange Commission

SFBHI Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, Inc.

SGCHI Shang Global City Holdings, Inc,

SGCPI Shang Global City Properties, Inc.

SHIL Silver Hero Investments Limited

SLPC Shangri-La Plaza Corporation

SLPI Sky Leisure Properties, Inc.

SPDIT Shang Property Developers, Inc.

SPMSI Shang Property Management Services, Inc.,
SPRC Shang Properties Realty Corporation

SEsI SPI Parking Services, Inc.

B5P Shang Salcedo Place Project

TCT transfer certificates of title

TEC The Enterprise Center

TECCC The Enterprise Center Condominium Corporation
TRDCI The Rise Development Company, Inc.

TSFSP The St. Francis Shangri-La Place Project
TSFSPCC The St. Francis Shangri-la Place Condominium Corporation
TSGT The Shang Grand Tower Project

TSGTCC The Shang Grand Tower Condominium Corporation
US$ United States Dollar

VAT value-added tax

WACC weighted average cost of capital

RSN TENIN



SyCip Comes Melaye & Co. Tel: (832) 891 0307 BOAPRC Reg. Mo, 0001,
BYE0 Ayala Avenue Fax; (G32) 819 03872 December 14, 2015, valid unlil December 31, 2018
1225 Makati Cily ay.camiph SEC Accraditation Mo, 001 2-FR-4 {Group A),

Huilding a better Philippines Movember 10, 2015, valid untll November &, 2018
working world .

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Shang Properties, Inc.

Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall
EDSA comer Shaw Boulevard,
Mandaluyong City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing the conselidated financial
statements of Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 and for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, included in this Form 17-A and have issued our
report thereon dated March 4, 2016. Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index to the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the management of Shang
Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries. These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with
Securilies Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011), and are not part of the basic financial
statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and. in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the information
reguired to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Cdee 4. .

Arnel F. De Jesus

Partner

CPA Certificale No. 43285

SEC Accreditation No. 0073-AR-3 (Group A),
February 14, 2013, valid until April 30, 2016

Tax [dentification No. 152-884-385

BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-001998-15-2015,
June 26, 2015, valid until June 25, 2018

PTR No. 5321627, January 4, 2016, Makati City

Mlarch 4, 2016
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SHANG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

PARENT COMPANY RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMRBER 31, 2015

2015

Unappropriated Parent Company retained earnings, beginning BY,347,694,274
Adjustments (see adiustments in previous years Reconciliations)

Cumulative change in fair value of investment properties - net of tax (6,572,345,119)

Cumulative change in fair value of financial asset at FVPL - net of tax _(800,238)
Unappropriated Parent Company retained earnings,

as adjusted, beginning 1,774,548,917
Met income of the Parent Company closed to retained earnings B3 ,453,045.445
Less:

Fair value adjustment of investment property (365,327,990

Fair value adjustment of financial assets at FVPL {571,261)
Net income actually earned during the period 3,087,146,194
Less: Dividend declaration during the period {738,097,655)

Total Parent Company retained earnings available for
dividend declaration, end £4,123,597,456




SHANG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF THE EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of v
Financial Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

| Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
\PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial T
(Revised) | Reporting Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an v

Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

Amendments to PFRS |: Additional Exemptions -. o
for First-time Adopters

Amendment to PERS 1: Limited Exemption from | v
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation - v
and Removal of Fixed Date for First-time
Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans - B ' v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v

Amendments to PFRS 2! Vesting Conditions and - v
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled v
Share-based Payment Transactions

PFRS3 | Business Combinations v
(Revised)

'PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts ' v

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial v
Guarantee Contracts

PFRS 5 Mon-current Assets Held for Sale and v
Discontinued Operations

PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral v
' Resources '

PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures v

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: o 7
Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition v




-------

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS T,
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective
Date and Transition

tabout Financial Instruments

Emendmems to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers
of Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective
Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

'PFRS 8

I_Dperating Segments

PFRS 9

| Financial Instruments; Classification and
Measurement of Financial Assets

%l &

Financial Instruments; Classification and
Measurement of Financial Liabilities

“\ |

Amendments ;ru PFRS 9 Mandatory Effective
Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

[Amendmenls to PFRS 9: Hedge Accounting

PFRS 10

'Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition
Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10; Investment Entities

Amendments o PFES 10: Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Assoclate or Joint Venture

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities:
| Applying the Consolidation Exception

FPFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11: Transition
Guidance

' Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for
' Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities




Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition
Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment
Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

PAS1
(Revised)

Philippine Accounting Standards

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Caﬁilal DiSC:.lO:‘:IU}Ei;i-“ |

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liguidation

Amendments to PAS | Presentation of Items of
|Uther Comprehensive Income

I Amendments 1o PAS 1 (Revised): Disclosure
Initiative

PAS 2

Inventories

PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows

N

PAS 8

'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
'Estimates and Errors

PAS 10

'Events after the Reporting Date

PAS 11

Construction Contracis

PAS 12

Income Taxes

~

' Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets

PAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendments to PAS 16; Bearer Plants

Amendments to PAS 16: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation

PAS 17

[eases

|PAS 18

Revenue

PAS 19

I
-

; Emplovee Benefits

Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and
Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

SSNISAN




PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
(Revised)
Amendments to PAS 19 (Revised): Delined
Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
PAS 20 Accounting for Gm’ernmen{ﬁrants and
Diisclosure of Government Assistance
[ PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange v
Rates
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs v
{Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures v
{Revised) o
PAS 26 'Accnuming and Reporting by Retirement Benefit
. Plans
| PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements v
{Amended)
Amendments to PAS 27 (Amended):
Investment Entities
Amendments to PAS 27 (Amended): Equity
‘Method in Separate Financial Statements |
PAS 28 Investments in Associates v
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
A d
Camengled) Amendments to PAS 28 (Amended): Sale or v
Contribution of Assets between an Investor
‘and its Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to PAS 28 (Amended):
Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies
PAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liguidation )
' Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights
[ssues




Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial
| Assets and Financial Liabilities

PAS 33 Eamnings per Share
PAS 34 Inten im Financial Reporting
|PAS 36 lmpmrment of Assets
Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclusurﬁs for Non-Financial Assets
PAS 37 Provisions, Contmgent Liabilities and Contingent
| Assets
PAS 38 Inmngmlc Assels
PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Mea%m ement
Amendments to PAS 39 Transition and Initial
Eecognition of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 39 Cash Flow Hedge
Accountmg of Forecast IntragmuP Transactions
ﬁmandments to PAS 39 The I"a1r Valuc: Dpuon
Amandments to PAS 39 and PFR& 4 Flndncml
Guarantee Contracts
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassitication of Financial Assets
Amendments to PAS 39 and FFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets — Effective
Date and Transition
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9
and PAS 39: Embedded Deuvatwes
Amendment to PAS 39: bhglble Hedged ltams
Amendments to PAS 39 Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Acmuntmg
Amendments to PAS 3% Hedge Accounting
PAS 40 Inveﬂment Pr::rpu‘lv
PAS 41 A grmulture

Philippine Inferpretations

IFRIC 1

Changes in Existing Decommissioning,

| Restoration and Similar Liabilities




IFRIC 2

Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities

Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and v
Sumlar [nstruments
IFRIC 4 Defermmmg Whether an Arrangement Loma.ms a
Lease
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds
IFRIC o | Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific v
Muarket - Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equmem
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Appmach under FAS 29 v
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies
| IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2 v
IFRICY9  |Reassessment of Fmbedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Phlhppme Intarpratatmn [FRIC—9 v
‘and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 | Interim Financial Reporting and Impatrment v
IFRIC 11  |PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions v
IFRIC 12 |Service Concession Arrangements v
IFRIC 13 | Customer Loyalty Programmes <
[FRIC 14 | The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- v
14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding '
: Requ[rement
TIFRIC 16 |Hedges of'a Net Investment in a Foreign vy
Operation
IFRIC 17 | Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC 18 | Transfers of Assets from Customers v
IFRIC 19 |Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity v
: Instruments
[FRIC 20 | Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a v
Surface Mine
SI1C-7 Introduction of the Euro v
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to 4
_ Operating Activities
SIC-12 v




!. Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of 8IC 12 v

SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary v
Contributions by Venturers

SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v

SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an v
Entity or its Shareholders

SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease

SI1C-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. v

SIC-31 | Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving v
Advertising Services

SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v




SHANG PROPERTIES, INC.
INDEX TO FINANCIAL AND SUPPLEMENTARY
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 231, 2015

Signed finacial statements See Altached

As of and for the vear December 31, 20105

Supplamentary schedules

Schedule A - Financial Assets MA
Schedule B - Amounts Receivable om Directors, Qflivers, Employess,

Belated Parlies and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties) X
Schedule C - Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during the

Consolidation of Financial Statements X
Schedule T - Iriangible Assets - Other Assets NA
Schedule E - Long-Term Debt ‘ X
Schedule F - [ndebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from

Relaled Companies) M
Schedule - G Cruarantees of Securitics of Other Issuers X
Schedule H - Capital Stock b

X - Anached



SHANG PROPERTIES INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE B - AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES

DECEMBER 31, 2015
= = Amounts : oo
MWame of Related Party Beginning Balance Additions Amounts collected =R Current Mot Current Ending Balance

One Shangri-la Place Condominium Corp 629 854 34,573.431 16,413,558 - 18,758,072 31,676 18,789,748
The Enterprise Centre Condominium Corp, £.937.215 33,987,789 50,186,065 - 12,726,372 12,567 12,738,939
Makati Shangri-la Hotel 9,960,616 %£16,727 1,053,567 - 1,495,132 5228 644 0723776
The Shang Grand Tower Condominivm Corp. 6,005,715 6,348 638 2. 798,053 - 49,2749 510 126810 9,556,320
The 5t, Francis Shangri-la Place Condominium Corp. 4 800,656 14,184,690 11,826,083 - 0,935,427 313,835 T7.245.262
[deal Sites Property Ine. 3,600,548 305,792 6,350 - 05Tz 3,594, 198 3,809 990
EDSA Shangri-la Hotel & Resorts, Inc, 3,926,401 10,873,031 11,929,508 - 1477607 1,392,316 2 RA9 923
Shangri-la Fijisian Resorn 626,952 - - - - 026,952 626,952
Mactan Shangri-la Hotel 268,695 TTE912 F7T,701 - 268,470 1,437 269 907
Fort Bonifacio Shangri-la Hotel Inc, 820,864 3997224 4,646 486 - 171,601 - 171,601
thers 3,126,594 10,903,735 7,023,990 - 3,343,653 3462706 7.004,359

42,794,110 136,770,008 106,661,341 54,911,636 17.991,141 72,902,777




SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE C - AMOUNTS RECEIVARLE FROM RELATED FPARTIES WHICH ARE ELIMINATED
DURING THE CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2015
" e Amounts . , N

Mame of Related Party Beginning Balance Additiens Amounts collected s L Current Mot Current Ending Balance
Silver Hero from 5P 2.317,300,000 - - - - 2,317,500,000 2,317,300,000
Shang Global City Holdings Inc. 1.010,072,162 3,289 2,048 - 3,289 L010,069 214 1,000,072,503
Shang Fropeny Realty Corp. 853119224 1,735,136,056 1,874,554 513 T0®, 535,839 3215141 T13,730,765
Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, [nc, 690,928 665 3755 3.437 - 3755 G590, 925 228 U0, 578 983
Shangri-la Plaza Comp, 102,773,640 407 881,791 421,482,308 - %9003 473 79,649 89,173,123
Shangz Property Manapement Services, [ne. 22622212 15,712,475 8,060,307 - 11,688 543 18,585,632 30,274,390
Shang Fropemy Developers Inc. 5,215,561 47379018 39.471.278 1,733,079 11,390,222 12,123,301
SPI Parking Services, Inc. 7.984 G722 31,880 987 30,953,291 - 6.930.631 LE7,091 B912,018
KFF] Management Services, Ine. 1,037,217 25,557 = 23,357 1,037,217 1.062,774
K54 Realty Corp. 426,229 7,659,566 7,256,767 TO% 437 129,590 839,027
Others 3,173,292 99 1,252, 723,581 1,438,697 483 - I 16,465 076 2819854012 2,936,319, 088
Tatal 5. 184 972 832 3,498 466074 3871482 335 = P35, 197 630 6,874,972 5 T.511,956,571




SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE E - LONG-TERM DEBT

DECEMBER 31, 2015
Amount shown under caption Amount shown under caption
"current portion of long-term "Long-term Debt” in related
Title of Issue and type of obligation Amount authorized by indenture debt" in related balance sheet balance sheet
Term Loan 10,800,000,000 867,751,562 11,596,577,925

Total 10,800,000,000 867,751,562 11.596,577,925




SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE G - Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

DECEMBER 31, 2015

Name of issuing entity

Title of issue of each
class of security

Total amount guaranteed and outstanding

Mature of guarantee

Fort Bonifacio Shangri-la Hotel

Bank loan

50% of total outstanding balance (PhP4.5 Billion)

Guarantee of principal and interest




SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE H - CAPITAL STOCK

DECEMBER 31, 2015

Mumber of Shares
Reserved for options,

Number of Shares Held By

Mumber of Shares Mumber of Shares | Warrants, Converstion, Directors, Officers and
Title of issue Authorized Issue and Outstanding | and other Rights Adliliates Employees Others
Common &.000,000,000 4,764,056,287 1,648, 869,372 4,832,027 3,110,334,888
Total £.000,000,000 4, 764,056,287 - 1648, 869,372 4,852,027 3110334 888
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Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills
City of Mandaluyong, Metro Manila

April 13, 2016 ;

SHANG PROPERTIES, INC.

D00-144-356-000

Drear Sirs:

We are submitting three (3) coples of the audited financial statements of Shang Properties
Inc. (formerly EDSA Properties Holdings [nc.) for the year ended December 31, 2015 duly
stamped “received” by the Bureau of Internal Eevenue.

Also enclosed are the following:

1. A CD containing the soft copy of the Special Form for Financial Statements of Publicly-
Held and Investment Comparies with the following details:

Parent Company Consolidated Company
File name and file format PHFS1 Publicly-Held and PHFS2 Publicly-Held and
Investment Co, (Parent or Investment Co.
Individual). xLS {Consolidated AFS)LXLS
Size of the file, and [3% KE 250 kKB
Last date maodified April 13, 2016 April 13, 2016

2. Certification from the Company’s Treasurer or his equivalent that the CD has the basic
and material data in the hard copy of the audited financial statements.

Wery truly yours,

Elsié C. Cagalingan
Accounting Manager

Level B, Shangri-La Flaza Mall, EDSA corner Shaw Bouleverg, Mandaluyong City., Matra Manila, Philippines 1550
T (632) 370-2700  F: {833 370-2777  wwnwishangpropsrtiss com



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
QUEZONC }553

TREASURER'S CERTIFICATION

I, Kin Sun Andrew Ng, of legal age, Resident Alien and with office address at the
5/Level, Shangri-La Plaza Mall, EDSA cormer Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City,
after being swom in accordance with law, hereby certify that:

. Iam the Treasurer of Shang Properties, Ine. (the “"Corporation™), a cerporation
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compliance with the reportorial requirements of the SEC.

WITHNESS MY HAND on this day of March 2016 at Mandaluyong City,
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Control No.:

Forrn Type: PHFS2
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.: AT0-2700 FAX NO.: ar0-2657
COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PSIC:
if these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.
Table 1. Balance Shest
2015 2014
FINANCIAL DATA {in PODD ) {in P00D)
A ASSETS(AI+AZ4+AR+ AL+ AGLAREATHARLATL AN 58,202,690 54,682,123
&1 Current Asseds (A 11 +A12+813+814+415) 15,174,956 14,684,576
#.1.1 Cash and cash equivalents (A.1.1.1 +A1.1.2 +A.1.1.3] 4041170 2811005
A1.1.1 On hand 72768 404 681
£.1.1.2 In domestic banks/entilies 3,968,402 2,606,323
A.1.1.3 In foreign banksientities
41,2 Trade and Cdher Receivables (A.1.21 +A1.2.2) 2172435 4162 245
A1.2.1 Due from domestic entilies (A1.211+A12 1.2 +A1.213 +A121.4) 2172435 4,162,243
A.1.2.1.1 Due from guslomers (irade) 1,357 420 3,043,515
A.1.2.1.2 Due from related parfies 72803 42,794
A.1.2.1.3 Others, specify (8.1.21.31 + 4121324412 133+4.1.2.1.34) 750,168 1,083,097
A1.2.1.31 Deposit for Future Project
£.1.2.1.3.2 Conlactors and Suppliers GLE, 909 1,081,179
A1.21.3.3 Others 51,260 52,6818
A.1.2.1.4 Allowance for doubtiul aceounts (negative entry) {5, 056) [8.056)
A2 F Due from foreign entities, specify 0 0
{(A1221+A1222+A81223+A1224)
Al1221
A1222
A12.23
A.1.2.2.4 Allowance for doubtiul accounts (negative entry)
A1 Inventories (A1.31+A132+A133+A134+A135+A138) 7,160,774 5,773,118
A.1.5.1 Raw materials and supplies
AA.3.2 Goods in process (including unfinished goods, grawing crops, unfinished seeds)
£.1.3.3 Finished goods
A.34 Merchandise/Goods in frangit
A.1.5.5 Unbilled Senvices (in case of service providers)
A58 Others, specify (AJ1361 + A13E2 + A1LES 7,160,774 5,773,118
A.1.3.6.1 Conslruclion in Progress 7065833 5,669,349
A.1.36.2 Condominium units held for sake 74,941 103,765
A1.36.3 Real estate properlies held for sake 0 0
&.1.4 Financial Assels ather than Cash/Receivables/Equity investments (4,141 + A14.2 + 8143 + 34,882 nma
hildd+h145+4148)
A.1.4.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value threugh Profit or Loss - issued by domestic entifies: 34,852 3303
[(A1411+A1412+A1413+A1414+A1415)
A.4.1.1 Mational Government
A1.4.1.2 Public Financial Institufions
A1.4.1.3 Public Mon-Financial Instiulicns 34,537 33013
A1.4.1.4 Private Financial Instifutions
MA1.4.1.5 Private Mon-Financizl Instiufions
8142 Held to Maturity Imvesiments - issued by domestic entities: 0 0

(A1421+81422+8 1423 +A 1424 +A14.25)

A1.4.2.1 Walianal Gevesnmeant

A.1.4.2.2 Public Financial Institutions

A.1.4.2.3 Public Non-Financial Instibulions

A.1.4.2 4 Privale Financial Instidufions

&.1.4.2.5 Privale Man-Financial Instittions

NOTE:

Thiz gpecial farm is agplicate 10 Investment Companies and Publiciy-held Companies (enumeraied in Seclion 17.2 of the Sacuriies Regulation Code (SRC), except
benks and imsurance companies). As a supplemental form 1o FHFS, iU shal be used for reporling Consalidated Financia! Statements of Parent corperalions and their

subsidiznes,

Demeslic comporaiions ane (hose which ane incorporated under Phiippine laws o Branchesizubsickaries of foreign corparations thal ane licensed 1o o2 bugingss in he
Philippines whera the center of enonomic interast or aclivity is within the Philippines. Cn the olher hand, fareign corporations ara thaes that are incorparated abroad, including

branches of Philippine corparations operating abroad,

Finangial Inslilulions ze corpocalions principally engaged in fnancial intermedzation, facililating inzncal intermediation, o ausilizry financial services. Mon-Financal

instintions refer i corporations that ane pmarity engaged in the production of market goods and non-fnancial senices.
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SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Control No.:
Farm Type:

PHFS2

CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH FLOOR $HANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY

TEL. NO.: 3702700 FAX NQ.: 370-2607

COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER

if these are based on consolidated fnancial Stalements, Please S0 INGICALe in the capiion.
Table 1. Balance Sheat

PSIG:

1012

FINANCIAL DATA

2015
[in P'O00 )

2014
{in P'000 )

A.14.3 Leans and Receivables - issued by domestic enfifies;
(A1431+A1432+A1433+A1434+414250

#.1.4.3.1 National Government

£A.1.4.3.2 Public Financial Inslilutions

A.1.4.3.3 Public Mon-Financiz! Institutions

A1.4.34 Privale Financial Insfitutions

£.1.4.3.5 Private Non-Finangizl Instititions

A4S Available-for-sale financial assets - issued by domestic entities:
(21441 +A1442+A1443+8 1444 +4 1445

A.1.4.4.1 Nationgl Government

8.1.4.4 7 Public Fingncial Ingfitutions

&.1.4.4.3 Public Non-Financial Instifutions

A.14.4.4 Private Financial Insfitutions

A.1.4.4.5 Private Mon-Financial Instifutions

A 145 Financial Assets issued by foreign entities: (A.1.4.5.1+41.4.5 244145 3+4 14 54]

A.1.4.5.1 Financial Assels at fair value throuah orofit or loss

A.1.4.5.2 Held-to-maturily investments

41453 Loans gnd Recaivables

81454 Available-for-sale financial azsats

A1.4.8 Allowance for decline in markat value {neagative enlry)

A1.5 Other Current Assels (state separately material ilems) (A.1.5.1 +A1.5.2 +A.1.5.3)

1,765,695

1,805,192

A1.5.1 Credifable withholding fax

206 530

222 708

A 1.5.2 Prepaid expenses

1,469,156

1582484

A15.3 Ohers

A2 Property, plant, and equipment (A2 +A22 +AZ3+A24 + AZE+AZE+AZT+AZE)

135,298

87,009

A21Larbd

ik impr i i improvement

BB.5YT

85943

_ﬁ..z.ﬁ_maﬁn.ﬂﬁmam_mwpment ran nants and in transm

38,873

35016

32,‘: Others, specify (A2.5.1 +A252+.ﬁ.2a3+ﬁ.254+.ﬁ.2551

177.008

100,932

| A 251 Prooerly or equibment usad for educsfion ourposes

A 252 Furnilures and fixdures

177008

100,222

A2DD

254

AZSS

A26 Appraisal increase, speciy (A261 +AZBI +APE+ AT R + A 25

A261

WAL

26D

A2054

A2ED

A2 7 Accumulated Depreciation (negative enfpy)

(167 1581

(135471

A28 Impairment Loss o Bevarsal (f loss, neastive entnvd

A3 Invesimenis accounted for using the eguity method (A3 +AS2 +A 33 +A 34]

401 845

410,790

b3 Eﬂ]] by IJ o ﬂﬁ[ & subsidi aﬁﬂ,ﬂaﬂ E =+

491,048

410.790

atili

£33 Others, specify (4351 +.ﬁ.33‘2+h333+ﬁ.334+ﬁ335‘1

0

0

A331

Ad3Z

A233

£334

A335

i

28,178,563

27110867

A0 Binlogical Asseats

| AB Infangible Assets

AG 1 Maior ilermis, specify (A6.1.1 + A6 1.2

L AS11 Geodwil

= B 2

AB12

A82 Oibers specife (AB21 + 88220

A521

AE2Z

AT Asmats Classified as Held for Sale

| AR aceats included in Disposal Groups Classifiod as Held for Sala
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Contral Na.:

Form Typa: FHFEE

SPECIAL FORM FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMEMT COMPANIES

NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.:  370-2700 FAX NO.: 370-2697
COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PaIC: Toi2
fthese are based on consolidated financial sialement(s, please 0 ndicale i e capien.
Table 1. Balance Sheet
2015 2014
FINANCIAL DATA (I P00 PR
r iond (A8 1 +A52+803) GE0 S8T ]
ify (A1 1+AO17+A813) G0 ST ]
A.9,1.1 Inslaliment Confracts Receivakles GE0.SET
AS12
A%13
£.9.2 From foreign entilies, specify (4021 +48232 + 4.9 23 1] Q
ASZT
[
A0 Whﬂﬁsseis{ﬂ 'I'D'I-'-F. 1|:|2+,|=,1I3I3+.»'-". 104 +A '||:| 5] 14,650,933 12408879
A 10,1 Deferad charges - net of amorization
ﬁ..: 2 Def I T 235 860 256,408
gl its
A.10.4 Others, specify (A 1041+ 41042 + 41043+ 4 104 444 10.4 £} 14415072 12,052,471
A10.41 Real estate development projecls 13.576.917 11,211,284
41042 Avzilgble-for -5l financial asgels 504 B73 202 823 |
£.10.4.3 Refundable deposits 63411 A8 494
A10.4.4 Goodwil 250,671 268471
A 1{J 4.5
B, LFAEILITIES tB 1 +B2+ 8. 3 +B4+B 53 26,991.107 26,857,790
B.1 Current Lighilfies (B11+B12+B813+814+815+816+817 7,394,009 £.201.010
B.1.1 Trade and Other Payablas to Damestic Entities 6,425,137 5,466 546
[B111+811.2+B113+B114+8.1.1.5+B.1.1.8)
B4 Loansiboles Pavables 857 752 543133
B.1.1.2 Trade Payables 762,630 537 627
BE.1.1.3 Payables to Related Parfies 45 234 435630
B.1.1.4 Advances from Directors, Officers, Employees and Principal Stockholders i
B.1.1.5 Accruals, specify materal ftems (B.1.1.5.1 + B1.15.2 « B1.1.53) 1,200,247 1376193
B.1.1.5.1 Varous Accryals 1,200,247 1,376,193
B.1.1.5.2 ] 1]
B.1.1.53
B116 Others speciv (B1161+B1162+B81163+81 1648116581 165] 3,540 245 2895 ThHI
B.1.1.61 Customers’ deposits 1,255,779 492,140
B.1.1.6.2 Betenlion Fees Pavable 1171834 1,005,949
B1.1.6.3 Advances from Condominium ynit buyers 293,547 217 347
B.1.1.6.4 Reservafion Pavable 408 505 367125
81165 Deferred Oulpud Val 138,737 107527
B.1.16.5 Cihers 279,984 234 376
| B.1.2 Trade gnd Ciher Pavables to Forelon Entitles (specfii (B1.21+ 8122 + B3 Q 1]
B1.21
gi22
B1.23
B.1.3 Provisions
B.1.4 Financial Liabilfies {excluding Trade and Other Payables and Provisions) Q 0
{B.141+E142+B143+B144+B145)
B.1.4.1
B.1.4.2
B14.3
B.14.4
B.145
B.1.5 Liabilities for Current Tax 163,239 127 562
B.1.6 Deferred Tax Liahilities
B.1.7 Dilhers, specify (If material, slate separately; indicate if the item is payable to publicprivale or financiatnon; TEG633 606,852
finangizl instilylicns} (A7 1 +B172+B173+Bi74+B1.75+B.1.7.6)
B.17.1_Dividends declared and nol paid at balance shes dale 146465 104,785
B.17.2 Arca
B.1.7.3 Lighilties under Tryst Receipts
B1.74 Defered [neome 5521 18,164
B175 Installment Pavable 153,152
1.7.6 Any other current lizbility in excess of 5% of Total Cureent Liaililies, specify: 477 485 464 423
B.1.7.6.1 Current porfion of deposit from tenants 477,495 484,473
BATE2
B.1.7.63
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SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES ING. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Control No.:

Form Type: PHFSE

CURRENT ADDRESS: aTH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY

TEL. NO.: 370-2700 FAX NO.: 370-2697

COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PSIC:
If these are based on consolidafed financial sfalements, please so indicafe in the capfion.
Table 1. Balance Sheet
2015 2014
FINANCIAL DATA {in P'000 ) {in P'000 )
B.2 Long-tarm Debt - Nen-current Interest-bearing Liabilties (B21+B22+B23+B24 +B.25) 11,596 578 11,566 336
B.2.1 Domestic Public Financial Institutions 11,596,578 11,565,336
B.2.2 Domestic Public Non-Financial Instilutions
B.2.3 Domestic Private Financial Instiufions
B.2.4 Domestic Private Mon-Financiz! Institutions
B.2.5 Fargign Financial Instifwlions
.3 Indebledness to Affiliates and Related Faries (Mon-Current)
B4 Liabilifies Included in the Disposal Groups Classified as Held for Sale
8.5 Other Liabilities {B.5.1 +B.5.2) & 000,520 9131444
B.5.1 Deferred Tax 6580463 6,560,802
B.5.2 Others, specily (B521+B522+B523+B524 +B.5235) 1,312,057 2 541 542
B.5.2.1 Depesid for fulure stock subscription 1] 1,958,000
B.5.2 2 Deposils from Tenants - net of current pordion 936,150 494,021
B.5.2.3 Accrued Employes Benelits 449,615 G850
B.5.2.4 Deforred lease income - net of current portion 14,177 20,019
B.5.2.5 Instalimeny payable - net of current podion 709,915 0
C. EQUITY [C3+CA4+C.5+CH+C.7+C8+CO+CAD 32,301,583 27,784,333
C.1 Authorized Capital Stock (no. of shares, par value and lofal value; show detailz) {C.1.1+0.1.2+C.1.3) £,000,000 £,000,000
.1.1 Common shares | 8,000,000,000 shares at P1 par value per share In 2014 and 2013 B,000,000 8,000,000
.12 Preferred Shares
1.3 Chers
.2 Subscribed Capital Stock (no. of shares, par value and total valug) (C.21 « C22 + G235 0 ]
;.21 Commaon shares
(2.2.2 Preferred Shares
2.3 Cihers
(.3 Paid-up Capital Stock {C.3.1 +C.3.2} 4,764,058 4,764,058
.21 Comman shares 4,764,058 982 shares at P1 par value per share in 2014 and 2013 4,764,058 4,764,059
(,1.2 Praferred Shares
.4 Additional Paid-in Capital / Capial in excess of par value / Paid-in Surplus £34.440 £34,440
.5 Minerity Interest 6,370,410 3,965,745
.6 Oihers, specity (G681 + 062+ LAY (7. 126) (8.047)
C.5.1 Clher components of equity 7, 126) (8,047
GA2
6.3
0.7 Appraisal Surplus/Revaluation Increment in ProperyRevaluation Surplus
.6 Retained Eamings (C.8.1 +C.8.2) 20,346 650 18,234 935
C.8.1 Appropriated
.82 Unappropriated 20,345 650 18,234 935
.9 Head ! Home Office Account {for Foreian Branches only)
.10 Cost of Stocks Held in Treasury (negative entry) (6,850} [6.850)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AMD EQUITY (B + C}) 50,202,690 54 682,123
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Control Wo.:

Form Type: PHF52
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUELICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
HAME OF CORFORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CURRENT ADDRESS: LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. ND.: 370-2700 FAX NO.: 370-2687
COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PSIC:
If thase ara based on consolidated financial stafements, please so indicate In the caption.
Table 2. Incoma Statemeant
2015 2014 2013
EANNCIAL DATA {in P"00Q ) {in P'000 ) {in P'00Y )
A. REVEMUE [ INCOME (A1 + A2+ A3) 8,354,347 1 G0 4596 6,903,791
#.1 Met Sales or Revenue / Receipts from Operaticas {manufacturing, mining,utilities, trade, senices, T381,104 6,445,535 f,330,604
ete.] {from Primary Activity)
A2 Share in the Profit or Loss of Associates and Joint Ventures accounted for using the Equity bethod T0.658 (0692 [4.674)
AZ Other Revenpa (A3 I +AZZ+A33 + A4+ 235 4] 1] 0
A3
Ad2
A33
Add
A6 thers, specily (A3.51 +A3S2 +ASEI A4 +A305 A6 +A2507 +AL5R) 0 1] ]
Al151
AdS2
Al153
Ad54
AJLES
A35E
AJET
A15E
A4 Olher Incoms (non-coerating) (A4.1 +A4.2+A43+A4.4) 892 581 1,162 649 577 A5G
#.4.1 Inferest Income 236,873 269 361 279,427
Ad 2 Dnidand Income 40,034 15234 18,823
A43 Gain / (Loss) from seling of Assels, specify (5.4.3.1 +A4.32 + 54,33 + Ad.34) f ] i
AL31
Ad37
Ad33
Ad3d
Add Clhers, specify £15,675 878,053 279,605
BA41+A447+A443+A444 +A4485+44.4 F)
A4.4.1 Remeasurement arising fram business combination 0 824 431 0
Ad47 Reversal of impairement [oss on real estate development project 0 1] 181,955
A.4.4.3 Gain on fair value adjustment of investment properfies £40 2725 1] 1]
Ad444 Gain/{less)on Foreign Exchangs 249 E31 4 03z
A4.4.5 Disposal of investmant in associates ] i] 17,439
Ad46 Others 60,201 B2l 76,130
B. COSTOF GOODS SOLD(E1+B2+B3) ] 1] 0
B.1 Cost of Goods Manufactured (B11+EB1.2+B13+B14+B.1.5)
B.1.1 Direct Material Used
B.1.2 Direct Labar
B.1.53 Ciher Manufachuring Cest [ Overhead
B.1.4 Goods in Process, Beginning
B.1.5 Goods in Progess End (n Iwe entry)
B.2 Finished Goods, Seginning
B.3 Finished Goods, End (negative entry)
C. COSTOF SALES (CA+C.2+C.3) 2,374 BBE 2442 444 2991.014
C.1 Purchases 2,374 fA6 2442 444 2,891,014
.2 Merchandise Invenicry, Beginning
C.3 Merchandise Inveniory, End (negative entry)
0. GROSS PROFIT (A-B-C) 5,570 651 3,160,052 382777

NOTE: Fursuantto SRC Rulg 68.1 fas amended in Nov. 2005), for fiscal years ending December 37, 2005 up to November 30, 2008, a comparative farmal of only two
{2} years may be filed to give temporary refief for covered companies as the more complax PFRSs will be appiled for the first time in these year end periods. Affer
these first time applications, the requirement of three (3] year comparatives shall resume for year and reporis beginning December 31, 2006 and onwands.
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SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES

NAME OF CORPORATION:
CURRENT ADDRESS:

TEL. NC.:
COMPANY TYPE :
If these are based on consolidated financial slatements, please so indicate in the caption.

SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Canirof No.:
Form Type:

FHFS2

LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY

370-2700

FAX NO.: 370-2697

DEVELOFER

Table 2. Income Statement

PSIC:

FINANCIAL DATA

2015
{in P'000 )

2014
{in P'000 )

2013
[ in P'O00 )

E.

OPERATING EXPENSES (EA+E2+E3+E4)

1,010,957

818,289

673,285

E.1 Selling or Marketing Expenses

27736

18,5495

24,567

E2 Administrative Expenses

652,530

470,269

F73,703

E.3 General Expenses

262,150

243,451

178,923

Ed4 Other Expenses, specify (E41 +E4.2+EAI+EA4 +E45+E46+E47
+E4B+E4A9+E4D

B8.241

85,943

96,093

E.4.1 Education-related expenditures

0

0

0

E.4.2 Frovision for impairement loss

0

0

D

E.4.3 Unreimbursed share in common expenses

£8,241

85,943

56,093

Edd

EdS5

E4b

Ed.7

Edd

E.4.B

E4.10

FINANCE COSTS (F1+F2+F.3+ F4+F.5)

201,559

227,066

164,962

F.1  Interest on Shor-Term Promissony Nodes

F.2 Interest on Long-Termm Promissory Notes

F.3 Interesi on bonds, mortgages and other longdemm loans

175,370

196,642

182,755

F.4 Amarlizafion

F.5 Otherinierests, specify (F.5.1+F52+F53+F54+F55)

245,188

30,224

2207

F.5.1 Accrefion of deposits from tenants

26,188

30,224

2207

F5.2

F.5.3

F.5.4

F.5.5

. NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (D-E-F)

4,767,165

4,114,696

3,054,530

. INCOME TAX EXPENSE [negative entry)

(1,169,139)

(995,502}

(751,430}

INCOME[LOSS) AFTER TAX

3,578,027

3,119,194

2,303,100

=T

Amaount of i) Post-Tax Profit or Loss of Discontinued Operations; and (ji)
Post-Tax Gain or Loss Recognized on theMeasurement of Fair Value less
Cost to Sell or on the Disposal of the Assets or Disposal Group(s)
constituting the Discontinued Operation {if any}

4.1

J.2

PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO MINORITY INTEREST

(728,214)

(383,818)

{291,827)

-

PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

2,649,813

2,735,376

2,011,273

. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

M.1 Basic

0.598

0.574

0.422

M2 Dilued

0.599

0.673

0437
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Control No.:

Form Type: PHF32
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHAMNG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CURRENT ADDRESS: LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZS MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.: 3702704 FAX NO.: 370-2697
COMPANY TYPE DEVELOPER PSIC: 7012
If these are based on consolidated financlal statements, please 5o indicate In the caption.
Table 3. Cash Flow Statements
25 2014 213
HIABCIAL UALA {n P0G Y {in P00 ) {in P'00Q }
CAEH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Het Income (Loss) Bafore Tax and Extracrdinary Hems T L 4,114 808 3054 530
Adlustments 1o Reconcile Met Income to Nat Cash Provided by Qperating Activities
Depvecizlion 22514 414 18478
Amortizalion. specih Discouni on defered legse income 25 3700 [52 580 7164
Chers. specify: nane in profit of an azsscated campany (70 G55) q 4,674
Peversal of impairement loss on real eslale develapment prajecls [181.555)
ivigang In (40,034) 15,2341 (13,823}
Remeagurement arizing fiom bysiness combinalion ] (524 4311 0
Inlergs] aepenss 193,053 F25.060 184 386
Inberes incomeiteceied (183 6541 (237 2300 (273,037}
Ckhars [2.554) (1,845 (15173}
Increage in fair value of inveslrenl propedies 549 935 i 0
Charges in Azsels and Liabdites:
Decreage (Increase) in:
1,512 3z [350,3511 11,945 04}
Properies beld for sz! {522 TRS) (2844 TR 906,915
bt CinTen I 30408 [469.044) (40085
Cthers, spedify:
Real ezlale devekpmen] projecis ¥} 0 (21,5000
Incregse {Decreasal in:
Aocount pavable & olher curent Eabitne FiVEERE 1,803 53 BS0. 743
Cthers, soecify:
Aceryed emplovas benefils (200043 15752 12310
Defered legse income. 7885 36542 i
Income taxes paid (940 563) (745 500y [807 133
A Met Cash Provided by {Used in} Qoerating Activitles [sum of above rows) 4,568 611 05,278 2,021,564 |
CASH FLOWS FROM INVYESTING ACTIVITIES
(Inzrease) Decraase in Mvashmant in associakes [0, 5000 (15,000 (5,100
(Inereage) Decrease in Investingnt i il i]
Wﬁmﬁm and Equipment 56 BOT) (17541} 14,788
(rhers. specih ncfease in other assels (refundable deposits) S082 (155032 S.670
Procgeds from sale of share of slockipropesy equipment 125 1] 557
Lecrease in regl eslale develpmen] prolects (23505330 264877 0
Dividznds B AD 03 1500 1BB2%
Proceeds om dispasal (paymend for soquisition) of invesimen properiies I518.476) {367 542 [1.588.4351
Proceeds from sale of invesimsnt in sssocizies 0 i G2 000
Acemisilion of a subsidiary, nel of cash acquired 0 {1,465 048) 4]
il h i of abowe raws] 12041375, {1,581.052] [1.493.242]
CASH FLOWSE FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procesds fom:
Logns 2,271 454 2.754 236 1 AG0.000
Long-lerm Cent
| il rili
Cthers, speciby
Paymenrts of:
LLogns) [1,886.833) BT 51 (852 951
Jlong-lerm Dbt
[Elock Subserplinns) a ] 4]
Cthers, specify (negative ent_nﬂ
(o £20) {935 08 [R35,7721
Increase (decreasa) in depoe?! fram fenanls 1.012 [5.554Y 183108
Eaymens of inkerest (177 216} {158 Fag) {1892 181
N h Pr in} Financing Activitl of abave rows] 1827.071) 1985331 [237 528
MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A + B # C) 113168 1018558 20493
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Resginning of yezr 2811005 1,801 447 1 B985
Crdl af year 4.041 170 2911005 1891447

NOTE: Pursuans fo SRC Rule 68.7 (os amended in Nov, 2005, for ffseel years ending December 31, 2008 np to Movember 30, 2006, & compariative format of enly hwe
{2 years ruap b filed to give tepporary relief for covered companies as the more complex PFRSs will be applied for efve fest shee in these yeer end perfods, After these
STrst time applications, te requlrement of teree (3) pear comparatives shell resure for pear end repors beginning Decerber 31, 2006 and onwards,
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Contred Wo.:

Form Type: ___FHess
SFECLAL FORM FOR AMAKCIAL STATEWMEHTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AMO INVESTMENT COMPAKIES
HAME OF CORPORETHIN: SHAKG PROPERTIZE INE, AKD SUDMARIEE
CLIRRENT ADOREEE; ATH LEVEL SHAMGR-LA PLAZA HALL, NANDALUYONG CITY
TEL MO 103703 FAX NG - 3T
COMPANY TYPE DEVELOPER =T T
Hinesa are based of conssidaled fnancial stztaments, plasse 30 inddcate in e captan
Tibl 4, Etalacimat of Charges n Equizy
TRTEUnLin ¥ 050
UMY .
g Crasgi in Fair Curulithva | Retinsyrecent Gaing
FIKANEIAL DATA Capitad Stack "5"“";“"" Tisasury Ghares | vaimof vadssle]  Tunsuon | (Loesoa] s Lt | Wiy taroat | P50 TOTAL
Cocl foraain Fisaseial | Adjustmant Eenefil Llakiity e
PR
|4 Ealaree. 2013 AT (5D Ead 4 16 B350 063 1819 12 QOS] IRIARAN L e Va7
| AT Coneotion of Emos) 0
| 52 Chingesm Aooenbrg Pley ] L]
19, Fostates Ealiten TGN K4 4] -l A0ER 411l Crl il I 1= - SR 157410 24 T 139 |
u -
L1 Surpivs, |Defist) on Reresiuston of Fiopertios []
G Surphos | Deficit] on Revaiuaion of bvisimenta [}
|G Curence Trangigtion Difamnces, 18 19 |
G b ]
L1 Comulatin chargas in L valus of avalabls k) ]
Yo el Bl ascets.
r o oy y IR 757 (i1.757)
A Fogquisiton of non corloling inlies! 00 38 00 358
[ K] n
CAS i
’ F-< 15 I X . 31, FRICEE
|E—Bivilenz iniisive aeir] LN AR 642 25511 RS
; - : "
[ 0O
E2 0
Fi 2
F4 —
FS ]
|5 lasusncs of Gapial Sk i
| Gl Common Shogs i
| G2 Fefined Sk - cedeamcton 1l
G Chere ]
B Eageca 2314 4 TR CE | FETE] T 413 mi__ 111 05 FELEET 12300 7788 AL
| H1 Gomecion of Eror i) I I 0
| HE Charaas i rooourying Fafee ]
L Feplated Dalangs 344 o704 5 RN it 500] 1413 | MR gmsTe 1R A0 o7 TR
o
41 Srphas (Defbell on Arvaluadon of Proquses: s
13 Surphas (Dol on Flevaleaiorn of iresdmets —=
1 A0 | A |
A Cloer Syrploe eoecht V]
JAT Cormudabon changess in far valus of Feaiabio
fox spbe Franvial et has 143
JA 2 Remeigusesin] Gen (Loswss) on defined =] e |
1 Mgt
e Coririon of digoels 1.5655,000 1265 0 |
JEd i1
Ja5 o 1
; PP FEr] TN 2 LT |
L Divida-dy lrapative snind 7} (738 P 11,00 )
[, Apcecodeton fo Ceesite] D
S—A] i
[T il
KE n
[T o
KE il
4. Pesparee of Cagllal Seck. h]
| .1 Common Stock 2
|— b2 Predegnect Bjock teckemobon L
| M3 Cters ")
O, Eulancs 015 4754 15 TR ERS, 1048 1z (21,50 BT et 205 RE 22301501 |
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Controf No.:

Form Type: PHFS2
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CURRENT ADDRESS: LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.: 370-2700 FAX NO.: 370-2697
COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PSIC: 7012
If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the capfion.
Tahle 5. Details of Income and Expenses, by saurce
{applicable to corporations transacting with foreign corporations/entities)
2015 2014
FINANCIAL DATA {in P'000 ) {in P'000)
A, REVENUE!INCOME (A.1+A2)
A.1 Net Sales or Revenue / Receipts from Operations (manufacturing, n'a
mining, utilities, frade, services, etc.) (from Primary Activity) (4.1.1 +4.1.2)
A.1.1 Domestic
A.1.2 Fareign
A2 Other Revenue {A.21 +A.2.2)
A2 1 Domestic
A.2.2 Foraign, specify (A 2.21+A222+ A223+ A2 24+ A2 25+ A2 26+ nfa
A22T+ A225+A.2.2.0+8.2.210)
A2.21
A222
4223
AZ224
AZ25
AZ2H
A227
A228
AZ29
AZ210
B. EXPENSES (B.1+B.2)
B.1 Domestic
B.Z Foreign, specify na
(B.2.1+B.2.2+B.2.3+B.2 4+B.2. 5+B.2.6+6.2 7+B.2 8+B 2 0+E.2.10)
B.21
B.22
B.23
B.2.4
B.25
B.2B
B27
B.24
B.2.9
B.2.10

Page &




Control No.:
Farm Type: PHFS1

SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENMT COMPANIES

HAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES ING,

CURRENT ADDRESS: 3TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY

TEL. KQ.: I70-2700 FAX MO.: 270-2599

COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PSIC: T092

If these are based on consolidated financial statemants, please so indicate in the caption,
Table 1. Balance Shest

FIGH 2014
FINANCIAL DATA {in P00} (in P'000
A ABSETS (A + A2+ A3+ A4+ ASHAB+AT+AR+AS+AID 23,415,526 22 686,224
A1 Current fesels (W11 +A1Z+A13+414 + 416 2,237 736 1,578,734
A1 Cash and cash equivalents (A1.1.1 + 4112 +41.1.3) 1,211,500 425 G40
A.1.1.1 Cnhand 977 25,048
A.1.1.2 In domestic banks/entities 1,202,022 400 532
£.1.1.3 In foreign banksfenfities
A1.2 Trade and Cther Receivables (4.1.21 +41.2.2) 831,262 956, 264
A.1.2.1 Dug from domestic entities (A 1,211+ A1212 +A 1213 +A1.01.4) 531,252 206,264
8.1.2.1.1 Dug from customars {irade) 33,336 47,875
A121.2 Due from related parties 790,217 415,965
A 1213 Olhers, spetify (A1.21.31 +21.21.3.2) 4,783 5,518
A1.2.1.3.1 Installment receivable i 2,565
A121.52 Olhers 4,753 3,154
A8.1.2.1.4 Allowanee for doubtiul accounts (negative enfry) (3,114 [3.114)
A1.2.2 Due from foreign entities, specify 0 N
(81221 +A1222 «A1223+A120.24)
ATZZA
L1222
21223
A.1.2.2.4 Allowance for doubtiul accounts {negative entiry)
A3 Invenbories (4,121 +A132 + A 55+ A154 + 4135 = A13E) 0 0
A5 Raw materiats and supplies
A1.3.2 Goods in process {including unfinished goods, growing Grops, unlinighed seeds)
A1.3.3 Finished goods
A134 Marchandizse/Goods in transil
A1.3.5 Unbilled Services (in case of senvice providers)
A58 Dithers, specify (813681 + A.1.3.6.2) 0 0
A6
81362
A4 Financial Assats other than CashiReceivables/Squity imvestments (A 141 + 4142 + 4143 4,241 3438
+h 148+ 8 94528 148]
A.1.4.1 Financial Assets al Fair Value through Profit or Logs - issvad by domastic entities: 4,243 3426
B4 + 81402 +A1412 80414 + 81415
A1 Mational Government
A,1.4.1.2 Public Finzncial Institutions
4.1.4.1.3 Publiz Mon-Financial Ingtituliong
£.1.4.1.4 Frivate Financizl Institutions
& 1.4.1.5 Private Non-Financial Inglijufions 4243 3426
A.1.4.2 Held 1o Maturily Investments - issued by domestic enfifies: ] ]
A1 +A1422 81423+ A 124 +A1.4.258)
A,1.4.2.1 National Governrment
A.1.4.2.7 Public Finangial Ingliluticns
A.1.4.2.3 Public Mon-Financial Instituligns
A.1.4.2 4 Private Financial Institutians
A.1.4.2.5 Private Non-Financial [nstilufions

Thig spedal form is appiczble 1o Ivestment Companies 2nd Publich-held Companies (enumerated in Seclion 17.2 of lhe Szourilies Regulation Code (SRC), excepl
banks and insurance companies). As a supplemental form o PHFES, i shall be used for reporing Consoidaled Financial Statements of Parent corporations and their
subsidianas.

Domestic comporations are these which ane incorporatad ender Phlippine taws or branches/subsidianies of ferelgn corporations that are Feenzad to do busingss in the
Phiippines where the center of economic interest or aclivity is within the Philippines. On the olhes hand, foreign corperalions are those that arg fcorpoealed abocay, including
branches of Phiippine carporalions cperating abroad.

Financial Ingtiutions are corporalions pancipaly engaged in financial intermediation, faalitaling nancial mtermediation, o ausiliary hnandal services, Men-Financial
inshibubians refes 10 corporalions Bat ane primany engaged in the production of merket goods and nan-financial services,
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SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES

MAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC,

Control No.:
Form Typa:

FPHFaT

CURRENT ADDRESS: <TH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY

TEL. NO.:  370-2700 FAX NO.: 370-2699

COMPANY TYPE DEVELOPER

If these are based on consolidaled financial siatements, please S0 indicate in NG Caphion,

Table 1. Balance Sheet

PSIC:

Tz

FINANCIAL DATA

2015
[in P'000 )

2014
[ in F'O00

4.14.3 Loans and Recaivablas - issued by domestic entities;
(A1431+A1432+41433+81434+41435)

A.1.4.3.1 Nationa! Government

A1.4,3.72 Public Fingncial Insfilutions

A.1.4.3.3 Public Nen-Financiz! Instifulions

A4.4.34 Privale Financial Insiilutions

A14.3.5 Private Non-Finangial Institutions

Ad.4.4 Ayailable-for-sale financial assets - issuad by domeslic entities;
[(A1441+A1447+ 481443 +81444+A 1445

A.1.4.4.1 Mational Governmen

A1.4.4.2 Public Finansiz! Instibulions

A.1.4.4.3 Public Mon-Financial Instifutions

A.1.4.44 Private Finangial Institufions

A14.4.5 Private Non-Financial Insfiutions

A.1.4.5 Financial Asseds issued by forsion enfities: (4,145 1+48 1.4 5244, 14 553814 5.4)

A1.4.5 1 Financial Assels at fair valus theough orofit or loss

A.1.4.5.2 Held-to-maturity investments

A.1.4.5.3 Logns and Recaivabios

A.1.4.5.4 Available-for-sale financial azsats

&.7.4 5 Allowanca for decling in market value (negative eniry)

A 1.5 Other Current Assets (slale separalsly material items) (41,51 + A 152 + 4153

190,442

193,368

A1.5.1 Properiies hald for sale

48785

78,158

AT0.72 Prepayment and olher current sssats

140 656

115,211

A153

A2 Propedy, plant, and equipment (A2 +A22 + A3+ 204+ 425 v A2+ A2 T+AZE)

35,062

A0,578

A.2.1 Land

L A2 Building and improvements including lessehold improvemant

51706

Wmeni {on hand ar&d i lr'>n3| ]

51 550_:

plivery apuipmeant

25,657

26 073 |

A25 thers sne-:;f-.f (A28 -A252+A253+£?54+&255}

0461

2B TTY

5251 Progarly, ar equinment wysed fo educalion ourcoses

A2 5.2 Copstoclion in oragress

A2 53 Furnitures, focdures and giher equinment

20461

28,777

A2bA

A.255

AGE Aporaisalincrease specifv (ASE1 + AP B2 + A PRI+ A DR+ 4 TR

AZET

A.262

A.2603

254

hARS

AT Acoumulated Depreciation (neoativie enire

(727521

154,512

A 28 Impairment Loss of Ben g[ga [if Ioss, neqative aningd

A3 Irveslments .:c.oc:u..nue:l for l..&lnu the equity method (4,31 +A32 +A33 + 4,341

12030225

12,456,240

12,030,223

12486 940

EE Dlnes ﬁnpﬂlf.'rABS 1 +,'5.332+A333+H334+A33:ﬂ

0

Q

A.331

4332

o

Add4

4335

Ad |nvesimant Propary

8011806

480 270

A5 Bialnaical Assets

| A6 (ntanaible Assets

A5, Wator iemfs, seecify (4611 + AR

A61.1

A612

A6 2 Oihars, soecify (B821 + A6 32

£.8.2.1

LEZZ

AT Azsofe Classifiad 35 Held for Sale




Condrol No.:

Form Type: FHFET
SPECIAL FORM FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND IMYESTMENT COMPANIES
MAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG FROPERTIES INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: STH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.: AT0-2T00 FAX NO.: 370-2605
COMPANY TYPE DEVELOPER F3IC; 012
If theso are based an consolidaled fiNancial SI@TEMENis, PIEase 50 MOICaE i e Caplion,
Table 1. Balance Sheet
2013 2014
FINANCIAL DATA i BAIOD ) Vi B0 |
A9 Lono-ferm receivables (ned of current podion) (A9 +AG2+A0 0 o]
A.9.1 From domestic entifes. specify (8811 +4812+401 0 i i
8811
8912
84913
£.9,2 From foreion entifies, specify (4921 4922+ 4023 I 1]
LA
A922
A923
Al I § podion (neazfive entred
510 Ciher Asseis (A 101 + 2107+ A 103+ 8104 + & 10.5) 100600 93696
i tred charges - nel of amartizadion
2102 Advancaliiscellanacus deposits il 0
A03
A0 Dtners speciiy (A 1041+ 1047 +0 1043 + 8104 24 104 5) 100,600 93,696
8104 1 Ayvailabla-forsale inancial assels a5 321 93571
& 1024 7 Relireman] banefi] assed 43R4 ]
A.104 3 Refundable daposil 429 425
A0 E
L1045
A0 Allewange for write-down of deferred chargesbad soeounts (neative enfryl
B, LIABILITES(Bi+B2+B3+B4+E5) 6,301,448 8,378,848
B4 Currenl Liabilies (BAA+BI2+Bi13+B14+B158-B16+817 590,500 1 575 %4
B.1.1 Trade and Other Payables to Domestic Entities BE2, 125 1,250,925
(5111+8112+B113+B114+B1.15+8.1.15
8111 Loans'Moies Pavables 133,373 SR3 333
§.1.1.2 Trade Payablas BT Z &7 402
8.1.1.3 Pavables io Relaled Paries 321,059 41,827
B.1,1.4 Advances from Direciors, Officers. Emolovess and Frincipal Slockholders
B.1.1.5 Accruals. soacify matedal ifems (81151 +BL1E2+B1150 41,704 52 485
B 1151 Accrued expenses 41701 R ARG
B.1.1.5.2 Advancas from condgminiym unii buyers 0 0
Bl153
B11F Others soscifv (B1161+B116F+B 1160 5360 5.082
B1.16 1 Wilhholding and ather jgies pavable 1,651 2,357
B8 2 Cuiput s payable 2261 2040
B.1.143 Others 1245 il
5.1.2 Trade and Qiher Payahles to Forsign Entities (speciid (8121 +«B17 7 +B 133 ] 1]
B.1.2.1
B172
BE123
B.1.3 Fravisions
B.1.4 Financial Liabilifes (excluding Trade and Other Payables and Provisions) 0 0
(B141+B142+B143+B.1.44 +B.1.4.5)
E.1.4.1
B.14.2
B.14.3
5144
B.145
B.1.5 Liabilities for Current Tax 0 i
B.1.6 Deforred Tax Lisbiliies
B.1.7 Others, specify (If material, slale separately; indicate if ihe item iz payable to public/privale or 28,4635 24,295
financialinon-financial institutions) (BAT 1 +B172+B173+B1 T4 +B 175+ BT
Bi7 1 Dividends declared and rofb oaid at balznce shest dats 28,465 24 795
B17.2 Acceptances Pavable
B173 Liahilifies under Trust Recaiols
B17.4  Poricn of Lora-term Debd Due within ore vear
§.1.7.5 Defered lnoome
B.LTA  fnvather current li piililies, specihy ] 0
B.1.75.1
B1762
B.1.7.6.3
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Condral No.:

Form Type: PHEE]
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPAMNIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: SHAMNG PROPERTIES IMC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: ETH FLOOR SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.: 370-2700 Fax NO.: 370-2693
COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PEIC:
If these are based on consendaled inancial sizlements, pleaze so indicale in e capfian.
Tabkle 1. Balance Sheet
aUla auld
FINANCIAL DATA {in P00 ) {in D00 )
B.2 Long-ferm Dbt - Mon-currend Interest-bezring Liabilifies (B21 +B22 +B23+B2d +B25) 3,066 A6 4 517500
8,21 Demestic Pukdic Financial Institutians
8.2 % Domesiic Public Mon-Financial [nstilutions
8.2.3 Domestic Private Financial [nslilulions 4,066 667 4,912,500
B.2.4 Domesiic Privale Mon-Fingncial Inslitnfions
B.2.5 Foreign Financial Instituticns
B3 Indetledness to Affillates and Related Padies (Mon-Cument)
5.4 Lighilities Inciuded in the Dispasal Groups Classified as Held far Sala
B.5 Other Lighilities (8.5.1 +B.A5.2) 27341452 581,128
B.5.1 Deferred income fax lizbilities - net 2733108 2579931
B.A.2 Others, specily (BA21+B833+BAF3+B5F4+B550) 1,088 11,187
B.5.2.1 Accrued Retirement Benefits Cosl i} 10,198
B.5.2.2 Deposis from tenanis 1,065 Lt
B.523
B524
B.5.2.5
C. EQUITY (C3+CA4+ CHE+CRHCTHCE+CIHCAN 17,024 078 14,207,376
.1 Authorized Capital Stock (no. of shares, par valug and iodal valug; show details) [C.1.1+C.1.2+4C2.1.3) 8,000,000 £ 000,000
(.11 Camman zhares | B,000,000,000 shares al P1 par valua per share in 2011 and 010 3,000,000 £,000,000
1.2 Preferred Shares |
1.5 Cihers |
.7 Subscribed Capilal Steck (no. of shares, par valug and ioial value) (C.2.1 +C2Z +C.2.5] 4,764,059 4,764,058
.21 Commen shares iq,‘r{.i,nss,m shareg al P par velue per share in 2013 and 2012 4,764 058 4,764,059
|
C.2.2 Prefarred Sharas |
.73 Others |
(.3 Paid-up Capital Stock (C.31 + C.3.9) 4,764 058 4, 764082
3.1 Commen shares 4,764,058 4,764,058
.32 Preferred Shares
.4 Additianal Paid-in Capital ! Capital in excess of par value | Paid-in Surplus 1,210.074 1,210,074
C.5 Minorily Inlerasl
.6 Cihers, specify (G610 « C62 + CET) [12 687 {14,451)
6.1 Treasury shares {6,850 {8,850
C.6.% Cumulative channgeas in fair valuss of AFS 4 345 3413
5.3 Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (10,6584 11,013}
.7 Appraisal SurplusRevalualion Increrment in ProperhyRevaluation Surplus
.8 Rafained Eamings (C.81 + .05 11,062 642 BT 694
C.B.1 Approprigted
.5.% Unappropriated 11,062 642 8347 504
.8 Head / Homs Ofice Account (or Faraign Sranches only)
CAD Cest of Stocks Held in Treasury {negative entry)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (B + C) 23,415 826 22 686,224
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Cantral No.:

Form Type:

PHFE1

SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES

NAME OF CORPORATION: SHANG PROPERTIES INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS:

LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY

TEL. NO.: 3702700

FAX NO.: 370-2689

COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER

PSIC:

If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicata in the caption.

Table 2. Income Statement

FINANCIAL DATA

2019
{in P'O00 )

2014 |
[in F"000 )

2013
{in P'O00 )

A. REVEMUE/INCOME (A1+ A2+ AT

3,954,231

1,452 287

1,074,381

A1 Met Sales or Ravenue | Receipts fram Operations (manufacturing,
mining utilitiss, rade, servicas, ete.) (from Primary Activity)

.9 Share in the Profit or Loss of Associates and Jaint Ventures accounted for

A5 Other Revenue (A3 1+ A2+ A35+A234+ 830

270,887

211,846

260.092

A.21 Rental Ineome from Land and Buildings

212.740

211,186

227.088

£.2.2 Receipts from Sale of Merchandise (irading) (from Secandary Aclivity)

£.3.3 Sals of Real Eslate or other Property and Eguinment

58147

BE0

33,004

£.%.4 Rovyallies, Franchise Fees, Copyrights (books, films, records, ets.)

A.3.5 Othars, specify (8.35.1 + A352+ A353+A354+ 4355+
AARG+AIRT+AIAR

]

0

0

A.3.5.1 Rental Income, Equipment

A.3.5.2 Mansgement Fee

A3.5.3

A354

A355

AJSE

A3ST

A3SE

a4 Other Ingome (non-operaiing (A4.1+A47+ A45+ A2 4)

3,683,344

1.240.440

814,288

Ad.1 Intersst Income

BE43

2707

12,631

A.42 Dividend Income

3,150,415

FOE.E72

A.4.3 Gain | {Loss) from selling of Assets, spacify
(A431+8437+A433+2 434

0

1,234,918
0

0

A.4.31 (3ain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit an

]

0

A.4.3.% Gain on sale of subsidiary

o

1]

0
0

Ad.3.3

Ad434

A44 Others, specify
Addl+Add+ALAT+A444)

524,385

2814

5.086 |

A.4.4.1 Increase in fair value of investment propery

521.897

Ad.4.2 Ofhers

2488

2814

5,088

Add.d

Ad.d.d

B. COST OF GOODS SOLD (E1+B.2 + B.3)

8.1 Coslof Goods Manufactured (B4 +B1.2+B13+B14+815

B.1.1 Direct Material Usad

B.1.2 Direct Labor

E.1.3 Other Manufacturing Cost / Overhead

B.1.4 Coods in Process. Baginning

B.1.5 Goods in Process. End [neqative entry]

B.2 Finished Goods, Beginning

B.3 Finished Goods, End {negative entry)

| C. COST OF SALES (C.1+C.2+C.3)

25,372

228

13,443

.1 Purchases

28,372

228

13,443

.2 Merchandise Inventory. Baginning

.3 Merchandise Inventory, End (negative entry}

D. GROSS PROFIT (A-B - C)

3,825,859

1,452,080 |

1,060,938

NEOTE: Pursuant to SRC Rule 68.1 (as amended in Nov. 2005), for fiscal years ending December 31, 2005 up to November 30, 2004,
a comparative format of only twe (2) years may be filed to give temporary relief for covered companies as the more complex PFRSs
will be applied for the first time in these year end periods. After these first time applications, the requirement af three (3) year
comparatives shall resume for year end reports beginning Decephgs BI, 2006 and onwards.




Control No.:
Form Type:

SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANGIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES

HWAME OF CORPORATION:
CURRENT ADDRESS:
TEL. NO.:

COMPANY TYPE :
if these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.

SHANG PROPERTIES INC.

PHFS1

LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY

370-2700

FAX NO.: 370-26599

DEVELOPER

PSIC:

Table 2. Income Statement

FINANCIAL DATA

2015
[ in PO )

2014
[ in P'O00 )

2013
{in P'000 )

E,

OPERATING EXPENSES (E4+E2+E3+E4)

151,552

165,614

154,798

E.1 Salling or Marketing Expenses

E.2 Adminigirative Expensss

128,805

117,398

118,793 |

E.3 General Expensas

24,747

43,215

36,004

E.4 Other Expenses, specify (E41 +E42 +E43 +EL4 +EAS+EAE+EAT
+E48+E45+E410)

0

0

0

E41 Provision for impairment of goodwil

t
L

{}
o

H]

E4.2

Ed.3

E.d4

Ed.5

EAS

EAT

Ed.8

Ed9

E.4.10

FIMANCE COSTS (F1#F2+F3+F.4+F.5)

162,420

166,260

14,675

F.1 Interest on Short-Term Promissary MNotes

F.2 Interesi on Long-Term Promissory Motes

186,162

185,608

F.4 Interest on bonds, mortgages and other long-term logns

F.4  Amortization

F5 Otherinterests, spacify (F51 +F5.2+F 53 +F54+F5.5)

8

344977

F.5.1 Bank charges

95

157

F.5.2 Loss on 2als of land

344,820

F.5.3

F.5.4

F.5.5

NET INGCOME {LOS5) BEFORE TAX (D-E - F)

3,611,387

1,100,185

381,465

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (negative entry)

{158,841)

3,419

98121

INCOME(LOSS) AFTER TAX

3,453,045

1,103,604

459,586 |

“|—|=|®

Amount of (i) Post-Tax Profit or Loss of Discontinued Qperations; and (i)
Post-Tax Gain or Loss Recognized on theMeasurement of Fair Value less
Cost to Sell or on the Disposal of the Assets or Disposal Group(s)
constituting the Discontinued Operation (if any)

€1

2.2

. PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO MINORITY INTEREST

PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTAELE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

3,453,045

1,103,604

458,588

=&

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

W1 Basic

0725

0.232

0103

M2 Diluted

Page 6
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Form Typo! PHFST
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
MAME OF CORPORATION:  SHANG PROPERTIES INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALLUYONG CITY
TEL. MO.: 3702700 FAX NO.: 370-2699
COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PSIC: 101z
If these are based on consolidgated financial statements, please so indicate in the caplion,
Table 3. Cash Flow Statements
FINANCIAL DATA 2015 2014 2013
{in F0a0 ) 1 in F0Q0 | [in P°0O0 )
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Incame (Loss) Before Tax and Extraordinary ltems 3.611.887 1,100,185 361,465
Ad[ustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation 10,555 4617 2,860
Amoriization, specily:
Dthers, specify: Intzrest expenses 155425 186,162 165 B398
Gain on fair value of invesiment properies (521,897 0 0
Dividend Income (3, 150.415) (1,234 819 (T9EA7E
Zain on sale of propery and equipmant (G0l ] {2171
Qithers {8 205] {3,193 {14,111]
Loss an sale of land a 0 344 B0
[Gaimyloss an sale of financial agsels at fair value through profit or loss {616] 2070 1624
Write-tlown of Property, Plant, ard Eguinment
Changes in Assets and Liabilfies:
Decrease (Increase) in;
Receivabies 435,705 A5 B36 (1,080,593
Froperties hald for sale 26572 i TEA A48
Other Current Assets (25445 (B ATH) (12 B75)
Others, specify:
Increasa (Decrease) in;
Trada and Diher Payabias (225 M2 25,826 {430 867}
Income and Other Taxes Payable - - -
Olhars, specify;  Accrusd Retirement Senafit Cost [14,586) 2,547 19,985)
Interast Recaived 5 865 279% 12261
Depesits from tanants ] 0 ]
Income Taxes Paid {5.419) 4.5219) e A01}
A. Net Cash Provided by (Used in} Operating Activities {surm of above rows) 590,376 058,052 {430 849}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
{Increase) Decrease in Long-Term Recelvables
{Inzrease) Decrease in Inveziment 456,717 (1,746 254} 44 7HS
Reductions Addifions] kb Propery, Plant. and Equipment (5,035 (5,250} (39100
Chers, specify Dividends Recaived 2441918 1,235,218 T9EETS
Refundzble depasits i {6 (2,580
Dthers {3.738) {7,820 (AR A1E1
B. Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities {sum of abova rows) 2 889 A5T [G24,523) 846,152
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceads from:
Loans i 00,000 1,300,000
Long-tarm Dbt
Issuangs of Securifies
Oithers, specify: Inlgrest paid {165,183} (181,133 (180 944
Deposit fram Tenant BT
Payments of
{Loans) {1.565.833) {583 330 [543 333
{Long-term Cetd)
{Stock Subscripfions)
Dthers, specify (negative entry):
Cash dividends paid io sharenclders (7323,928) (G35 408} (520,922
Effect of exchange rate changes 744 486 1,580
C. Net Cash Provided by (Used in] Financing Activities {sum of above rows) (2,794,113} [503.389) 16,381
HET INGREASE [N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B+ C) THRE.120 (68, B58) 431,684
Cash and Cazh Equivalenis
Beginring of year 425 B0 495 538 fd A5
Enid of vear 1,211,800 425 BEl 485

NOTE: Purswant to SRC Rule 68.1 (as amended in Nov, 2003), for fiscal years ending December 31, 2005 up to November 30, 2006, a
comparative format of only two (2} years may be filed to pive temiporary relief for covered comparies as the more complex PERSs will be appiied
for the first tine in these year end periods. After these [irst thare applications, the requirement of tiree {3} pear comparatives shall resume far pear

end reports beginning December 31, 2006 and anwards,
Page 7
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Fort Typa: } FHFST
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMEMWTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME COF CORPORATION: SHAMNG PROFERTIES INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5TH LEVEL SHANGR-LA PLAZA MALL, MAHDALUYONG CITY
TEL. NO.: I0-ET00 FAX NG 370-2608
COMPANY TYPE DEVELOFER PSIC: i
If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicale i the caplion.
Table 4, Statement of Changes in Equity
[Amount in P U00)
113 Cummulative :
FINANCIAL DATA Capital Stock |  Addional |- Treasury | o oo | Retalned TOTAL
Paid-in Capital Shares Earnings
Fair Value
A, Balance, 2013 4754059 1290074 1E850) {1.557) 7805 £5] 13855675
A1 Corraction of Erers] o
A2 Changes 0 Acsounting Poley i
E. Restated Balance 4,734,059 1,510,074 A5y [1.557) 755,550 13,595675
€. Surplus 0
C.A Surples (Deficlt) cn Revalustion of Froperties 0
.2 Surples (Daficif) en Revaleation of Investmants 350 380
| C.3 Curency Translalion Cifferendes 0
C.4 Cdher Surphus (specify) ]
4§ Remeasuremant Gans {Losses) on dafined banel [4,354) |6, 350
C42 [
4.3 ]
CAd i
c45 q
D, Met Ingeme |Loss] for the Period 1,103,604 1,103 .804
E. Dividends {nagativa antry (E42 B35 [542 359
F. _Appropriation for [specify) 0
Fi 0
Fz L
F.i o
F.d 0
Fh i
3. Issuanca of Capital Stock a
.1 Commen Stock a
5.2 Preferrad Stock U]
.o Others 0
H. Balance, 214 A, 754,059 12104074 (5,550 (7801} 0347684 14,307 376
H.1 Comection of Emor (5] i}
H.2 Changes in Accounting Policy 0
I Restated Balance I
J. Surplug i
J.1 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of Properies 0
J.2 Burphus (Deticit) on Revalation of Imvestments 1,435 1455
.3 Crency Translalion Differeces q
J.d Q5her Surolus (Spetify) 0
J. 4.1 Remeasuremen Gans iLasses) oo defred barefl 1% 119
J4.2 a
J4.3 [i
J44 ]
J4.5 I
K.  Met Income {Loss) for the Period 3453045 3,453,045
L. Dividends (neqgalive entry] (739,08 [T36.055]
M, _Appropriation far (specify) g
M1
b2 a
W3 d
M.4 0
W.5 ]
[M. _Issuance of Capital Stock o
.1 Common Siock 0
.2 Prafarmed Stock 1
K. Others a
0, Balance, 2015 4,754,059 1,510,004 e [5,647) 11 062 542 17,004 378

FPage &




Contrel No.:
Form Typa:

SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION; SHANG PROPERTIES INC.

PHFST

CURRENT ADDRESS; LEVEL 5 SHANGRI-LA PLAZA MALL, MANDALUYONG CITY

TEL. NG.: 635-6300 FAX NO.: B33-4473

COMPANY TYPE : DEVELOPER PEIC: 7012

If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.

Table 5. Details of Income and Expenses, by source
{applicable to corporations transacting with fareign corporations/entities)

FINANCIAL DATA 2019 2014

{ in P*000 ) {iin P'00D }
A, REVENUE/INCOME (A1 + A.2)

.1 MNet Sales or Revenue / Receipts from Operations {manufacturing, nfa
mining, utilities, trads, services, elc.) {fram Brimary Activity) (411 +8.1.2)

A.1.1 Domastic

A.1.2 Foreign

A2 Other Revenua (A.2.1 +42.2)

A.21 Domestic

£.2.2 Forzign, specify (A 22 14422 2+ A2 23+ A224+ A2 25+ A2 258+ n'a
A22Tt AZ20482.20+822.10)

A2.21

AZ22

A.2.2.3

A.2.2.4

A22E

A2LE

AT

A28

A22E

AZ2.2.10

B. EXPENSES (B.1+B.2)

B.1 Domestic

B.2 Forgign, spacify nfa
(B.21+B.2.2+B.2. 3+8.2 4+B.2.5+B.2 6+B.2.7+B.2.5+B.2.8+B8.2.10)

B.2.1

B.2.2

B.2.3

B.24

B.25

B.2.6

B.AT

B28

B2%

B.2.10
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